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Message from the Desk of
the Chairman

Dear Stakeholders,

It is my absolute pleasure to share that post an Hon’ble
NCLT approval of the Resolution Plan, submitted by
National Asset Restructuring Company Limited
(NARCL), vide an order dated August 11, 2023, your
Company constituted a professionally managed Board
in February 2024. The Board also appointed Mr.
Hardayal Prasad as its new Managing Director & CEO.
The Board entrusted the new endeavour to Mr. Prasad
given his wide experience in State Bank of India as its
DMD and other significant experiences as MD & CEQ
of SBI Cards & Payment Services Limited and as MD &
CEO of PNB Housing Finance Limited.

Your Company is strategically positioned to re-enter the Construction
& Mining Equipment (CME) financing space given its inherent competence
in the segment. The tailwinds in the sector are being propelled by significant
budgetary allocations in the infrastructure space, with notable emphasis on Roads
& Highways, Housing & Urban Development, Irrigation, Railways etc. As per
industry reports the Indian CME industry grew by 26% in FY24 while important
sub segments like Earth Moving Equipment, Material Handling Equipment
and Road Construction Equipment grew by 21%, 61% and 40%
respectively. Interestingly, the Earth Moving segment contributed 69%
of the overall equipment sales. We also believe that financing in
this segment will keep growing at equal or more pace in the next
5 years given Government’s accelerated Infrastructure goal and
a thumb rule that 15 to 20% of the budgetary allocation in
most sub sectors go towards equipment buying.

While we take small but decisive steps towards the
future, our efforts would be towards achieving
profitable & sustainable growth through a culture

of absolute transparency, high governance

standards and effective customer delivery.
Progressively we will aim to be the best-in-class
asset finance company, with innovative products
leading towards overall stakeholder satisfaction. Your
Company envisages being a people friendly organisation
with clear people strategies of reskilling and upskilling
talent in this VUCA world. We will aspire to promote excellence
through defined processes and policies.

We believe that in the medium and long term, our imprints would
be an outcome of co-creation and continued stakeholder partnerships.
Looking forward to being in the financing space soon.

Best Regards,

N. Sivaraman

Chairman
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Message from the Desk of the
Managing Director & CEQ's

Dear Stakeholders,

It is indeed invigorating to be given an opportunity to ignite
the potential of your Company while we envision building a
‘Great Place to Work'. As ateam, our primary focus in the short
and medium term is towards execution and speed to market.
Since April 2024, the Senior Management Team at Srei
Infrastructure Finance Limited has set upon building a strong Team
of Professionals along with defining & designing a prudent Risk
Management Framework, compliant Processes & Policies and a
Digital Architecture to make business operations seamless. We would
look towards creating scalable models that would stand the test of
time and ever-evolving business cycles.

Your Company is engaged in scripting more than 150 systems
and processes in the field of Accounts & Treasury, Products &
Policies, Customer Loan Documentation & Communication,
Regulatory & Statutory Compliances, Vendor Management, Human
Resource Management, Information Technology Architecture &
Systems and Business Development. In this arduous yet
stimulating journey, the team has already accomplished more
than half the tasks and remains well poised in concluding within
timelines. This is becoming more and more possible owing to
our collective enthusiasm to launch the business.

While we intend to enter the financing space through the
Construction & Mining Equipment (CME) sector, we would also
evaluate financing other operating assets in the B2B segment
in the near future given the need to de-risk industry
concentration. Our NBFC license coupled with profound
banking expertise of The Apex Management motivates
us to look at diverse and profitable ventures.

Our future desired profitability and business
progression would be on a foundation of Credit
Quality and unquestionable compliance. We will

as a group practice a culture of innovation and will

always be raising the bar without compromising in
any of our core values as previously elaborated by
our Chairman.

We believe that this is the start of creating stakeholder value
by aligning the Company’s goals to that of servicing the needs
of the customers and the exponential infrastructure growth
story of the country at large. The Senior Management Team of
your Company remains committed to expeditious execution and
delivery, along with crafting a momentous strategic intent. Looking
forward to serving the customers soon.

Warm Regards,

Hardayal Prasad
Managing Director & CEO






Directors’ Report

DEAR MEMBERS,

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide Press Release dated October 4,
2021 in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-1E(1) of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (RBI Act) had superseded the
Board of Directors of your Company on October 4, 2021 and appointed
Mr. Rajneesh Sharma, as the Administrator of your Company under
Section 45-IE (2) of the RBI Act.

On October 8, 2021, vide order of the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (Hon’ble NCLT/Adjudicating Authority) Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was initiated against your
Company as per the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC/IBC
Code/Code) and the appointment of the Administrator was confirmed
to perform the functions of an interim resolution professional/resolution
professional and to complete the CIRP of your Company as required
under the provisions of the Code.

Thereafter, RBI vide its Press Release dated October 11, 2021, in
exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-IE 5(a) of the RBI
Act, constituted a three (3) member Advisory Committee to assist the
Administrator in discharge of his duties and to advise the Administrator
in the operations of your Company during the Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (CIRP).

In accordance with the provisions of the Code and with the approval
of the Committee of Creditors (CoC) of your Company, the Administrator
on February 25, 2022 invited expressions of interest (EOI) from
prospective resolution applicants on the basis of the Request for
Resolution Plan (RFRP), as approved by the CoC.

All the resolution plans were duly presented by the Administrator to the
CoC at its 33rd meeting held on January 21, 2023 for CoC'’s consideration.
All the plans submitted by the PRA’s were duly given consideration to
and the plan submitted by National Asset Reconstruction Company

KEY FINANCIALS
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Limited (NARCL) in respect of your Company was approved by 89.2%
votes and was chosen as a successful resolution plan under Section
30(4) of the Code (Resolution Plan).

The Administrator had filed an application under Section 30(6) of the
Code before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata
on February 18, 2023 for its approval of the Resolution Plan.

The Hon’ble NCLT vide the Order passed on August 11, 2023, approved
the Resolution Plan submitted by NARGL under Section 31 of the Code.

In accordance with the terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, an
Implementation and Monitoring Committee (IMC) was constituted for
conducting the affairs of your Company and supervising the
implementation of the Resolution Plan until all the steps and actions
contemplated therein have been completed.

As per the Approved Resolution Plan, the Implementation and Monitoring
Committee stands dissolved with the re-constitution of the Board on
February 26, 2024.

Accordingly, your Directors are pleased to present the Thirty Ninth
Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of your Company
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Your Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-
Banking Financial Company - Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-
ICC). Further, as per the Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023,
the Company is categorised as a Middle Layer NBFC. Your Company
have not availed any public funds and does not have any customer
interface. More details about the Company and its operations are available
in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

The summarised consolidated and standalone financial performance of
your Company is as follows:

FINANCIAL SUMMARY & STATE OF AFFAIRS (zin Lacs
Consolidated Standalone
Particulars Asat Asat As at
VETTERRPIPZ] | March 31, 2023 | RUEI(EINYAFZY | March 31, 2023
Total Income 73,961 1,56.289 1,347 2,143
Total Expenses (including impairment on financial instruments, depreciation etc.) 8,52,765 2,51,554 3,201 2,419
Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional ltems & Tax (7,78,804) (95,265) (1,854) (276)
Exceptional ltems - (10,15,593) 50,000 -
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (7,78,804) (11,10,858) 48,416 (276)
Current Tax = 49 = 5
Income Tax in respect of earlier year 19 6 20 -
Deferred Tax (88) (14) - -
Profit/(Loss) After Tax before adjusting Minority Interest (7,78,735) (11,10,899) 48,126 (281)
Non-Controlling Interest (1) 1 = -
Profit/(Loss) After Tax after adjusting Minority Interest (11,10,734) (11,10,900) 48,126 (281)
Surplus brought forward from previous year (Retained Earnings) (27,52,019) (15,95,424) (2,96,374)  (2,56,117)
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (9,156) 14,722 (8,850) 15,626
Profit Available for Appropriation (Retained Earnings) (10,91,239) (27,52,019) 82,886 (2,56,374)
Paid up Equity Share Capital 100 50,309 100 50,309
Other Equity excluding Revaluation Reserves (10,74,756)  (17,52,324) 1,01,724 (62,376)
Earnings Per Share (%) (216.07) (220.82) 13.35 (0.06)
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

Some of the key highlights of your Company’s standalone performance
during the year under review are:

e Total Income is ¥ 1,347 Lacs as against ¥ 2,143 Lacs in the last
year.

e Profit before taxation is ¥ 48,146 Lacs as against loss before
taxation X 276 Lacs in the last year.

o Net profit after taxation is ¥ 48,126 Lacs as against Net loss of
% 281 Lacs in the last year.

The Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) of your Company stood at
159.41 per cent (entire being Tier |) as on March 31, 2024, well above
the regulatory minimum level of 15 per cent prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India.

Standalone

During the Financial Year under review, the standalone and consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been
prepared as per the Ind AS. For the Financial Year under review, your
Company has a Profit Before Taxes of ¥ 48,146 Lacs as against ¥ (276)
Lacs in the previous Financial Year and Profit/Loss After Tax for the
year under review is X 48,126 Lacs as against a Profit/Loss of X (281)
Lacs in the previous Financial Year.

Consolidated

During the Financial Year under review, your Company’s total revenue
on consolidated basis stood at ¥ 73,961 Lacs as compared to
% 1,56,289 Lacs in the previous Financial Year. The overall operational
expenses for the Financial Year under review were ¥ 8,52,765 Lacs, as
against ¥ 2,51,554 Lacs in the previous Financial Year. Operating Loss
Before Tax for the year under review stood at ¥ 7,78,804 Lacs as
compared to ¥ 95,265 Lacs in the previous Financial Year. The Loss
After Tax for year under review stood at ¥ 7,78,735 Lacs as against
3 11,10,899 Lacs in the previous Financial Year.

The Financial Statements of your Company have been prepared in
accordance with Ind AS and the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made therein, as applicable.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a
newly issued accounting standard, if initially adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use. Management evaluates all recently issued or
revised accounting standards on an on-going basis.

Your Company has been complying with all the norms prescribed by
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) including the Fair Practices, Anti Money
Laundering and Know Your Customer (KYC).

DELISTING

The Securities of your Company were listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and
the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE), however, in terms
of the Approved Resolution Plan the Securities of your Company have
been delisted from both BSE and NSE w.e.f. December 14, 2023.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Your Company has not transferred any amount to reserves during the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

CLASSIFICATION AS INVESTMENT AND CREDIT COMPANY (ICC) AND
PUBLIC FINANCIAL INSTITUTION (PFI)

Your Company had been classified as an ‘Infrastructure Finance Company’
(‘IFC’). However the Reserve Bank of India has re-designated your
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Company as an ‘Investment and Credit Company’ (‘ICC’). The Approved
Resolution Plan also takes cognizance of the change in registration of
your Gompany so that your Gompany can carry on business as an asset
finance company. Your Company has taken the required steps with the
Reserve Bank of India for obtaining the new Certificate of Registration
(‘CoR’) reflecting your Company’s modified classification as an 1GC.
Your Company is also notified as a Public Financial Institution (PFI) by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India.

OPERATIONS

In terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, the Board of Directors of
your Company has been re-constituted on February 26, 2024. Subsequent
to the re-constitution of the Board of Directors of your Company on
February 26, 2024, the Board has appointed the Managing Director &
CEO who has assumed charge on April 15, 2024.

The present management of your Company under the guidance of the
Managing Director & CEO is taking necessary steps to resume business
of your Company as an asset finance company and has undertaken
various efforts to strengthen the policies and processes, functioning of
the IT System, legal, internal audit, internal financial controls and
updating risk control matrixes, information security, operational and
credit management risk and fraud risk management, through in-house
resources and engagement of external professional experts/consultants.
The management team has also initiated steps for compliance of various
applicable rules and regulations within your Company.

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve capital, the Board of Directors of your Company
have not recommended any dividend on Equity Shares of the Company
for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

Your Gompany being a Non-Banking Non Deposit taking Company, your
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public/members
under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 during the year and within the
meaning of the provisions of the Non-Banking Financial Companies
Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and
on March 31, 2024 your Company does not have any unpaid/unclaimed
deposits payable to the depositors.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
ECONOMIC REVIEW
Global Outlook

The global economy is facing heightened risks from elevated public
debt, longer stance of monetary policy, bouts of volatility unsettling
financial markets on incoming data & the slow progress in the last mile
of disinflation. Prolonged geopolitical tensions & potential shocks to
logistics & supply chains remain a clear & present threat with spillovers
to commaodity prices, the ongoing disinflation & eventually to the global
economic outlook. However, the balance of risks for global financial
stability has improved.

The goal of bringing inflation down to targets remains the key focus of
monetary policy authorities the world over, although headwinds are
being encountered from sticky services inflation, elections across half
the world’s population, & the recent firming up of commodity prices,
besides persisting geopolitical tensions. Despite these challenges & as
market expectations about the future course of monetary policy
re-aligned with policy guidance, financial conditions have stabilized &
risks of a hard landing have receded. The global headline inflation is
expected to fall to 4.4% in FY25 from 5.8% in FY24.



The need is for global cooperation to safeguard trade, support green
& digital transitions, provide debt relief, & enhancing food security.
Growth in major advanced economies is also becoming more aligned
as output gaps are closing. The USA shows increasing signs of cooling,
especially in the labor market. The Euro area, meanwhile, is poised to
pick up after a nearly flat performance last year. Real GDP growth is
on a rising trajectory, supported by macroeconomic & financial stability.
The domestic financial system is well buffered with strong capital &
liquidity ratios, declining levels of asset impairment & rising profitability.
World trade volume is also expected to recover as per the IMF’s
assessment, potentially easing the constraint from net exports. Against
this backdrop, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) has projected the
global growth to remain steady at 3.3% in FY25 from 3.2% in FY24.

Indian Scenario

The Indian economy remains robust & resilient, anchored by
macroeconomic & financial stability. With improved balance sheets,
banks & financial institutions are supporting economic activity through
sustained credit expansion. Real GDP rose to 8.2% in FY24 up from
7% in FY23, despite muted private & government final consumption &
external demand as a drag. With monsoons expected to be above
normal, RBI has projected real GDP at 7.2% during FY25 & kept the
repo rate at 6.50%, noting domestic economic resilience.

There are several positives for the Indian economic outlook viz., favorable
demographic dynamics, strengthening of domestic demand conditions,
highest business optimism, government’s sustained focus on capital
expenditure, firms utilising high profits to augment investible resources
while bringing down leverage, gathering pace of real estate activity
which, alongside public investment on infrastructure, is driving a
construction activity cycle, rising of services exports, fiscal consolidation
as per Budget estimates in FY25, fiscal deficit is estimated to be 5.1%
in FY25 against 5.8% of GDP in FY24, with buoyant tax collections &
deepening of credit growth. Downside risks to this outlook stem from
global slowdown & spillovers, geopolitical risks & their impact on supply
conditions & commodity prices, slack in the rural economy & uncertainties
related to weather conditions.

In an uncertain global economic & financial environment, India remains
an attractive investment destination. In FY24, net inflows of foreign
portfolio investments into India, recorded a sharp turnaround, reaching
its 2" highest level ever at USD 44.6 billion. Overall, capital flows are
expected to remain strong, supported by macroeconomic stability.

Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) in India

As per the Regulatory Structure under Scale Based Regulation - Master
Direction-RBI (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)
Directions - updated as on 215 Mar'24 for NBFCs shall comprise of
four layers based on their size, activity & perceived riskiness.

Indian NBFCs help to fill the credit gap by providing loans & other
services to the corporate houses, unincorporated retail traders, MSMEs,
small traders & local small businesses in addition to the structured
credit market thereby helping in the generation of wealth, extension of
credit, improvement of business capacity & creation of employment
opportunities. NBFCs have undergone remarkable growth within the
country's financial landscape & the sector has reached an impressive
size of USD 326 billion, underscoring its expanding influence in the
financial domain.

Credit growth in respect of the investment & credit companies (NBFC-
ICCs) & infrastructure finance companies (NBFC-IFCs) have multiplied
many folds. NBFCs were the largest net borrowers of funds from the
financial system, with gross payables of INR 16.58 Lac Crores & gross
receivables of INR 1.61 Lac Crores as at end-Mar 24. A breakup of their
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gross payables reveals that the bulk of funds were sourced from SCBs,
followed by AMC-MFs & insurance companies.

Budgetary Push by the Government and Project Outlays

The Union Budget FY24 proposed a steep increase in capital investment
outlay envisioning that it would be the driver of growth & jobs. The
proposal was to increase it for the 3rd year in a row, by 33% to INR 10
Lac Crores, which would be 3.3% of GDP & almost three times the
outlay in 2019-20. Going by the trend the infrastructure outlay for the
year FY25 will augur well for the Construction Equipment Industry &
will aid India's growth trajectory. The outlay is INR 2.78 Lac Crores for
Roads & Highways, INR 2,134 Crores for Mining & Quarrying, INR
77,524 Crores for Housing & Urban Affairs, INR 2,346 Crores for Ports
& Waterways, INR 2,300 Crores for Airports & INR 2.55 Lac Crores for
Railways. Further, to spur investment in infrastructure & to incentivize
States for complementary policy actions, it is proposed to continue the
50-year interest free loan to State Governments for one more year -
with the outlay in this regard being enhanced significantly to INR
1.3 Lac Crores.

The National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP) projected investment of INR
111 Lac Crores for FY20-25 will include infrastructure projects of more
than INR 100 Crore covering Greenfield & brownfield investments. The
NIP currently has 8,964 projects with a total investment of more than
INR 108 Lac Crores under different stages of implementation. Given
the quantum of funding involved, a creative financing option such as
asset monetisation was also envisaged through the INR 5 Lac Crores
National Monetisation Pipeline.

Industry Structure and Development

India has to enhance its infrastructure to reach its 2025 economic
growth target of US$ 5 trillion. India's population growth & economic
development require improved transport infrastructure, including
investments in roads, railways, and aviation, shipping & inland waterways.
As per RBI, in the past 4 years until Mar'24, Real Estate Investment
Trusts (REITs) & Infrastructure Investment Trusts (InvITs) have amassed
USD 15.60 billion (INR 1.3 Lac Crores). In Mar'24, multiple connectivity
projects have been inaugurated in Kolkata totaling USD 1.8 billion and
the Civil Aviation has announced inauguration of 15 airport projects
worth USD 12.1 billion by 2028.

The Indian government's Budget for FY25 has seen a significant uplift
in allocation for the infrastructure sector, with a pronounced focus on
Energy Transition. This will imply higher deal activity as a significant
part of this infra will be built on PPP model (Public-Private Partnership)
& it will need equity from sponsors and investors & project finance
from lending institutions. This will also be a big boost for all in the value
chain from EPC players to equipment suppliers. The current budget
outlines an ambitious capital expenditure target of USD 133 billion,
representing 3.4 percent of the GDP as infra spend.

The Indian Construction Equipment (CE) industry recorded 26% growth
in sales volume over FY24 with a record breaking annual sales of 1.35
Lac units. The industry is projected to triple in size by 2030. This
landmark sales growth comprises a positive performance by all 5
equipment segments, especially the 21% increase in sales of Earthmoving
Equipment comprising a large share of 70% in total CE sales, followed
by Material Handling Equipment with a growth of 61%. To implement
the long-term target of renewable energy installation capacity i.e. 500
GW by 2030, additional 300 GW needs to be commissioned & this
would entail capex of USD 160 Billion over next 5 years with an equity
outlay of USD 40 Billion. Infrastructure development will need active
participation of the states, especially for urban infrastructure & last mile
connectivity & to accelerate that, the budget has allocated USD 18
Billion financing for states.
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Business Outlook and Future Plans

India’s investment cycle should be on a medium-term uptrend supported
by rising government investment in infrastructure & recovery in the
real estate cycle. Higher private investments in renewable energy &
related supply chains, localization of higher-end technology components,
& India becoming a more meaningful part of global supply chains to
support faster growth.

After a healthy GST collection of INR 20.02 Lac Crores in FY24, the
amount collected in the 4 months from Apr'24 to July’24 is INR 7.25
Crores giving a boost to the government’s expected GST collection of
INR 24 to 27 Crores in FY25, which would pave way for higher spending
by the central & state governments. Liquidity, which remained negative
for most of the month, has turned positive on the back of on-going
Government spending & G-Sec maturities. Both RBI & the Government
have given soft signals on improving liquidity conditions & it should
remain a key theme going forward.

The USD 1.3 trillion, national master plan for infrastructure, Gati Shakti,
has been a forerunner to bring about systemic & effective reforms in
the sector, & has already shown a significant headway. Infrastructure
support to the nation’s manufacturers also remains one of the top
agendas as it will significantly transform goods & exports movement
making freight delivery effective & economical. The "Smart Cities Mission"
& "Housing for All" programmes have benefited from these initiatives.

The Construction Equipment verticals in FY24 viz., YoY Earthmoving
—grew up 21%, Material handling — grew up 61%, Road construction,
Material processing & Concrete equipment grew up 19% & are poised
to grow in line with the many projects announced by the government
in FY25. To meet India’s aim of reaching a USD 5 trillion economy by
2025, infrastructure development is the need of the hour. The government
has launched the National Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP) combined with
other initiatives such as ‘Make in India’ & the production-linked incentives
(PLI) scheme to augment the growth of the infrastructure sector.

The management of your Company is closely tracking these developments
in order to source new business opportunities and make the business
verticals ready to start concentrating on the construction & mining
equipment business. The above strategic initiatives position SIFL amid
India’s promising economic space. SIFL remains committed to focussing
on innovative financing solutions in order to generate long term value
for the shareholders and stakeholders alike through good governance
and adhering to policy compliance.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A. Asset Finance Company

Your Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
as a NBFC-Middle Layer. Your Company had discontinued the
NBFC activities due to establishment of TRA Account and initiation
of CIRP. The Approved Resolution Plan states that your Company
shall resume business as an asset finance company. The
management of your Company under the guidance of the Managing
Director & CEQ is taking steps to resume business in your Company
during the current financial year.

B. Infrastructure Project Advisory
About the Division

The Infrastructure Project Advisory Division of your Company
continues to play a pivotal role in the infrastructure spectrum as
strategic advisors to Central/State Governments, Statutory Bodies,
PSUs and Urban Local Bodies in India and abroad. Your Company
has been offering advisory, consultancy and other allied value
added services from concept to commissioning in different domains
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of Infrastructure — majorly Urban and Industrial precincts. Some
of the significant projects undertaken are given hereunder:

Multilateral Funded Projects/Assignments

Your Company has been a part of the Asian Development Bank
(ADB) funded project for development and preparation of a
comprehensive strategy for integrated urban infrastructure
development in 7 (seven) District Headquarter (DHQ) towns and
13-Urban Local Bodies (ULBs) in Tripura.

Smart City Mission Programme

Your Company has been working as Project Management and
Development Consultant for Smart City projects under Smart City
Mission at Bareilly in Uttar Pradesh.

Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and Urban Transformation (AMRUT):

e As Independent Review and Monitoring Agency (IRMA), your
Company has successfully completed periodic review and
monitoring of projects under AMRUT for Rajasthan cluster
during the year;

e Your Company has been engaged for (i) Creation of Base
Maps for 25 towns and Formulation of GIS based Master Plan
for 8 towns under 2 (two) clusters in West Bengal and (ii)
Creation of Base Maps and Preparation of GIS based Master
plan for 14 towns under 2 (two) clusters in Odisha.

Jal Jeevan Mission (JJM)

As part of the Central Government’s ambitious mission programme
“Jal Jeevan Mission”, your Company has been working as Third
Party Inspection Agency in Kargil District with the objective to
cover maximum possible households under tap water supply.

Food Processing

For the Ministry of Food Processing Industries, Government of
India, your Company has been working as Programme Management
Agency (PMA) for:

e Mega Food Park Scheme to facilitate establishment of Mega
Food Parks in “Cluster” approach for creation of state-of-the-
art support infrastructure in a well-defined agri/horticultural
zone for setting up of modern food processing units;

e The Scheme for creation of infrastructure for Agro Processing
Clusters under the Central Sector Scheme — Kisan Sampada
Yojana which aims at development of modern infrastructure
and common facilities to encourage group of entrepreneurs
to set up food processing units based on cluster approach;

e The Scheme of Creation/Expansion of Food Processing/
Preservative Capacities (CEFPPC) under the Central Sector
Scheme — Scheme for Agro-Marine Produce Processing and
Development of Agro Clusters (SAMPADA).

Tourism

Your Company has been successfully providing Project Management
Consultancy Services for development of Manipur Mega Eco-
tourism Project' in Manipur.

Other Infrastructure Engagements

Your Company continues to work for the following projects in the
Urban Infrastructure domain:

e Project Management Consultant (PMC) for implementation
of 3 (three) specific Sewerage Schemes in Gog;

e Independent Engineer & Auditor for Food Corporation of India
to oversee/supervise setting up of Silos on Design, Build,



Finance, Own & Operate (DBFOO) basis for storage of food
grains at Sangrur in Punjab and Kannauj in Uttar Pradesh.

International Engagements

During the year under review, your Company has successfully
provided Comprehensive Training Services on PPP in Bangladesh
sponsored by the PPP Authority, Govt. of Bangladesh with the aim
of institutionalizing the PPP capacity building program in the
country.

Ushering into a new era of growth and value creation

This FY 2023-24 has been a challenging one for the business owing
to finalization of the Company’s resolution plan wherein the main
focus had been on astute consolidation and focussed cash flow
management — through effective operational management, cost
rationalization. Your Company has since adopted the principle of
maintaining positive bottom-line through “doing more with less”.
As a result, your Company has been able to register robust profit
highlighting operational efficiency. Compared to last fiscal, the
business registered a growth of 46% in its contribution and has
stabilized the business module in the CIRP period. It was able to
secure fresh mandates worth registering a growth of 153% on this
parameter vis-a-vis the earlier fiscal. Under the new leadership and
management, this Division of your Company is pursuing the
consolidation process. Now, with the resolution plan adopted and
new management team taking over, the Division has been able to
retain its self-sustainability model. Further, based on this strategic
approach, this business registered a growth of more than 150%
in new business procurement which has been the essence of
creation of a platform for future growth. Coupled with right mix of
professionals, this business is now geared up to look ahead
with stronger business fundamentals and operational efficacy.

In this fiscal also, your Company continued on its strategic path
that it embarked upon since the initiation of CIRP process which
has led to:

o Effective use of resources with multi-tasking in terms of
delivery and business procurement.

e Initiation of process of treating each project as SBUs in terms
of its P&L.

o More focus on acquiring new mandates.
Looking Forward

The Advisory & Government consulting space appears to be thriving
with opportunities owing to the policies and mission programmes
as adopted/launched by Govt. of India. In recognition of “Cities”
being the “Growth Engines” of India (3% of aggregate land area
of cities contributes to 60% of GDP with rate of Urbanization being
38%), renewed focus on Urban Infrastructure through Smart City
Mission 2.0, AMRUT 2.0, Rental Housing Scheme for Urban Poor
etc. been launched. Further, Government spending in Consultancy
& Advisory domain has been registering robust year on year growth
and it is envisaged that future spending in sectors like Urban
Development, Transport, Highways, Logistics, Railways etc. will
have a direct positive growth & sustainability of this business
domain. Your Company has its strength in its 2 decades of
operational experience, handling of major assignments successfully,
having right mix of professionals to kick start growth along with
a network of partners & associates who are now energized owing
to the Company coming out of CIRP. With future outlook being
positive and cross mapping the business’s strength areas, it is
evident that through right mix of optics, future growth can be
obtained through focusing on: Urban Planning, Urban Development,
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Tourism, Urban Transport, Logistics, Food Processing, Railways,
Civil Aviation, etc.

SREI EQUIPMENT FINANCE LIMITED

Srei Equipment Finance Limited (SEFL), a wholly owned subsidiary of
your Company, the gross profit/(loss) before depreciation, amortization,
impairment, Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under
amortized cost category, Impairment on financial instruments (Net),
Loss/write-off on Repossessed Assets and Assets acquired in satisfaction
of debt and exceptional items, net tax expenses for the year was
¥ (51,836) Lacs as against ¥ (9,06,360) Lacs last year.

Profit/(loss) before taxation for the year was X (7,64,729) Lacs as against
3 (11,21,928) Lacs in the last year.

Net profit/(loss) after taxation for the year was X (7,64,729) Lacs as
against X (11,21,928) Lacs in the last year.

RESOURCES
Private Placement of Equity Shares

In terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, National Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (NARCL), India Debt Resolution Company Limited
(IDRGL) Approving Financial Creditors (as defined in the Approved
Resolution Plan) and Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust (as defined in the
Approved Resolution Plan) have subscribed to 4,60,000 equity shares
having a face value of INR 10/- each, 2,40,000 equity shares having a
face value of INR 10/- each, 2,00,000 equity shares having a face value
of ¥ 10/- each and 1,00,000 equity shares having a face value of INR
10/- each respectively.

The members of the Company have at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting
held on May 7, 2024 approved the restructuring of the Share Capital of
the Company by sub-dividing the existing equity shares into face value
of X 1/- (Rupee One only) per share in place of ¥ 10/- (Rupees Ten
only) per share in terms of the Approved Resolution Plan.

Further, in terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, an amount equivalent
to total outstanding constituting perpetual debt of the Company, and
other liabilities less any recovery pursuant to the Resolution Plan had
been converted into 49,00,06,197 (Forty Nine Crores Six Thousand One
Hundred and Ninety Seven) equity shares having a face value of
% 10/- (Rupees Ten) each, aggregating to ¥ 490,00,61,970/- (Rupees
Four Hundred and Ninety Crores Sixty One Thousand Nine Hundred and
Seventy only) equity shares of the Company and thereafter, cancelled
by way of Capital Reduction.

Moreover in terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, the issued equity
share capital of the Company held by the shareholders of the Company
and any right to subscribe to, or be allocated such equity shares,
including any employee stock options, pre-emptive subscription rights
or convertible instruments held by any person other than the equity
shares held by NARCL, IDRCL, Approving Financial Creditors (“AFCs”)
(as defined in the Approved Resolution Plan) and Kairos ESOP Welfare
Trust (as defined in the Approved Resolution Plan) has been entirely
cancelled and extinguished by way of capital reduction, without payment
of any price to the erstwhile shareholders.

Accordingly, your Company’s present shareholding is of 1,00,00,000
equity shares at ¥ 1/- each amounting to ¥ 1,00,00,000/- (Rupees One
Crore Only) in terms of the Approved Resolution Plan.

Public Issue of Secured and Unsecured Subordinated Redeemable
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs)

During the year under review, your Company has not mobilised any
additional resources through non-convertible debentures (‘NCDs’),
External Commercial Borrowings, Masala Bonds, Subordinate Debt,
Perpetual Debt Instruments (PDI), Bank Borrowings, etc.
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As regards to NCDs issued earlier, as intimated earlier all creditors shall
be paid as per the Approved Resolution Plan.

ESOP TRUST

The Approved Resolution Plan envisaged the creation of SIFL ESOP
Trust and issuance of Equity Shares to SIFL ESOP Trust. Accordingly
a registered trust in the name of Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust has been
established for the benefit of the employees of your Company and its
subsidiaries with Mr. Vishnu Gopal Agarwal, Ms. Romita Singh and
M/s. KP Corporate Solutions Limited as Trustees. 1,00,000 (One Lac)
equity shares of the Company having a face value of INR 1/- each,
aggregating to INR 10,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ten Lacs) is being held
by Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust in accordance with the Approved Resolution
Plan.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The risk policies and procedures of your Company are derived from the
guidance and relevant directives provided from time to time by the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) applicable for designated classifications
of Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFCs) that your Company is
included in and other regulatory authorities and continuously bench
marked with industries best practices.

Your Company’s risk management strategies are well defined to identify,
measure and mitigate various risks associated with the operating
business module, adherence assessment procedures followed with
continuous monitoring.

Risk management continues to be an important area of your Company’s
operations especially in an environment which is characterized by
increasing uncertainties like pandemic, changes in operational procedures
owing to market alignment, etc.

The risk strategy of your Company is enunciated and overseen by the
Risk Management Committee, an independent Committee that strives
to put in place specific policies, frameworks and systems for effectively
managing the various risks. Policies approved from time to time by the
Board of Directors or the Risk Management Committee in consultation
with other Committees, viz. the Asset Liability Management Committee
(ALCOQ), constitutes the governing framework for various types of risk
and business activities undertaken within this policy framework.

Your Company is striving to manage its risks in a proactive manner
and has put in place a Risk Management Policy for comprehensive
coverage of Risks and adopted structured approach to risk management
by developing and implementing risk management framework. While
the earlier policies have been continued to be in effect, Board is in the
process of reviewing & approving all the Policies including Credit Risk,
Operational Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity Risk, IT Risk etc.

In addition, to managing operational risk prudently, ‘Know Your Customer’
(KYC) and ‘Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Policy’ are in place, which
helps to prevent your Company from being used intentionally or
unintentionally by criminal elements for money laundering.

Your Company’s has its Data Center (DC) on AWS (Amazon Web
Services) Cloud. As part of the implemented policies in AWS, automated
AMI (Amazon Machine Image) backups are performed for all application
and database servers. Such backups are periodically restored to check
their usability. Servers can be restored from the AMIs in case of a
disaster.

Information/Cyber Security risks include the risks arising from
unauthorized access, use, disclosure, disruption, modification or
destruction of information or information systems, including the
probability of exposure or loss resulting from a cyber-attack or data
breach on the Company. Your Company has put in place an Information
Security & Cyber Security Policy to establish a robust Information
Security Risk Management Framework.
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Your Company has implemented endpoint, email & web security solutions
to detect & prevent security threats at various levels.

Your Company’s Cyber Security Operations Centre (C-SOC) continues
to monitor and improve its security posture while preventing, detecting,
analyzing and responding to cyber security incidents. Your Company
has not yet experienced any material losses relating to cyber-attacks.

Your Company also conducts periodic training to increase user awareness
about different facets of information/cyber security.

HUMAN RESOURCES ACTIVITIES

The completion of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)
was a milestone achievement, bolstering our commitment to financial
stability and fostering avenues for future growth. The Financial Year
2023-24 witnessed the infusion of new investment which revitalized
company operations, introduced innovative working methodologies,
and substantially elevated morale and motivation throughout the
organization.

The strategic reorganization has resulted in a more streamlined, dynamic,
and agile operational structure, proving to be exceedingly beneficial in
navigating the contemporary business climate. Regular town hall
meetings played a critical role in maintaining an informed, reassured,
and confident internal stakeholder base, managed with the utmost
professionalism. The leadership's flexibility and the collaborative efforts
led by the C-suite team instilled a constant sense of positivity, revival,
and rejuvenation across all levels and grades, reinforcing faith in the
potential for a turnaround and a bright future focused on recovery and
new business development.

During the year, new initiatives such as the introduction of a Quarterly
Staff Welfare Fund and revisions in conveyance claims for Feet on Street
staff were implemented. These were complemented by role enrichment
opportunities and the introduction of flexible working hours and work-
from-home options for those with dire need of support on medical
grounds, further supported our staff during these times. The organization
also took care of financial incentives; even during the CIRP, increments
and incentives were awarded, highlighting our commitment to employee
welfare. Other benefits included the bearing of Group Mediclaim premiums
by the organization, the provision of a holiday home facility for staff at
subsidized rates, and the establishment of an Emergency Medical Corpus
for staff.

The philosophy of our Company this year was encapsulated by the
principle, “Empower and Gonnect: Building a Unified Workforce.” A
diverse array of staff engagement activities were rolled out, significantly
boosting employee morale and fostering a collaborative spirit across
departments. These initiatives extended beyond professional spheres,
involving employees in philanthropic efforts and creating a stress-free
workplace where individuals felt valued and engaged.

A resolute commitment to diversity and inclusion remained a guiding
principle of our HR strategy. International Women's Day was prominently
celebrated, acknowledging and appreciating the contributions of our
women employees at all levels of the organization. The health of our
employees and their families was prioritized as the greatest asset.
Comprehensive health check-ups and wellness workshops were
conducted throughout the year, reflecting our commitment to the holistic
well-being of our workforce.

A thorough reassessment of internal policies was undertaken to enhance
compliance and risk mitigation. Management meet-ups underscored
our on-going commitment to operational sustainability. A renewed focus
was placed on building in-house capabilities to adapt to new business
models and operational enhancements. Although the Learning and
Development (L&D) initiatives last year were limited, the Company
remains committed to leveraging technology to expand reach, speed,



and scope, significantly contributing to operational efficiencies. The
team ensured and achieved full compliance with all mandatory regulatory
training requirements through our robust e-learning platforms.

Throughout the year, the HR team emphasized providing timely and
effective support to each employee, fostering a culture of resilience and
wellness. The HR Business Partner team played a crucial role in
maintaining open lines of communication, ensuring that the workforce
was connected, supported, and heard.

Further, pursuant to the Approved Resolution Plan, since the Company
would be spearheading the new business activities, it was proposed to
transfer specific employees from Srei Equipment Finance Limited
(‘SEFL’), wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to the Company in
a phased manner.

Based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Board has approved the transfer of specific employees
from Srei Equipment Finance Limited (SEFL) to the Company and the
revised Organisation Structure of the Company. Accordingly, certain
specific employees have been transferred from SEFL to your Company.

In this moment of reflecting on the past year, it is clear that the focus
on human capital has not only sustained but also enriched the corporate
ecosystem, instilling a profound sense of pride and belonging among
the employees. The HR team’s dedication to excellence and strategic
initiatives has been central to the organization’s achievements and will
continue to drive success in the upcoming years.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Information Technology plays a pivotal role in your Company’s journey.
Your Company continues to leverage its technology to implement a
resilient and secure infrastructure.

Your Company manages a variety of risks that can significantly affect
its performance and ability to meet the expectations of its customers,
regulators and other stakeholders. In the past year, your Company’s
focus has primarily been on maintaining & optimizing the existing IT
infrastructure. While significant new developments have been limited,
it has been ensured that the IT systems continue to support the operations
effectively & securely.

The primary objective of your Company has been to ensure the stability
& reliability of its IT systems. Regular maintenance & support activities,
including routine updates, patch management and system performance
monitoring have been carried out to ensure that the IT systems remain
operational & efficient. Your Company has continued to prioritize data
security & compliance with regulatory standards.

Your Company runs regular awareness campaigns to educate its
employees regarding the various aspects of Information Security,
through various modes like periodic advisories and online trainings.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND AUDIT

Your Company’s vision, mission and core values have laid the foundation
for internal controls. On the administrative control side, your Company
has a proper reporting structure, oversight Committees and rigorous
performance appraisal system to ensure checks and balances. On the
financial control side, your Company has in place segregation of duties
and reporting mechanism to deter and detect misstatements in financial
reporting.

Your Company’s internal control system is commensurate with the
nature of its business and the size and complexity of its operations and
ensures compliance with policies and procedures. The Internal Control
Systems are being constantly updated with new as well as revised
Standard Operating Procedures.
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Your Company has an Internal Audit Department, which provides
comprehensive audit coverage of functional areas and operations of
your Company to examine the adequacy of and compliance with policies,
procedures, statutory and regulatory requirements.

Your Company has a dedicated and independent Internal Audit Department
which is accountable to the Audit Committee of the Board. The purpose,
scope, authority and responsibility of the Internal Audit Department are
delineated in the Risk Based Internal Audit Policy approved by the
Board/Audit Committee of the Board. Internal Audit Department influences
and facilitates improvements in the control environment by constantly
evaluating the internal control systems. Significant deviations are brought
to the notice of the Audit Committee/Board. Status of compliances of
audit observations and follow up actions taken thereon are reported to
the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates adequacy and effectiveness of your Company’s internal control
environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations.

Further, in accordance with the regulatory guidelines, your Company’s
Internal Financial Controls (IFC) have been reviewed and actions have
been taken to strengthen financial reporting and overall risk management
procedures. Further, an Information System (IS) Audit of the internal
information technology (IT) systems and processes is conducted
at least once in a year to assess IT risks faced by your Company.

Based on the internal audit report, process owners undertake corrective
action in their respective areas. All these measures help in maintaining
a healthy internal control environment.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company has in place a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
(CSR Policy), as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 which,
inter-alia lays down the guidelines and mechanisms for undertaking
socially useful projects for welfare and sustainable development of the
Community at large. The said policy is available at the website of the
Company at https://www.srei.com/sifl_corporate policies/Corporate_
Social_Responsibility_CSR_Policy.pdf.

During the Financial Year 2020-21, your Company had sanctioned
contribution of ¥ 78,15,000/- (Rupees Seventy Eight Lacs and Fifteen
Thousand only) for disbursement to various entities. However, as on
March 31, 2021, your Company could disburse an amount of
¥ 24,95,000/- (Rupees Twenty Four Lacs and Ninety Five Thousand
only), being 0.66 per cent of the average net profits of last 3 (three)
immediate Financial Years preceding Financial Year 2020-21, towards
CSR activities pursuant to CSR Policy of your Company. The balance
sanctioned amount of ¥ 53,20,000/- (Rupees Fifty Three Lacs and
Twenty Thousand only) could not be disbursed till March 31, 2021 due
to the establishment of Trust and Retention Account (TRA) whereby all
the business payments of your Company were being controlled by the
Bankers and your Company had no control on the cash flows. Several
requests were made to the Bankers to disburse the aforesaid amount
as committed to the concerned entities. However, the Bankers did not
disburse the entire sanctioned amount. Thereafter, the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of your Company commenced
from October 8, 2021 pursuant to which your Company was further
unable to disburse the balance sanctioned amount of ¥ 53,20,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Three Lacs and Twenty Thousand only). Furthermore, due
to the on-going CIRP, your Company did not sanction any further
contribution towards CSR activities. Your Company is however committed

Annual Report 2023-24 | 13




$REI

to remain a socially responsible organization supporting the national
aspirations and missions.

Further, in terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, the aforesaid payment
has been waived off. Accordingly, your Company does not have to make
any payment arising of the aforesaid obligations.

SREI WEBSITE

The website of your Company www.srei.com has been developed on
the new responsive technology based platform known as ‘Laravel’,
ensuring uniform display across all devices like mobile, tablet, desktop
etc. and all the operating systems. The website has an inbuilt sophisticated
and customized content management system for easy change in content.
A simple, improved navigation system needs a lesser number of clicks
to reach the information available in the different sections of the website.
The contemporary and smart look of the website ensures a customer
centric approach catering to the requirements of prospective customers,
investors and employees. The website carries a comprehensive database
of information of interest to the investors including regulatory disclosures,
financial results, financial products, corporate codes and policies,
corporate presentations, stock exchange intimation and business
activities of your Company and the services rendered by your Company.
The customers can also download essential documents directly from
the website.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Statement in Form AOC-1 containing the salient features of the

financial statement of your Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to first
proviso to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with
Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, forms part of the
Annual Report. Further, in line with Section 129(3) of the Act read with
the aforesaid Rules, and in accordance with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS Rules) read with Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Consolidated Financial Statements
prepared by your Company includes the financial information of its
subsidiary companies.

A Report on the performance and financial position of each of the
subsidiaries included in the Consolidated Financial Statements prepared
by your Company as per Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, forms part of the annual accounts of each of the subsidiary
companies and also forms part of Form AOC-1. The said Report is not
repeated here for the sake of brevity. Members interested in obtaining
a copy of the annual accounts of the subsidiaries may write to the
Company Secretary at the email id investor.relations@srei.com.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited
financial statements, including the consolidated financial statements
and related information of your Company and audited accounts of
each of its subsidiaries, are available on your Company’s website
Www.Srei.com.

Highlights of the performance of subsidiaries and their contribution to
the overall performance of your Company during the period under report
are given below:

Name of the Subsidiary/Associate

Srei Capital Markets Limited

Srei Asset Leasing Limited

(Formerly Srei Finance Limited)

Bengal Srei Infrastructure Development Limited
Controlla Electrotech Private Limited

Srei Mutual Fund Trust Private Limited

Srei Mutual Fund Asset Management Private Limited
Srei Insurance Broking Private Limited

Srei Equipment Finance Limited (SEFL)

Turnover/Total  Profit After Tax % Contribution % Contribution

Income for the (PAT) for the on Turnover/  on PAT for the

Financial Year  Financial Year Total Income for Financial Year

ended ended the Financial ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2024 Year ended 31.03.2024
(X in Lacs) (X in Lacs) 31.03.2024

8.12 (21.19) 0.01 (0.00)

8.18 6.94 0.01 0.00

5.46 (0.81) 0.01 0.00

436.15 (44.37) 0.59 0.00

0.27 (0.22) 0.00 0.00

78.63 1.20 0.11 0.00

222.54 (247.64) 0.30 0.00

72,750.00  (7,64,729.00) 98.36 0.00

*The Company has not received the Board approved Financial Statements from Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Limited (TAIML) and its two step down
subsidiaries viz., Hyderabad Information Technology Ventures Enterprises Limited and Cyberabad Trustee Company Private Limited for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024 and accordingly the Financial Statement of these three Companies has not been considered for consolidation as on March 31, 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION

During the Year under review the following material changes affecting
the Financial Position of your Company had taken place in terms of the
Approved Resolution Plan:

>  Delisting of Securities of your Company;

> Extinguishment of Liabilities and Reduction of Share Capital of
your Company;
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> Reconstitution of the Board of your Company;
> Transfer of 122 employees to the Company; and
> Application for conversion of your Company from IFC to ICC.

Each of the abovementioned points have been covered in detail in this
report hence, the same is not repeated here for the sake of brevity.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs)

The following executives of your Company are whole-time Key Managerial



Personnel (KMPs) in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51)
read with Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 as on the date of
this report:

Name Designation

Mr. Hardayal Prasad* Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Manoj Kumar** Company Secretary & CCO
Mr. Vishnu Gopal Agarwal# Chief Financial Officer

*Mr. Hardayal Prasad has been appointed as the Managing Director &
CEO of the Company w.e.f. April 15, 2024.

**Mr. Manoj Kumar was appointed as the Company Secretary w.e.f.
April 1, 2021 and was later appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
(CFO) of the Gompany w.e.f. December 8, 2021. Further, Mr. Kumar
was appointed as the CCO of the Company w.e.f. December 01, 2023
accordingly, ceased be a GFO w.e.f. December 01, 2023.

#Mr. Vishnu Gopal Agarwal was appointed as the GFO of the Company
w.e.f. December 01, 2023.

Mr. Syed Faisal Aquil was appointed as the Manager of the Company
w.e.f. November 30, 2023. Further, Mr. Aquil ceased to be the Manager
of the Company w.e.f. April 15, 2024,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of your Company have constituted a Nomination
and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 at its meeting held on February
26, 2024. The Committee was further re-constituted on May 28, 2024.
The Committee presently comprises of Mr. Sunil Srivastav as the
Chairman and Mr. N. Sivaraman, Mr. P Santhosh and Mr. Avinash
Kulkarni as its members. Mr. Manoj Kumar, Company Secretary & CCO
of your Company acts as the Secretary to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The Terms of Reference of the Committee
has been provided in the Corporate Governance Section forming part
of this Report.

1 (one) meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
your Company was held during the year 2023-24 on March 27, 2024.
Another meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
held on June 05, 2024.

The Committee has formulated the Nomination and Remuneration
Policy (‘Nomination and Remuneration Policy’) which broadly laid down
the various principles of remuneration being well-balanced and
performance-related compensation package taking into account
shareholder interests, industry standards and relevant Indian corporate
regulations, to ensure that the interests of executives are aligned with
the business strategy and risk tolerance, objectives, values and long-
term interests of the Company and consistent with the "pay-for-
performance" principle and to ensure that remuneration to executives
of the Company involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the Company and its goals.

The said Policy was last revised by the Board of Directors of your
Company at its meeting held on June 5, 2024 and is available on your
Company’s website at www. srei.com.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY (VIGIL MECHANISM)

Your Company has formulated a codified Whistle Blower Policy
incorporating the provisions relating to Vigil Mechanism in terms of
Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Scale Based Regulation
(SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs’ dated October 22,
2021 issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘SBR’), to formulate a whistle
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blower mechanism for directors and employees to report genuine
concerns Your Company is committed to adhere to highest possible
standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct and to open
communication and to provide necessary safeguards for protection of
employees from reprisals or victimization, for whistle blowing in good
faith.

The said Policy as approved by the Board is available on your Company’s
website at https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies/Whistle_
Blower_Policy.pdf.

A Whistle blower committee is in place that reviews all matters and
guides the management to implement the relevant guidelines in true
spirit and keep a vigil.

Further, no complaints were reported under the Vigil Mechanism during
the Financial Year 2023-24.

POLICY AGAINST SEXUAL AND WORKPLACE HARASSMENT

Your Company is committed to provide and promote a safe, healthy
and congenial atmosphere irrespective of gender, caste, creed or social
class of the employees. Your Company in its endeavour to provide a
safe and healthy work environment for all its employees has developed
a policy to ensure zero tolerance towards verbal, physical, psychological
conduct of a sexual nature by any employee or stakeholder that directly
or indirectly harasses, disrupts or interferes with another employee’s
work performance or creates an intimidating, offensive or hostile
environment such that each employee can realize his/her maximum
potential.

Your Company has put in place a ‘Policy on Prevention of Sexual
Harassment’ as per The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Policy is meant
to sensitize the employees about their fundamental right to have
safe and healthy environment at workplace. As per the Policy, any
employee may report his/her complaint to the Internal Complaints
Committee constituted for this purpose. The said Policy is available on
your Company’s website at https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies/
Policy_on_Prevention_of_Sexual_Harassment.pdf.

Your Company affirms that during the year under review adequate
access was provided to any complainant who wished to register a
complaint under the Policy and that your Company has complied with
the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the year, your Company has not received any complaint on
sexual harassment from any of the employees of your Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Your Company is exempted from the applicability of the provisions of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as your
Company is engaged in the business of financing of companies or of
providing infrastructural facilities.

Details of the investments made by your Company are given in Note
No. 5 in the Notes to accounts forming part of the audited (standalone)
financial statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Annual Return of your Company is available at
Www.srei.com.
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

All the related party transactions of your Company are entered in the
ordinary course of business and are on arm’s length basis and are in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
There are no materially significant transactions entered into by your
Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
(KMPs), which have potential conflict with the interest of your Company
at large. Your Company has not entered into any material related party
transactions with any of its related parties during the Financial Year
2023-24. Members may refer to the notes to the financial statements
for details of related party transactions.

Since all related party transactions entered into by your Company were
in the ordinary course of business and were on an arm’s length
basis, Form AOC-2 is not applicable to your Company. The related party
transactions are entered into based on considerations of various business
exigencies, such as synergy in operations, sectorial specialisation and
your Company’s long-term strategy for sectorial investments, optimisation
of market share, profitability, legal requirements, liquidity and capital
resources of subsidiaries.

In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 your Company
obtained approval of the Audit Committee for entering into any transaction
with related parties as applicable. A statement of all related party
transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on a quarterly
basis, specifying the nature, value, terms and conditions of the
transactions.

A Related Party Policy has been formulated by your Company for
determining the materiality of transactions with related parties
and dealings with them. The said Policy is available on your Company's
website at https://www.srei.com/ sifl-corporatepolicies/Related_Party_
Transactions_(RPTs)_Policy.pdf.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and
Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment
Rules, 2016 forms part of this Report.

However, as per first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and second
proviso of Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Report and Financial
Statements are being sent to the Members of your Company excluding
the said statement. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of the
said statement may write to the Company Secretary at the Registered
Office of your Company.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTFLOW

Your Company has no activity relating to Conservation of Energy and
Technology Absorption as stipulated in Rule 8(3) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, your Company uses information
technology extensively in its operations and also continues its endeavour
to improve energy conservation and utilisation, safety and environment.

During the year under review, the total foreign exchange earnings and
expenditure of your Company was X Nil and  Nil, respectively (previous
year X Nil and X Nil, respectively).

CREDIT RATINGS

Credit rating agencies have taken cognizance of various factors, mainly
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continuing delays in debt servicing, significant losses incurred, cash
flow mismatch and erosion of net worth of the Company etc. and hence
Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd. has reaffirmed the rating assigned to
Perpetual Debt Instrument (PDI) of your Company to "BWR D Reaffirmed
Issuer not cooperating” on June 13, 2022.

DETAILS OF TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED AMOUNTS AND SHARES TO
THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

As per Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company is
required to transfer the amount lying in the unpaid dividend account,
for 7 years, to the Investor Education Protection Fund (“IEPF”). However,
pursuant to the Order dated October 8, 2021 passed by the Hon’ble
NCLT, Kolkata, CIRP had been initiated for your Company and in
adherance with the General Circular No. 08/2020 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated March 6, 2020 captioned "Filing of
forms in the Registry (MCA-21) by the Insolvency Professional (Interim
Resolution Professional (IRP) or Resolution Professional (RP) or
Liquidator) appointed under Insolvency Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC,
2016)" which states that in respect of companies which are marked
under CIRP in the Registry, Annual Return (e-form No.MGT-7) and
Financial Statement (e-form AOC-4) and other documents under the
provisions of the Act, in accordance with directions issued by the
NCLT/NCLAT/Courts, shall be filed as attachments with e-form GNL-2
against the payment of one time normal fee only, till such time the
Company remains under CIRP, the Company had filed IEPF-1, IEPF-2
and |EPF-4, as an attachment of eform GNL-2. However, since the
GNL-2 form is not linked with IEPF-1, IEPF-2 and IEPF-4, the Company
was unable to generate the individual SRN’s for payment to IEPF
authorities. Due to said technical difficulty the Company was unable to
transfer the unpaid and unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to the
Financial Year 2014-15 and 2015-16 under the provisions of Section
125 & other applicable provisions of the Act. The Company had
approached the Registrar of Companies and IEPF for their guidance.

Further, the Hon’ble NCLT vide its Order dated August 11, 2023 had
approved the Resolution Plan submitted by National Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (NARCL) with respect to the Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process of the Company under Section 31 of the Code, upon
the approval of the Order the CIRP against the Company ended. The
Company once again re-initiated the filing of the independent IEPF
eforms and amounts pertaining to the Financial Year 2014-15 i.e.
% 4,84,877/- and 2015-16 i.e. ¥ 4,88,973.50/- respectively, were
transferred to the designated bank account of IEPF authorities. A total
1,15,350 number of shares pertaning to the Financial Year 2014-15
were also transferred to the IEPF.

Please note that the Company was unable to transfer the shares pertaining
to the Financial Year 2015-16, as on the date of the transfer of the said
shares to IEPF, the shares were cancelled/extinguished, i.e. the shares
of the existing shareholders were nullified pursuant to the implementation
of the Approved Resolution Plan. Post which the shares were allotted
to the Resolution Applicants, AFC’s and ESOP Trust.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of your Company has been constituted in line with
the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee
was re-constituted by the Board of Directors of your Company at their
meeting held on February 26, 2024 and was further re-constituted
on May 28, 2024. The Audit Committee presently comprises of
Mr. N. Sivaraman as the Chairman and Mr. Sunil Srivastav, Ms. Anuradha
Mitra and Mr. Avinash Kulkarni as its members.



Mr. Manoj Kumar, Company Secretary & CCO of your Company acts
as the Secretary to the Audit Committee. The Terms of Reference of
the Audit Committee has been provided in the Corporate Governance
Section forming part of this Report.

1 (one) meeting of the Audit Committee was held on June 5, 2024.

Further, in case of exigencies or urgency of matters, resolutions are
passed by circulation.

During the year under review, there were no such instances wherein
the Board had not accepted any recommendation of the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

At the 38th AGM held on September 30, 2023, S. K. Agrawal and Co.,
Chartered Accountants LLP, having firm Registration No.
306033E/E300272 allotted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAl), were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company to
hold office for a term of 1 (One) year from the conclusion of 38th AGM
till the conclusion of the 39th AGM of your Company.

Hence, the current Statutory Auditors S. K. Agrawal and Co., Chartered
Accountants LLP, having firm Registration No. 306033E/E300272 shall
cease to hold office with the conclusion of the ensuing AGM. However,
since S. K. Agrawal and Co., Chartered Accountants LLP are eligible
they are being recommended for appointment as the Statutory Auditors
of your Company from the conclusion of 39th AGM till the conclusion
of 41st AGM.

Members are requested to consider their appointment as Statutory
Auditors of your Company to hold office from the conclusion of 39th
AGM until the conclusion of 41st AGM of the Company by way of
passing of an ordinary resolution.

S. K. Agrawal and Co., Chartered Accountants LLP have confirmed their
eligibility, qualifications and other requirements of the Auditors as
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and a certificate to this effect has
also been furnished by them along with their consent to hold office as
the Statutory Auditors of your Company. Your Company has received
a confirmation from S. K. Agrawal and Co., Chartered Accountants LLP
to the effect that their appointment as the Statutory Auditors of your
Company, if made, would be within the limit prescribed under Section
141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and further that they are not disqualified
to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors in terms of Sections 139 and
141 of the Act. The proposed Statutory Auditors hold a valid peer review
certificate.

AUDITORS REPORT

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on June 05,
2024 thereafter adjourned and held on June 06, 2024 have inter-alia,
considered and taken on record the Ind AS Audited Financial Results
(Standalone & Consolidated) of your Company for Financial Year ended
March 31, 2024, in compliance with Section 129 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Ind AS as per the provisions of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The Report of the Statutory Auditors to the Members for the Financial
Year under review contains Qualified opinion Report on the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and unmodified Report on Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2024. Further, the Statutory Auditors have drawn attention to few
matters in their Auditors’ Report on the Audited Standalone and
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2024. The same forms a part of the Statutory
Auditors’ Report and are given in the notes to accounts which are self-
explanatory, the same is not repeated here for the sake of brevity.

Statutory Reports

CORPORATE POLICIES

The details of Policies adopted by your Company along with salient
features are provided as annexure to this Report and forms part of this
Annual Report.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on policy
and strategy apart from other Board business. However, in case of a
special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval is taken by
passing resolutions through circulation, as permitted by law, which are
confirmed in the subsequent Board meeting.

The Board of the Company was reconstituted on February 26, 2024 and
held its first meeting after its re-constitution on February 26, 2024. The
maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings did not
exceed 120 (one hundred twenty) days. Further, two Board Meetings
were held on April 05, 2024 and June 05 2024, which was adjourned
and held on June 06, 2024.

DIRECTORS

During the year under review, the Board of your Company was
reconstituted in terms of the approved resolution plan by appointment
of Mr. Avinash Kulkarni (DIN: 02982164) and Mr. P. Santhosh
(DIN: 08515964) as Nominee Directors and Mr. N. Sivaraman
(DIN: 00001747), Independent Director.

Mr. Sunil Srivastav (DIN: 00237561) and Ms. Anuradha Mitra
(DIN: 00123320) were appointed as Independent Director(s) of your
Company to hold office for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years from
the date of the Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of your Company
held on May 07, 2024. In this regard, your Company issued formal
letter(s) of appointment to the said Directors stating inter alia the terms
and conditions of their appointment.

Based on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, the Board of Directors of your Company further appointed
Mr. Hardayal Prasad (DIN: 08024303) as a Non-Executive and
Non-Independent Director of your Gompany liable to retire by rotation
to hold office as such upto the date of 39th (Thirty Ninth) Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of your Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 152, 196, 197, 198, 203
read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the relevant Rules and your Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hardayal Prasad (DIN: 08024303) has been appointed
as the Managing Director & CEO of your Company for a period of
3 (Three) years with effect from 15th April, 2024 at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of your Company held on May 7, 2024.

Mr. Hardayal Prasad (DIN: 08024303) retires by rotation at the ensuing
AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board
of Directors of your Company recommends his re-appointment as
Director of your Company.

Your Company has received declaration from each of the Independent
Directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that he/she
meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and that he/she is not aware of any circumstance
or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could
impair or impact his/her ability to discharge his/her duties with an
objective independent judgment and without any external influence. All
requisite declarations were placed before the Board.

Further, pursuant to Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2019 (“the Rules”) effective from
December 01, 2019, the Independent Directors of your Company have
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registered themselves with the Databank maintained by the Indian
Institute of Corporate Affairs (IICA) and their names presently stands
included in the Databank of [ICA. A declaration to this effect has been
obtained from all the Independent Directors and the same was presented
before the Board of Directors. Further, the Independent Directors of
your Company have also furnished declarations w.r.t. Online Proficiency
Self-Assessment Test for Independent Director’s Databank conducted
by the 1ICA. Based on the declarations received, it was noted that Ms.
Anuradha Mitra and Mr. N. Sivaraman are exempted from undertaking
the Online Proficiency Self-Assessment Test. Further, Mr. Sunil Srivastav
has successfully qualified the test.

Further, based on the core skills/expertise/competencies of the present
Board Members as reviewed by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and the Board, the Board of Directors of your Company is
of the opinion that the Independent Directors of your Company possess
the requisite expertise and experience (including proficiency) and
are the persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfil the conditions
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder
and are independent of the management.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL EVENTS AND ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS

I.  The Hon’ble NCLT vide its Order dated August 11, 2023 had
approved the Resolution Plan submitted by National Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (NARCL) with respect to the
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the Companies under
Section 31 of the Code. With the passing of the order by the Hon’ble
NCLT, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process against your
Company ended.

Il. Receipt of Notice for Inspection U/S 206 of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Company is in receipt of a Notice of MCA inspection u/s 206
of the Companies Act, 2013 vide letter Ref. No. File No. 1/60/2018/
CL-1l (ER) dated April 18, 2023.

The Company has submitted its reply.

lll. The Company has received a letter dated June 15, 2023, from
Serious Fraud Investigation officer (SFIO) w.r.t., investigation into
the affairs of Gujarat NRE Coke Limited u/s 212 of the Companies
Act, 2013 calling for information u/s 217(2).

The Company has submitted its reply.

INSTANCES OF FRAUD DETECTED IN THE MATERIAL WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Administrator had appointed BDO India LLP (BDO/Transaction
Auditor) to review transactions of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiary, qualified under Sections 43 to 51, and Sections 65 and 66
of the Code. Accordingly, the Administrator of the Company received
a report from the Transaction Auditor, indicating that there are certain
transactions which are allegedly fraudulent in nature as per Section 66
of the Code.

On the basis of the findings and observations of the Transaction Auditor
necessary reports and intimation with the Reserve Bank of India and
the Stock Exchanges were filed. Accordingly, applications have also
been filed before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata
Bench in respect of the alleged fraud.

Re-statement of accounts of subsidiary

SIFL has not received Board approved financial results of 01 subsidiary,
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viz. Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Limited and 02 subsidiaries
of Trinity (step down subsidiaries of SIFL), viz. Hyderabad Information
Technology Venture Enterprises Limited and Cyberabad Trustee Company
Private Limited for the quarters ended June 30, 2022, September 30,
2022, December 31, 2022, March 31, 2023, year ended March 31, 2023
and for the Year ended March 31, 2024 despite written request and
follow ups and accordingly, the financial statements of these companies
have not been considered for consolidation as on March 31, 2023 and
March 31, 2024. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2024 are not comparable with the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. We are unable
to comment on the possible impact of the same on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 or any other
consequences arising out of such non-compliance on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended March 31, 2024 contain the unaudited financial statements of
1 subsidiary, viz. Trinity and two subsidiaries of Trinity (step down
subsidiaries of SIFL), viz. Hyderabad Information Technology Venture
Enterprises Limited and Cyberabad Trustee Company Private Limited
since the report and audited accounts were not received within
the annual account approval date of SIFL. The management of these
subsidiaries had not provided audited financial statements of these
aforesaid companies despite many reminders and accordingly, the
financial statements of these subsidiaries were considered for
consolidation based on the approved and certified financial statements
provided by the management of the respective companies.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with SS-1 i.e. Secretarial Standard on
Meetings of the Board of Directors and SS-2 i.e. Secretarial Standard
on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

GREEN INITIATIVE

Section 136 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder allows the
Company to send its Financial Statements by electronic mode to such
Members whose shareholding is in dematerialized format and whose
email addresses are registered with the Depositories for communication
purposes. Members who have not updated their email address with the
Depositories are requested to register the updated email ID. In compliance
with the circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in this
regard, the Notice of the AGM including the Annual Report of the
Company is being sent only through electronic mode to all the Members
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Depositories. A copy
of this Annual Report is also available on the website of the Company,
WWWw.Srei.com.

BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(Act), your Board of Directors to the best of their knowledge and ability
confirm that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

(i) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of your Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit
and loss of your Company for the year;



(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 on a going concern basis;

(v) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws to your Company and the systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

Your Company has complied with all applicable provisions of the
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (ICSI) on Board Meetings and General Meetings.

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Your Board states that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect
of the following items as there were no transactions on these items
during the year under review:

> Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting
or otherwise;

Issue of sweat equity shares;

Your Company does not have any scheme of provision of money
for the purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees
for the benefit of employees;

/ Statutory Reports

»  There was no revision in the Financial Statements;

> There was no change in the nature of business;

» Maintenance of Cost records is not applicable to your Company.
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Report On Corporate Governance

Good Corporate Governance is not simply a phrase but the hallmark of
every global organisation that enthrals stakeholders and the likes.
Combined with multi-disciplinary practices, efficient business functions,
codes of ethics and compliance, an organisation’s strengths grow from
pillar to pillar owing to effective control and management ultimately
leading to sustainable increased value and growth. Corporate Governance
plays a very imperative role in assisting the differentiation between a
good organisation and an extraordinary organisation because legal
compliance is mandatory and stipulated whereas sound corporate
governance is rare skillset.

At Srei, our focus remains in our incessant attempts to congregate our
shareholders with their expectations through organisational goals. For
more than three decades now, our trait continues to be transparency,
compliance and governance. Srei is committed to the adherence of
global standards of Corporate Governance practices year on year. We
strongly believe that the management is merely the trustee of the
shareholders’ capital and not the owner and therefore, prime significance
is given to shareholder interests in all our policies keeping in mind
compliance and governance.

Corporate Governance is not a destination but a journey for constantly
improving sustainable value creation along with legal compliance, which
Srei firmly believes in. It is due to this rationale that in addition to
complying with mandatory statutory requirements, Srei implements

effective governance practices, which are continuously helping improve
transparency, disclosures, internal controls and promotion of ethics at
work place.

The Company being a NBFC — Middle Layer (NBFC — ML) is in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Requirements as provided in the Master
Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated 19™ October, 2023 and
updated from time to time (‘Master Directions’).

The Chairman of the Board is a non-executive Director. The Company
currently has six non-executive Directors of which one is a Managing
Director & CEOQ, two are nominee Directors and three are independent
Directors, including one woman Director. The Company is compliant
with the applicable provisions of the Master Directions pertaining to
the composition of the Board and the committees thereof in addition
to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board functions either as a full board or through various committees
constituted to oversee specific operational areas.

. Composition of the Board*

The Board of your Company has been re-constituted w.e.f. February
26, 2024 accordingly, the details of composition of Board as on March
31, 2024 is given hereunder:

SI| Nameofthe | Director | Capacity DIN |No. of Board Meeting | No. of other Remuneration No. of
No. Director Since since re-constitution | Directorship Salary and other | Sitting fees | Commission :::";Z;?h“lg
Held | Attended compensation for| forthe FY | forthe FY oo oo oo
the FY 2023-24 | 2023-24 2023-24 held in the
Company
1. | Mr. N. Sivaraman | February |Independent| 00001747 1 1 10 - 1,00,000/- - -
26, 2024 | Director
2. | Mr. Avinash Kulkarni | February | Nominee 02982164 1 1 2 - - - -
26, 2024 | Director
3. [Mr. P. Santhosh February | Nominee 08515964 1 1 2 1 1,00,000/- - -
26, 2024 | Director
4. [ Mr. Sunil Srivastav | February |Independent | 00237561 1 1 6 1 1,00,000/- - -
26, 2024 | Director

*Ms. Anuradha Mitra was appointed as an Independent Director and Mr. Hardayal Prasad was appointed as Non-Executive and Non Independent Director w.e.f.

April 05, 2024.

Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year:

Since the Board of your Company was superseded by the RBI press release dated October 04, 2021, the Company did not have any Directors as

on March 2023.

Further, the constitution of Board as on March 2024 is given hereunder:

SI. No.  Name of the Director Capacity Nature of Change Effective Date
1. Mr. Sivaram Narayanaswami Independent Director Appointment 26.02.2024
2. Mr. Sunil Srivastav Independent Director Appointment 26.02.2024
3. Mr. Avinash Kulkarni Nominee Director Appointment 26.02.2024
4. Mr. P. Santhosh Nominee Director Appointment 26.02.2024

*Ms. Anuradha Mitra was appointed as an Independent Director and Mr. Hardayal Prasad was appointed as Non-Executive and Non Independent Director w.e.f.

April 05, 2024.
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Il. Committees of the Board and their composition

In terms of the Master Directions and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has re-constituted the following Board-level
committees:

1. Audit Committee;
Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

IT Strategy Committee of the Board; and

> L™

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

1. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee was re-constituted on February 26, 2024 and further re-constituted by the Board through resolution by circulation approved
on May 28, 2024. The current constitution of the Audit Committee is as follows:

SI. | Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No.of shares
No. Committee since Committee since 26.02.24 till held in the
31.03.2024 Company
Held Attended
1. | Mr. N. Sivaraman February 26, 2024 | Independent Director, Chairperson - NA -
2. | Mr. Sunil Srivastav | February 26, 2024 | Independent Director, Member - NA -
3. | Mr. Avinash Kulkarni | February 26, 2024 | Nominee Director, Member - NA -
4. | Ms. Anuradha Mitra | May 28, 2024 Independent Director, Member - NA -

The Company Secretary and CCO is the Secretary of the Audit Committee.

The scope and terms of reference of the Audit Committee in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Master Directions are as follows:

i.  Recommendation for appointment, re-appointment and replacement, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the Company
and the fixation of audit fee;

ii. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
iii. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

iv. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the financial statement
is correct, sufficient and credible;

v. Reviewing/examining, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to the Board
for approval, with particular reference to:

(a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s Report in terms of Section
134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same.

) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgement by management.
) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions.

g) Modified opinions in the draft audit report.

vi. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties and omnibus approval for related party
transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to such conditions as may be prescribed under law;

vii.  Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

viii. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

ix. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

X.  Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

xi. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of
the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

xii. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
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Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

XVii.

XiX.

XX.
XXi.

XXil.
XXiii.
XXiV.
XXV.
XXVi.
XXV

XXViii.

XXIX.

2.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to
ascertain any area of concern;

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism established by the Company with the Chairman of the Audit Committee directly
hearing grievances of victimization of employees and directors, who used vigil mechanism to report genuine concerns in appropriate and
exceptional cases;

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance function
or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

To mandatorily review the following information -

« Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.
« Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses.

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

To ensure that Information System Audit of the internal systems and processes is conducted at least once in two years to assess operational
risks faced by the Company;

To be responsible for exercising oversight of Information System Audit of the Company;

To review critical issues highlighted related to IT/information security/cyber security and provide appropriate direction and guidance;
To approve the Information System Audit Policy and review the same at least annually;

To investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

To seek information from any employee;

To obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary;

Undertake any other responsibility as laid down by RBI from time to time;

Performing such other activities as may be delegated/referred to by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorily prescribed under any law
is to be attended to by the Audit Committee; and

To delegate any of the above matters to any executive of the Company/sub-committee except those not allowed to be delegated under law.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was re-constituted on February 26, 2024 and further re-constituted by the Board through resolution
by circulation approved on May 28, 2024. The current constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

SI. | Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No.of shares

No. Committee since Committee since 26.02.24 till held in the
31.03.2024 Company

Held Attended

1. | Mr. Sunil Srivastav | February 26, 2024 | Independent Director, Chairperson 1 1 -

2. | Mr. N. Sivaraman February 26, 2024 | Independent Director, Member 1 1 -

3. | Mr. P. Santhosh February 26, 2024 | Nominee Director, Member 1 1 -

4. | Mr. Avinash Kulkarni| May 28, 2024 Nominee Director, Member - - -

The Company Secretary and CCO is the Secretary of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The scope and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with the requirements of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Master Directions are as follows:

a.

Evaluate the current composition and organization of the Board and its committees in light of requirements established by any Regulatory
Body or any other applicable statute, rule or regulation which the Committee deems relevant and to make recommendations to the Board in
respect to the appointment, re-appointment and resignation of Independent, Executive and Non — Executive Directors of the Company;

Review the composition and size of the Board in order to ensure that the Board is comprised of members reflecting the proper expertise,
skills, attributes, and personal and professional backgrounds for service as a Director of the Company, as determined by the Committee;

Review and recommend to the Board an appropriate course of action upon the resignation of current Board members, or any planned expansion
of the Board, and review the qualifications, experience and fitness for service on the Board of any potential new members of the Board;

Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid
down;
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Specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of Board, its committees and individual directors to be carried out by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance;

Recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;
Ensure that while formulating the policy that:

« level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to
run the company successfully;

« relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

« remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting
short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

Review all stakeholders’ proposals submitted to the Company (including any proposal relating to the nomination of a member of the Board)
and the timeliness of the submission thereof and recommend to the Board appropriate action on each such proposal;

Ensure ‘fit and proper’ status of proposed/existing directors and that there is no conflict of interest in appointment of directors on Board of
the Company, KMPs and SMPs;

Formulate, administer and supervise the Company’s Stock Option schemes, if any, in accordance with relevant laws;

Ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors of the quality
required to run the Company successfully;

Ensure that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

Ensure that remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and senior management involves a balance between fixed and
incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals;

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration for the directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees of the Company;

Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;
Devise a policy on Board diversity;
Review/recommendation/approval of Succession Plan for the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and SMPs of the Company;

To work in close coordination with Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the Company to achieve effective alignment between compensation
and risks;

Ensure that compensation levels are supported by the need to retain earnings of the Company and the need to maintain adequate capital
based on Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP);

Undertake any other responsibility as laid down by RBI from time to time;

Performing such other activities as may be delegated/referred to by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorily prescribed under any law
is to be attended to by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee; and

To delegate any of the above matters to any executive of the Company/sub-committee except those not allowed to be delegated under law.

IT Strategy Committee of the Board:

The IT Strategy Committee of the Board was re-constituted on February 26, 2024 and further re-constituted by the Board through resolution by
circulation approved on May 28, 2024. The current constitution of the IT Strategy Committee of the Board is as follows:

SI. | Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No.of shares
No. Committee since Committee since 26.02.24 till held in the
31.03.2024 Company
Held Attended
1. |Ms. Anuradha Mitra | May 28, 2024 Independent Director, Chairperson - NA -
2. |Mr. P. Santhosh February 26, 2024 | Nominee Director, Member - NA -
3. |Mr. Hardayal Prasad | May 28, 2024 Managing Director & GEQ, Member - NA -
4. |Mr. Rajneesh Sharma,
Principal Advisorto | February 26, 2024 | Invitee - NA -
the Board
5. | Chief Information February 26, 2024 | Permanent Invitee - NA -
Security Officer

The Company Secretary and CCO is the Secretary of the IT Strategy Committee of the Board.
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The scope and terms of reference of the IT Strategy Committee of the Board in accordance with the requirements of Master Direction on Information
Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance Practices dated 7th November, 2023 issued by Reserve Bank of India are as follows:

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Xi.
Xii.

4.

Ensure that the Company has put an effective IT strategic planning process in place;

Guide in preparation of IT Strategy and ensure that the IT Strategy aligns with the overall strategy of the Company towards accomplishment
of its business objectives; however, business objectives should never overstep any regulatory/compliance requirements;

Satisfy itself that the IT Governance and Information Security Governance structure fosters accountability, is effective and efficient, has
adequate skilled resources, well defined objectives and unambiguous responsibilities for each level in the organisation, and the same being
periodically reviewed and/or approved by the Board;

Ensure that the Company has put in place processes for assessing and managing IT and cyber security risks;

Ensure that the budgetary allocations for the IT function (including for IT security), cyber security are commensurate with the Company’s IT
maturity, digital depth, threat environment and industry standards and are utilised in a manner intended for meeting the stated objectives;

Review, at least on annual basis, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Business Continuity Planning and Disaster Recovery Management
of the Company;

Review the assessment of IT capacity requirements and measures taken to address the issues;

Periodically review and update, at least on a yearly basis, the IT related risks, including the Cyber Security related risks in the Risk Management
Policy of the Company in consultation with the Risk Management Committee;

Oversee the workings of the Information Security Committee (“ISC”) formed inter alia for managing cyber/information security;
Reviewing the Cyber security risks/arrangements/preparedness of the Company at least on a quarterly basis;
Undertake any other responsibility as laid down by RBI from time to time; and

Such other tasks as may be entrusted to it by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was re-constituted on May 28, 2024. The current constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee is as follows:

SI. | Name of Director Member of Capacity Number of Meetings of the No.of shares
No. Committee since Committee since 26.02.24 till held in the
31.03.2024 Company
Held Attended
1. | Ms. Anuradha Mitra May 28, 2024 Independent Director, Chairperson - NA -
2. | Mr. Sunil Srivastav May 28, 2024 Independent Director, Member - NA -
3. | Mr. Avinash Kulkarni May 28, 2024 Nominee Director, Member - NA -
4. | Mr. Hardayal Prasad May 28, 2024 Managing Director & CEQ, Member - NA -

The Company Secretary and CCO is the Secretary of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

The scope and terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in accordance with the requirements of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules 2014 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

a)

Formulate and recommend to the Board, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy in accordance with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended which shall:

i. indicate list of activities that can be undertaken by the Company in areas or subjects as specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act,
2013,

ii. guiding principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of activities as well as formulation of the annual action plan;
Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in clause (a) above;

Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time;

Formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan in pursuance of the CSR policy, which shall include the following:

i.  thelist of CSR projects or programmes that are approved to be undertaken in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013;

ii. the manner of execution of such projects or programmes in accordance with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014;
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ii. the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or programmes;
iv. monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes; and
v. details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the Company.

e) Reviewing the CSR expenditure and CSR Policy;

f)  In case of on-going project, reviewing and monitoring the implementation of the project with reference to the approved timelines and year-
wise allocation and recommend to the Board to make modifications, if any, for smooth implementation of the project within the overall
permissible time period;

g) Performing such other activities as may be delegated/referred to by the Board of Directors and/or are statutorily prescribed under any law
is to be attended to by the Companies Act, 2013; and

h) To delegate any of the above matters to any executive of the Company/sub-committee except those not allowed to be delegated under law.

lll. General Body Meeting:

« Details of the date, place and special resolutions passed at the General Body Meetings for the FY 2023-24 and the Current FY till
date is given hereunder:

The date, time and venue of the last Annual General Meeting and details of special resolutions passed thereat is given as hereunder:

SI. No. Type of Meeting Date and Place Special Resolutions Passed
1. Annual General Meeting 30.09.2023 through 0AVM Nil

Further, your Company held its Extraordinary General Meeting on May 07, 2024 to transact the following business:
1. Approval for Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of the Company;

2. Appointment of Mr.Hardayal Prasad as a Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEQ) of the Company for a period of 3
(Three) years with effect from 15th April, 2024 and fixation of his Remuneration; and

3. Appointment of Mr. Syed Faisal Aquil as the Manager of the Company for the period from 30th November, 2023 till 15th April, 2024
and fixation of his Remuneration.

All the resolution(s) set out in the respective Notice(s) were passed by the Shareholders with requisite majority.

IV. Details of non-compliance with the Requirements of Companies Act, 2013

During the Financial Year 2020-21, the Company had sanctioned contribution of ¥ 78,15,000/- (Rupees Seventy Eight Lacs and Fifteen Thousand
only) for disbursement to various entities. However, as on March 31, 2021, the Company could disburse an amount of ¥ 24,95,000/- (Rupees
Twenty Four Lacs and Ninety Five Thousand only), being 0.66 per cent of the average net profits of last 3 (three) immediate Financial Years
preceding Financial Year 2020-21, towards CSR activities pursuant to CSR Policy of the Company. The balance sanctioned amount of ¥ 53,20,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Three Lacs and Twenty Thousand only) could not be disbursed till March 31, 2021 due to the establishment of Trust and Retention
Account (TRA) whereby all the business payments of your Company were being controlled by the Bankers and your Company had no control on
the cash flows. Several requests were made to the Bankers to disburse the aforesaid amount as committed to the concerned entities. However,
the Bankers did not disburse the entire sanctioned amount. Thereafter, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company
commenced from October 8, 2021 pursuant to which the Company was further unable to disburse the balance sanctioned amount of ¥ 53,20,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Three Lacs and Twenty Thousand only). Furthermore, due to the ongoing CIRP, the Company did not sanction any further contribution
towards CSR activities.

Further, in terms of Section 3.16 of the Approved Resolution Plan, the aforesaid payment has been waived off. Accordingly, the Company does
not have to make any payment arising of the aforesaid obligations.

Further, certain significant and material events and Orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals are mentioned below:

A.  The Hon’ble NCLT vide its Order dated August 11, 2023 had approved the Resolution Plan submitted by National Asset Reconstruction
Company Limited (NARCL) with respect to the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process of the Companies under Section 31 of the Code.
With the passing of the order by the Hon’ble NCLT, the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process against your Company ended.

B. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its letter dated April 18, 2023 has initiated inspection into the affairs of the Company and has
sought information and documents under Section 206(5) of the Act. The Company provided the necessary documents/information as required
by MCA.

The Company has submitted its reply.
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Srei Corporate Codes & Policies - FY 2023-24

The following are the Corporate Codes & Policies of the Company as on date. The Company has revised the said Corporate Codes & Policies during
the FY 2023-24 in line with regulatory changes and changes necessitated by the approval of the Resolution Plan submitted by National Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (NARCL) by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, vide order dated August 11, 2023. The Company has also
subsequently during the current year revised some of the Codes and Policies further in line with regulatory requirements and has also adopted
new Codes and Policies pursuant to Regulatory Requirements and Good Governance practices. Summary of Key Codes & Policies that have been
adopted are as follows:

SI. No.

Name of the Code and Policy

Salient Features

Web Link

1.

Related Party Transactions Policy

The policy provides a framework to regulate transactions
between the Company and its Related Parties based on the
applicable laws and regulations.

Whistle Blower Policy

The policy provides mechanism for directors and employees
to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud, or violation of the Company’s code of
conduct and ethics.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment

The policy is meant to sensitize the employees about their
fundamental right to have safe and healthy environment at
their workplace and what conduct constitutes sexual
harassment.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy

The policy outlines the Company’s strategy to taking
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as a sustainable
social initiative with the aim to align and integrate its
resources with society’s developmental needs towards
creating a better tomorrow.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

Nomination & Remuneration Policy

This policy formulates the criteria for determining
qualifications, competencies, positive attributes and
independence for the appointment of a director (executive/
non-executive) and also the criteria for determining the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel
(KMPs) and other employees.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

Risk Management Policy & Risk Appetite
Framework

This policy puts in place a Risk Management Framework
(RMF) to ensure comprehensive coverage of all Risks
faced/to be faced by the Company commensurate with its
size & scale for effective management and reporting of
such risks to the Board of Directors (BoD) at regular
intervals.

Information Security & Cyber Security Policy

This Policy is pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India
(Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and
Assurance Practices) Directions, 2023, dated 7th November,
2023.

Information Technology & IT Outsourcing
Policy

This Policy is pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India
(Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and
Assurance Practices) Directions, 2023, dated 7th November,
2023.

Policy for appointment of Statutory Auditors

This Policy is pursuant to Guidelines for Appointment of
Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAS)
of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs
(including HFCs) dated 27th April, 2021.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

10.

Outsourcing Policy

This Policy is pursuant to Master Direction — Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023 dated 19th October, 2023
and incorporates, inter alia, criteria for selection of
outsourced activities as well as service providers, delegation
of authority depending on risks and materiality and systems
to monitor and review the operations of the outsourced
activities.

11.

Business Continuity & Disaster Recovery
Policy

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all Company
business activities can be kept at normal or nearnormal
performance following an incident that has the
potential to disrupt the Company’s operations.
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SI. No.

Name of the Code and Policy

Salient Features

Web Link

12.

Risk Based Internal Audit Policy

This policy focuses on risk identification, prioritization of
audit areas and allocation of audit resources in accordance
with the risk assessment.

13.

Whistle Blower Policy

This policy provides a Vigil Mechanism and an opportunity
for directors, employees all stake holders of the Company
to blow Whistle against and to report concerns about
unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation
of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy.

14.

Information Systems (IS) Audit Policy

The major objectives of this Policy is safeguarding of
Information System Assets/Resources and IT Processes
and verification of data.

15.

Asset Liability Management Policy

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines to
ensure prudent management of assets and liabilities for
the Company and the policy guideline addresses the
managing and reporting of capital, liquidity, currency and
interest rate risk.

16.

Policy on Board Diversity

The policy sets out the approach to diversity on the Board
of Directors of the Company and recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board appropriate to the
requirements of the Company.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

17.

Fair Practices Code & Ombudsman Scheme

The code provides the framework for dealings with the
Customers and lays down mechanisms for redressal of
Customer grievances.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

18.

KYC and AML Policy

The key obijective of this Policy is to prevent the Company
from being used, intentionally or unintentionally, by any
individual person or entity for money laundering activities.

19.

Code of conduct for Board of Directors and
Senior Executives

The code provides the framework for promoting ethical
conduct in the Company.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

20.

Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance
Framework

The policy provides the framework for Corporate Governance
so that executives act in accordance with the highest
standards of governance while working for and on behalf
of the Company.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

21.

Group Governance Policy

This policy lays down the governance and monitoring levels
of the Company’s subsidiaries and other constituents falling
within Group Entities.

22.

Archival Policy & Policy of Preservation of
Records Policy

This policy provides the procedure and manner for
preservation and destruction of records which are required
to be prepared or maintained under applicable regulations
and the framework for the retention and archival of corporate
records of the Company.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies

23.

Investment Policy

The Policy lays down, inter alia, the guidelines to be followed
by the Investment Committee to approve investments.

24.

Policy on Fit and proper criteria for Directors

The purpose of this Policy is to set a framework for
ascertaining the ‘fit and proper’ criteria of Directors at the
time of appointment and on an on-going basis.

25.

Compliance Policy

This Policy is in compliance with Reserve Bank of India
(‘RBI’) guidelines dated April 11, 2022 and reflects the
commitment of the Company to conduct its business in
accordance with the applicable rules, guidelines, regulations,
codes etc both in letter and spirit as may be prescribed by
RBI to regulate, monitor and report non-compliances if
any to the applicable rules, guidelines, regulations, codes
etc.

https://www.srei.com/sifl-corporate-policies
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements
of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for the year ended on
that date, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and Notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements, including a summary of Material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
the “Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, and profit and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements Section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
Standalone Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements:

a. Note No. 1.2.3 to the Standalone Financial Statements which
describes the significant changes during the year as a result of
implementation of the approved resolution plan.

b. Note No. 48 to the Standalone Financial Statements which describes
the impact of various steps undertaken for implementation of the
resolution plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated
August 11, 2023 in the Standalone Financial Statements.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements is not modified in
respect of the above stated matters.

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in Other
Section of Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Financial Statements

/

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements

The Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) vide press release dated October 4,
2021 in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-1E (1) of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (‘RBI Act’) superseded the Board
of Directors of the Company and appointed an Administrator under
Section 45-IE (2) of the RBI Act. Further, RBI, in exercise of powers
conferred under Section 45-IE (5) (a) of the RBI Act, has constituted
a three-member Committee of Advisors for advising the Administrator.

The RBI had also filed application for initiation of Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (‘CIRP’) against the Company under Section 227
read with clause (zk) of sub-section (2) of Section 239 of the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016 (‘the Code’) read with Rules 5 and
6 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Insolvency and Liquidation
Proceedings of Financial Service Providers and Application to Adjudicating
Authority) Rules, 2019 (‘FSP Insolvency Rules’) before the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (‘Hon’ble NCLT’). Hon’ble
NCLT vide its order dated October 8, 2021, admitted the application
filed by RBI for initiation of CIRP against the Company. Further, Hon’ble
NCLT gave orders for appointment of Mr. Rajneesh Sharma, as the
Administrator to carry out the functions as per the Code and that the
management of the Company shall vest in the Administrator.

The Administrator, after adopting proper procedure, had filed applications
for consolidated resolution process before the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal-Kolkata Bench (Hon’ble NCLT) in the case of Srei
Infrastructure Finance Limited and Srei Equipment Finance Limited
(IA No. 1099 of 2021 under CP.294/KB/2021 and IA No. 1100 of 2021
under CP.295/KB/2021).The application in this matter was admitted
and the final order was received on February 14, 2022 wherein the
Hon’ble NCLT approved the consolidation of the corporate insolvency
of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited and Srei Equipment Finance
Limited.

The Consolidated Committee of Creditors (CoC) took on record three
Resolution Plans received from Prospective Resolution Applicants
(PRAs) on January 18, 2023. The three Resolution Plans received by
the Consolidated CoC were put to e-voting. The Consolidated CoC took
on record the results of the e-voting in CoC meeting held on February
15, 2023, and the resolution plan submitted by National Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (NARCL) was duly approved by CoC
by majority voting under Section 30(4) of the IBC read with Regulation
39(3) of CIRP Regulations, 2016, thereby, declaring NARCL as Successful
Resolution Applicant (SRA). The resolution plan of NARCL approved
by Consolidated Committee of Creditors (CoC) was filed before
Adjudicating Authority on February 18, 2023 for its approval and the
same was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide its Order dated August 11,
2023.
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In terms of the resolution plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT order dated
August 11, 2023, an Implementation and Monitoring Committee (“IMC”)
had been constituted which was empowered to supervise the
implementation of the approved resolution plan and oversee the
management of the affairs of the Company as per the terms of the
approved resolution plan. The IMC in its meeting dated August 16, 2023
passed a resolution appointing the Administrator as Chairman of IMC
and vide IMC resolution dated August 17, 2023 authorized him to
continue to operate all the bank accounts and undertake various activities
as are required to ensure the Company’s status as a going concern
during the implementation of the approved resolution plan. IMC stands
dissolved and the Board of the Company was re-constitutedon February
26, 2024, to take charge of the affairs of the Company.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in India including the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the management of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
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a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

« Gonclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the
Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial
Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial
Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The audit of comparative financial information of the Company for the
year ended 31st March, 2023 prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards was carried out by the predecessor auditor. The
predecessor auditor had given Disclaimer of Opinion Report for the
said period vide their report dated May 16, 2023, whose reports have
been furnished to us by the management and which have been relied
upon by us for the purpose of our audit of the Financial Statements.
Our audit report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
Section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order.



As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statements of Cash Flows dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors as on March 31, 2024 and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company do not have any pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statements. Refer Note No.
27 to Standalone Financial Statement.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. a) As represented by the management, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note no 35
to Standalone Financial Statementno funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
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Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

As represented by the management that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note no
35 to Standalone Financial Statement, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been received by the Company from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared/paid any dividend paid
during the year. Hence, reporting the compliance with
Section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

q)

Based on our examination, which included test checks,
except for the instances mentioned below, the Company
has used accounting software for maintaining its books
of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has been operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective software:

1. The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
was not enabled at the data base level to log any
direct data changes for the accounting software’s
i.e. Oracle, used for maintaining the books of
account. Consequently, we were unable to verify
the integrity of audit trail throughout the year.

Further, based on our examination, the Company has
used accounting software which is operated by a third-
party software service provider, for maintaining its
books of account. In absence of ‘Right to Audit’ clause
in the agreements entered with the third-party software
service provider, we are unable to comment whether
audit trail feature of the said software was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software or whether there were any
instances of the audit trial feature been tampered with.

For S K AGRAWAL AND CO

Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.- 306033E/E300272

Sd/-

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
(Partner)

Membership No. 068851
UDIN: 24068851BKCAZP2116

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 5, 2024
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Annexure - A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone
Financial Statements of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited for the
year ended 31 March, 2024

(Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and
given by Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (Company) and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of
audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, the
management of the Company has physically verified its Property,
Plant and Equipment and no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of the immovable properties (other than the
properties where the Gompany is the lessee and the lease
agreement are duly executed in favour of lessee), as disclosed
in Note 10 on Property, plant and equipment to the standalone
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company
except for the details given below:

Description Gross carrying Held in the Whether promoter, Period Reason for
of property value (% in Lacs) name of director or their held not being held
relative or employee in name of Company
Building 8,747.34 South Lake No Since 29 Conveyance
(Saket, New Delhi) Properties Pvt Ltd / September, 2010 Deed is pending
PushpVihar properties
Pvt Ltd / Koshika

Properties Pvt Ltd / Wales

Properties Pvt Ltd

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and intangible assets
during the year.

(e) According to information and explanation given to us and basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, no
proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
However,in absence of independent confirmations from the
legal counsels/lawyers of the Company with regards to the
same, we are unable to report whether any proceedings have
been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March
31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Act.

ii. (a) The Company does not have any inventory. Accordingly, reporting
under Clause 3 (ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of our books of records of the
Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working
capital limits from any banks or financial institutions during
any point of time of the year under review. Accordingly, reporting
under Clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and
based on the audit procedures conducted by us during the year,
the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, limited liability partnership
firm, firms or other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under Clause 3(iii)[(a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f)] of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

iv. According to the information and explanation given to us, the
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Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided
guarantees or securities in contravention of provisions of Section
185 of the Act. The Company has not made any loans or securities
to the parties covered under Section 186 of the Act. The Company
has complied with the provisions of Section 186(1) of the Act; the
other provisions of Section 186 of the Act are not applicable.

v. The Company being a Non-Banking Finance Company registered
with the Reserve Bank of India, the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, with regard to
the deposits are not applicable. Accordingly, reporting under Clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) Section 148 of the Act for
the Company. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(vi) of the order
is not applicable on the Company.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us in respect
of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, duty of
Custom, duty of Excise, Cess, GST and other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities during the year.

Further, as mentioned in Note 1.2.3 and Note No. 48 of the
Standalone Financial Statements, pursuant to the approved
resolution plan, no amounts was payable to the statutory
authorities against their dues and accordingly, all such dues
were extinguished. Hence, undisputed amounts payable in
respect of goods and service tax, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Value
Added Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Cess, GST and other
statutory dues in arrears as of 31 March, 2024, for a period of
more than six months has been waived.



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there
are no dues of income tax, sales tax, goods and service tax,
cess and other material statutory dues which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute. As mentioned inNote no. 1.2.3 and Note no.48 of the
Standalone Financial Statements all of pending statutory dues
pertaining to previous years has been waived, hence no amount
is payable to the statutory authorities pertaining to any preceding
periods pursuant to the approved resolution plan for the year
ended March 31, 2024.

viii. The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction,

previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Hence,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(@) As stated in Note No. 1.2.3 and Note no.48 to the Standalone
Financial Statements, the Company was admitted to CIRP on
08 October, 2021 and accordingly no payments can be made
thereafter to the lenders in respect of Intercorporate deposit
and Non- convertible perpetual bond, until the resolution process
is concluded.

On August 11,2023, the resolution plan was approved by the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal(“NCLT”), Kolkata
bench. Pursuant to the approved resolution plan, no payments
have been made to the lenders and remaining liabilities have
been extinguished as provide in the approved resolution plan.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) The Company has not obtained any term loans. Hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of
the Company, no funds have been raised on short-term
basis by the Company. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries or associates. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

—_
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(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries or associate companies.
Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way
of initial public offer / further public offer (including debt
instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment
of equity shares. The issuance of new equity share has been
made by the Company as per terms of the approved resolution
plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT, Kolata Bench on August 11,
2023. However, Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated 11.08.2023
granted relief that no further actions and requirements (including
procedural requirement prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013), approval, application or consent shall be necessary on
part of the Company for reconstitution of share capital and
other actions set out in the approved resolution plan. Hence,
all the conditions of Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act,
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2013 has been complied by the Company. Further, the Company
has utilized funds raised by way of private placement of equity
shares as specified in the approved resolution plan or for the
purposes for which they were raised.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records
of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company,
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed
of any such case by the Management. Refer Note no. 32 to the
Standalone Financial Statements which states that based on
the information available in the public domain, some of the
lenders have declared the bank account of the Company as
fraud. However, in case of one of the lender, on the basis of
petition filed by the ex-promoter before the Hon’ble High Court
of Delhi, the Hon’ble Court has passed interim relief to the
petitioner vide order dated April 22, 2022, restraining the said
lender from taking any further steps or action prejudicial to
the petitioner on the basis of the order declaring the bank
account as fraud. Thereafter vide order dated May 15, 2023,
the application was disposed of directing that the order declaring
the account of the Company as fraud was set side. Further,
liberty was granted to the banks to proceed ahead in accordance
with the direction given in the aforesaid order.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and
on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act,
in Form ADT - 4, as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date
of this report. Further, as informed by the Company, the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company has not filed any report
under Section 143(12) of the Act with the Central Government
in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year and upto the
date of this report. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause
3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle
blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the
management, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the note no. 43 to the
standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation
given to us, the internal audit system of the Company is
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date
of the audit report, for the period under audit have been
considered by us.

As stated in Note no. 1.2.3 and 48 of the Standalone Financial
statement, the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) vide press release
dated October 4, 2021 in exercise of the powers conferred under
Section 45-IE (1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (‘RBI Act’)
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superseded the Board of Directors of the Company and appointed
an Administrator under Section 45-IE (2) of the RBI Act. Further,
the RBI has also made an application for initiation of CIRP against
the Company to Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata bench for a consolidated
CIRP process. The resolution plan has been approved by the Hon’ble
NCLT, Kolkata bench on August 11, 2023. Pursuant to the approved
resolution plan, the Company has been re-constituted its Board of
the Director on February 26, 2024. Accordingly, provisions of
Section 192 of the ACT are not applicable to Company for the period
April 2023, to February 25, 2024.

Further, according to information and explanations given by the
management during the period on and after reconstitution of the
Board of the Director, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(a) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the Company has
obtained the required registration.

(b) The Company has not conducted any non-banking financial
orhousing finance activities without having a valid Certificate
of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India as per the RBI
Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in
the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the
management of the Company, the Group does not have any
CICs as part of the Group. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

During the audited financial year 2023-2024, the Company did not
incur any cash losses. However, we are unable to comment on
clause (xvii) of paragraph 3 of the order pertaining to the immediately
preceding financial year. This is due to the "Disclaimer of Opinion"
issued by the predecessor auditor in their report dated May 16,
2023, concerning the Standalone Financial Statements for the year
ending March 31, 2023.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the
year and accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
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other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) Asat March 31,2021 the Company was having funds amounting

to ¥ 53 Lacs in relation to the Corporate Social Responsibility
(‘CSR’) which were unspent. These unspent amounts as per
the requirements of Section 135 of the Act were to be transferred
to funds specified under Schedule VII to the Act within a period
of 6 months. The Company was not able to transfer the aforesaid
unspent CSR amount as per the requirements of Section 135
of the Act.

Subsequently, as per the approved resolution plan, no amount
was payable to the statutory authorities against their dues and
hence all such dues were extinguished.

(b) The Company does not have CSR activities for “ongoing projects
in terms of Section 135(6) of the Act and accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx)(b) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

For S K AGRAWAL AND CO

Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.- 306033E/E300272

Sd/-

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
(Partner)

Membership No. 068851
UDIN: 24068851BKCAZP2116

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 5, 2024
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-
Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a

process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S K AGRAWAL AND CO

Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.- 306033E/E300272

Sd/-

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
(Partner)

Membership No. 068851
UDIN: 24068851BKCAZP2116

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 5, 2024
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Balance Sheet

as at 31st March, 2024

Particulars

ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above
(c) Receivables
- Trade Receivables
(d) Investments
(e) Other Financial Assets

(2) Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net)
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment
(d) Right-of-use Assets
(e) Intangible Assets
(f) Other Non-Financial Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(@) Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
¢) Subordinated Liabilities
d) Lease Liabilities
e) Other Financial Liabilities

—~ o~ — —

(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(2) Provisions
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
(c) Other Non-Financial Liabilities

(3) Equity
(@) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Note
No.

NS

o o

12

13
14

15

16

17

18
19

in Lacs)
As at As at
[T R MPIIPZ 8 March 31, 2023

33,028 3,719
90 265
649 663
33,918 44,048
20,153 144
5,379 5,332
8,957 9,187
1 1
1 1
136 45
1,02,312 63,405
6 40
140 641
- 25,671
- 33,000
1 2
268 16,044
6 6
67 68
100 50,309
101,724 (62,376)
1,02,312 63,405

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements.

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 306033E/E300272

Sd/-

110 57

Hardayal Prasad

Sd/-
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
Partner

Membership No. 068851 Sd/-

Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 08024303

Vishnu Gopal Agarwal

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 5, 2024

36 | Annual Report 2023-24

Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

Avinash Kulkarni
Director

DIN: 02982164

Sd/-
Manoj Kumar
Company Secretary & CCO



/
Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended 31st March, 2024
in Lacs)

. Note As at As at
Particulars No. RIEIHEIRPAPZE March 31, 2023

Revenue from Operations

(i) Interest Income 20 220 139
(i) Dividend Income* - 100
(iii) Rental Income 806 403
(iv) Fees and Commission Income 769 1,290
(I) Total Revenue from Operations 1,344 1,932
(1) Other Income 21 3 211
(1) Total Income (I+11) 1,347 2,143
Expenses
(I) Finance Costs 22 3 19
(i) Fees and Commission Expense 425 764
(iii) Bad Debt/Impairment of Financial Instruments (Net) 23 1,355 194
(iv) Employee Benefits Expenses 24 226 276
(vi) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expense 10,11 234 235
(vi) Administrative and Other Expenses 25 958 931
(IV) Total Expenses (IV) 3,201 2,419
(V) Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional items and Tax (l11-1V) (1,854) (276)
(V1) Exceptional items - Profit on cancellation of investment 50,000 -
(VII) Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (V-VI) 48,146 (276)
(Vi - Tax:

(@) Current Tax - -

(b) Income Tax in respect of earlier year 20 5

(c) Deferred Tax = -
(IX) Profit/(Loss) after Tax (VII-VIII) 48,126 (281)

(X) Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense)
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

(a) Remeasurement Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plan 1 24

(b) Gains/(Losses) on Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (8,851) 15,602

(i) Tax related to above - -

Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (X) (8,850) 15,626

(XI) Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense) (IX + X) 39,276 15,345
(XII) Earnings per Equity Share (Face value of 3 10/- each) 26

- Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity share 13.35 (0.06)

*Amount mentioned as '0" is below rounding off threshold adopted by the Company.

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements. 1to57

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration No. 306033E/E300272

Sd/- Sd/-
Hardayal Prasad Avinash Kulkarni
Sd/- Managing Director & CEO Director
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia DIN: 08024303 DIN: 02982164
Partner
Membership No. 068851 Sd/- Sd/-
Vishnu Gopal Agarwal Manoj Kumar
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & CCO

Date: June 5, 2024
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Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Particulars

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities

®in Lacs)
As

As at at
(EI(H e M4 728 March 31, 2023

Particulars

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
(@) Cash on hand

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 48,146 (276)
Adjustments for:

Interest on Income Tax Refund = (149)
Liabilities No Longer Required written back (2) (58)
Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net) 1,355 194
Foreign exchange (Gain)/Loss = (2)
Profit cancellation of investment (50,000) -
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 234 235
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (267) (56)
Changes in Working Capital

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables and Others Assets 29,740 755
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Others Liabilities (340) (790)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Bank Balances 175 (12)
Cash generated/(used) in operations 29,308 (103)
Direct Taxes Refund/(Paid) (67) 2,774
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Operating Activities 29,241 2,671

. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment, and Intangible Assets (2) -
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Investing Activities (2) -
. Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Equity Share Capital 70 -
(Repayment of)/Proceeds from intercorporate deposit = (52)
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Financing Activities 70 (52)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 29,309 2,619
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,719 1,100
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 33,028 3,719
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year comprises of: ®in Lacs)

As at

As at
[ EI(H A PZ 8 March 31, 2023

106

(b) Balances with Banks - in Current Account 259
(c) Fixed Deposits with original maturity period less than three months 32,769 3,613
33,028 3,719
Explanations:
1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'.
2. Previous year figures have been rearranged/regrouped wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors
ICAl Firm Registration No. 306033E/E300272
Sd/- Sd/-
Hardayal Prasad Avinash Kulkarni
Sd/- Managing Director & CEO Director
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia DIN: 08024303 DIN: 02982164
Partner
Membership No. 068851 Sd/- Sd/-
Vishnu Gopal Agarwal Manoj Kumar
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & CCO

Date: June 5, 2024
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
1.1 Background and General Information

Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited
Company domiciled in India under the Companies Act, 2013 and is a
Public Financial Institution (PFl). The Company is holding RBI’s Certificate
of Registration to carry on the business of non-banking financial
institutions-Infrastructure Finance Company — Non Deposit Taking.
The Company has received communication from RBI, to reclassify
it as Investment and Credit Company which is under consideration.

Pursuant to Approved Resolution Plan, the Company’s shares have
been delisted from NSE Limited and BSE Limited w.e.f. December 14,
2023. The registration details are as follows:

RBI B-05.02773/dt. 31 March, 2011
U29219WB1985PLC055352

The registered office of the Company and the principal place of
business is ‘Vishwakarma’ 86C Topsia Road (South), Kolkata — 700046.

These financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2024 have been taken on record by the Board of Directors on
5th June, 2024.

1.2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1.2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation

Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) along
with other relevant provisions of the Act, — Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023
(the “Master Directions”) vide circular no. RBI/DoR/2023-24/106
DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24 dated October 19, 2023, as
amended from time to time along with other instructions/regulations/
guidelines issued by RBI .

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, except for certain items which are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosed
amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions are significant
to the Company are discussed in Note No. 1.2.23 ‘Significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions’.

The management believes that the estimates used in the preparation
of these financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results
could differ from those estimates and the differences between the actual
results and the estimates would be recognised in the periods in which
the results are known/materialised.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all
values are rounded off to the nearest Lacs, except otherwise indicated.

Comparative information has been regrouped/rearranged to accord with
changes in presentations made in the current period, except where
otherwise stated.

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule
11 (Division 1I) to the Act applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry
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of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA).
1.2.2 Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company. Control exists
when the Company has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity.

Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to
direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The Company has accounted for its equity instruments in Subsidiaries
and Associates at cost, less accumulated impairment, if any. The cost
comprises price paid to acquire investment and directly attributable
cost.

1.2.3 Significant changes during the year

In terms of the resolution plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT order dated
August 11, 2023, an Implementation and Monitoring Committee (“IMC”)
has been constituted which is empowered to supervise the
implementation of the approved resolution plan and oversee the
management of the affairs of the Company as per the terms of the
approved resolution plan till the closing date. The IMC in its meeting
dated August 16, 2023 passed a resolution appointing the Administrator
as Chairman of IMC and vide IMC resolution dated August 17, 2023
authorised him to continue to operate all the bank accounts and undertake
various activities as are required to ensure the Company’s status as a
going concern during the implementation of the approved resolution
plan.

The financial position and performance of the Company was particularly
affected as a result of implementation of the approved resolution plan
in the following items during the year ended to March 31, 2024:

(i)  All the existing reserves of the Company (other than retained
earnings) has been transferred to restructuring reserves. (Refer
Note no. 19)

(i) Reduction in equity share Capital and the net consideration payable
on capital reduction has been transferred to restructuring reserve.
(Refer Note no. 18 and 48)

(iii) All identifiable assets and liabilities of the Company has been
recorded at their respective fair value and difference, if any,
between the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities has been
transferred to restructuring reserves. (Refer Note no. 10 and 48)

(iv) After considering the above adjustment, the balance in restructuring
reserve account has been transferred/adjusted to the retained
earnings of the Company (Refer note no. 19)

(v) Balance in retained earnings of the Company has been construed
as free reserve for the purpose of the Companies Act 2013 and
prescribed RBI guidelines. (Refer note no. 19)

(vi) Any transaction cost incurred in relation to the implementation of
the resolution plan has been recognized as expense in profit and
loss account. (Refer note no. 25)

(vii) There is an increase in impairment on financial instruments post
reversal of impairment reserve as per RBI approval to give the
effect to the resolution plan. (Refer note no 23)

(viii) The Company, on instructions of the IMC, has taken all necessary
steps including making payments, to various stakeholders in terms



of the approved resolution plan. (Refer Note no. 13, 14, 15 and
48)

(ix) All contingent liabilities on account of implementation of the
resolution plan has been permanently extinguished, discharged
and settled in term of approved resolution plan. (Refer note no.
27)

1.2.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured.

Revenue from Operations is recognised in the statement of Profit and
Loss on an accrual basis as stated herein below:

(@) Interestincome from financial assets is recognized applying the
Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets, other than credit-impaired assets and those
classified as measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).
The basis of computation of EIR is discussed in Note No. 1.2.16.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows
having impact on EIR are recognised as interest income with the
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on fixed deposits is recognised on a time proportion
basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

(b) Income or net gain on fair value changes for financial assets
classified as measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI is recognised as
discussed in Note No. 1.2.16.

(c) Interest Income on credit impaired financial assets is recognized
by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost
(net of provision) of the financial asset.

(d) Income from dividend is recognised when the Company’s right
to receive such dividend is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost
of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably.

(e) Rental income arising from non-cancellable operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
of the users benefit. In cases where the increase is in line with
expected general inflation rental income is recognised as per the
contractual terms.

(f)  Revenue from Contract with Customers:

Fees and Commission Income are recognized when transfer of
control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects that the consideration the Company expects to receive in
exchange for those services. Revenue is recognised from
management and consultancy services as and when related services
are rendered and performance obligation is satisfied which is
based on a five-step model as set out below, unless included in
the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as
an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable
rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance
obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good
or service to the customer.

/ Financial Statements

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the
amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance
obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a
performance obligation.

Satisfaction of performance obligation in some cases require
acknowledgement/acceptance of service by the Customer.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which
we refer to as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues
are classified as contract liabilities (which we refer to as unearned
revenues).

1.2.5 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(i) The Company as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases.
Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the net
investment in the lease and reduce the amount of income recognised
over the lease term based on interest rate implicit in the lease.

Assets given on operating leases are included in Property Plant and
Equipment. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

For the revenue recognition policy on Lease Contracts, Refer Note No.
1.2.4 (e).

(ii) The Company as lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for
buildings or part thereof. The Company assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with low-value
assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less). For these short term and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense over the term
of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability i.e. the present value of future
lease payment, adjusted for any lease payment made at or prior to the
commencement date of lease plus any initial direct costs, an estimate
of costs to be incurred in dismantling and removing or restoring the
underlying asset less any lease incentive received. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The lease liability is initially
measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using interest rate implicit
in the lease or if not readily determinable using the incremental borrowing
rate. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment
to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment
if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. In the event that
lease incentives are received to enter into lease, such incentives are
adjusted towards right-of-use-asset.

Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately presented
in the Balance Sheet.

1.2.6 Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) in Lacs,
the functional currency of the Company. Functional currency is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which
are outstanding as at the reporting date, are translated at the reporting
date at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences
are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss except for those
which are designated as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

Non—-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the spot exchange rates as at the date of
recognition. Foreign currency changes for non-monetary items measured
at FVTOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income.

1.2.7 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds including interest expense
calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect
of assets acquired on finance lease. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Interest expense includes origination costs that are initially recognised
as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over
the expected life using the EIR. It also includes expenses related to
borrowing which are not part of effective interest as not directly related
to loan origination.
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1.2.8 Employee Benefits

(i)
(A)

Retirement benefit costs and other employee bhenefits
Defined Contribution Plans:

Contributions to Provident Fund, Pension Fund and Employee
State Insurance are considered as defined contribution plans and
are recognized as expenditure as they fall due based on the amount
of contribution required to be made and when an employee renders
related services.

Defined Benefit Plans:

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other
than a defined contribution plan. The Group 's net obligation in
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan
or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’).
In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognized in OCI. The Company
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset),
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss when the
benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the
resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service
cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. the Company recognises
gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs.

Short-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits,
annual leave and sick leave in the period in which related service
is rendered.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Other long-term employee benefits (unfunded):

The cost of providing other long term employee benefits is
calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method, and spread
over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived
from employees’ services. Re-measurement actuarial gains and
losses and past service cost are recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss for the period in which they occur.
Other long term employee benefit obligation recognised in the
balance sheet represents the present value of related obligation.



1.2.9 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

(i) Current tax

Current Tax is determined at the amount of tax payable in respect
of taxable profit for the year as per the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted
at the reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts,
and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a
net basis or simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax

The Company’s deferred tax is calculated using tax rate
that are substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

(iii) Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of Profit
and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

1.2.10 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment shown in the balance sheet consists of
assets used in the provision of services or for administrative purposes,
and include assets leased by the Company as lessor under operating
leases.

Initial and subsequent recognition

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost together
with borrowing cost capitalized for qualifying assets. Cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item
to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located.

/ Financial Statements

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset
is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period
in which they are incurred.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss. The
date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date
the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the
requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied
in Ind AS 115.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use. It is recognised to write down the cost of assets less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight-line basis: The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The Company has adopted the useful life as specified in Schedule 1l to
the Companies Act, 2013.

Leasehold assets including improvements are amortised over the shorter
of lease period and their useful life on the same basis as owned assets.

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the period is recognised
on a pro-rata basis.

1.2.11 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised
on a straight-line basis over 2-6 years, which reflects the managements
estimate.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is de-recognised.

1.2.12 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying
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amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment on an annual basis, and
on a shorter period whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of Profit
and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates

The carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
accordance with Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any recognised
impairment loss is adjusted in the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
Ind AS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

1.2.13 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than
the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
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provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contract.

In case of litigations, provision is recognised once it has been established
that the Company has a present obligation based on information available
up to the date on which the Company’s financial statements are finalised
and may in some cases entail seeking expert advice in making the
determination on whether there is a present obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. Company does not recognised contingent liability but discloses
its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognised in
the financial statements, but are disclosed where an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

1.2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, balances with
banks, cheques on hand, remittances in transit and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.2.15 Segment Reporting

The Company’s operating segments are established on the basis of
those components of the Company that are evaluated regularly by the
‘Chief Operating Decision Making Group’ (CODMG) as defined in Ind
AS 108-‘Operating Segments’, in deciding how to allocate resources
and in assessing performance. These have been identified taking into
account nature of products and services, the differing risks and returns
and the internal business reporting systems. CODMG examines the
Company’s performance both from business and geographical perspective
and has considered business segment as primary segment for disclosure.

1.2.16 Financial Instruments
(i) Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement
categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost;

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income;

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss
account.

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial
assets’ cash flows and the Company’s business model for managing
financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best
reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business
objective. The Company’s business model is not assessed on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on observable factors.



The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected
scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into
account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that
is different from the Company’s original expectations, the Company
does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held
in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing
newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses
the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet
the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the
financial asset.

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the
contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement
i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent
with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce
exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless
it has designated liabilities at fair value through the statement of Profit
and Loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

(ii) Recognition of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans
& advances and all other regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on the trade date basis.

(iii) Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Subsequent Measurement:
(A) Financial Assets
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost (AC):

These financial assets comprise bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables,
Other receivables, investments and other financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The EIR is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the
amortised cost of a financial liability on initial recognition.

/ Financial Statements

The EIR for financial assets or financial liability is computed

a. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
in estimating the cash flows.

b. Including fees and transaction costs that are integral part of EIR.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by the Company in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’ applies, are
measured at FVTOCI, where an irrevocable election has been made by
management on an instrument-by-instrument basis. These investments
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to the statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments.
Dividends on such investments are recognised in the statement of Profit
and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment.

Debt investments measured at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income under effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the statement of Profit
and Loss.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

A financial asset which is not classified as AC or FVTOCI is measured
at FVTPL. A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or
debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated
any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as
FVTPL and held by the Gompany on the balance sheet date is recognised
in the statement of Profit and Loss. In cases there is a net gain in the
aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes”
under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same
is disclosed under “Expenses” in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVTOCI at each reporting date
based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.

In case of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance
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shall be recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
effect to the profit or loss and not reduced from the carrying amount
of the financial asset in the balance sheet. In case of such instrument,
amount recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss are the same
as the amount would have been recognised in case the debt instrument
is measured at amortised cost.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount
higher of lifetime expected credit losses taking into account historical
credit loss experience (adjusted for forward-looking information) and
Income Recognition and Assets Classification norms of RBI compared
on individual bucket basis.

Derecognition of Financial Assets:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset accounted under Ind AS 109 in
its entirety:

a) for financial assets measured at amortised cost, the gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

b) for financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the cumulative fair value adjustments previously
taken to reserves are reclassified to the statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset represents an equity investment in which case the
cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves may be
reclassified within equity.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part
transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the previous
carrying amount of the larger financial asset shall be allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised,
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, it recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, it continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a liability for the proceeds received.

Modification/revision in estimates of cash flows of financial assets:

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated
or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or modification does not
result in the derecognition of that financial asset in accordance with Ind
AS 109, the Company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in the statement
of Profit and Loss.

(B) Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments:
Classification as debt or equity:

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
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Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised
and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured
at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities,
shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities
are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 - “Financial Instruments”.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method except
for those designated in an effective hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of Profit and
Loss. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the EIR method.

Trade and other payables

A payable is classified as ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount
due on account of goods purchased or services received in the normal
course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year,
which are unpaid. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantees issued by the Company are those guarantees that
require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder of the guarantee
for a loss incurred by the holder because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment, when due, to the holder in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantees are recognised initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transactions costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of
Profit and Loss.

(v) Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported



in the Balance Sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously backed by
past practice.

(vi) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

a) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are as follows:

Level 1: Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities
with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market
data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable
inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves,
implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may
be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to
which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument.
However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which
are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole.

(vii) Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles

Expected credit loss (ECL) is the probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e., the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected
life of the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is the difference between
scheduled or contractual cash flows and actual expected cash flows.
Consequently, ECL subsumes both the amount and timing of payments.
It also incorporates available information which is relevant to the
assessment, including information about past events, current conditions
and reasonable and supportable information about future events and
economic conditions at the reporting date.

/ Financial Statements

The Company uses the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Methodology to
assess the impairment on funded credit exposures. The application of
the model was derived from the combination of the probability of default
and loss given default being applied to the exposure at default (EAD)
to compute ECL based on historical data on an unsegmented basis due
to limitation of count in the past. Owing to transfer of the business,
empirical data for the newly constituted business of the Company was
not available and hence ECL for non-funded credit exposures is being
computed by calculating the difference between the EAD and Net Present
Value of the future cash flows and/or expected realisable value of
security/collateral. Additionally, the Company carries out reviews for
specifically identified exposures as meriting special focus in calculation
of ECL for fulfilling the objective of greater prudence.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

In case of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the loss allowance measured
in accordance with the above requirements is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the statement of
profit and loss but is not reduced from the carrying amount of the
financial asset in the balance sheet; so the financial asset continues to
be presented in the balance sheet at its fair value.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to the expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical
expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. The Company measures the
loss allowance at an amount higher of lifetime expected credit losses
taking into account historical credit loss experience (adjusted for forward-
looking information) and Income Recognition and Assets Classification
norms of RBI compared on individual bucket basis.

1.2.17 Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments
to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks,
including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and
cross currency swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments
are disclosed in note to the financial statements.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless
the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of Profit and
Loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature
of the hedged item.
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Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109 are treated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at FVTPL.

1.2.18 Hedge Accounting

The Company complies with the principles of hedge accounting where
derivative contracts are designated as hedging instruments. At the
inception of the hedge relationship, the Company documents the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with the risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
hedge transaction, which can be a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge.
Furthermore, on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether
the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

(i) Fair Value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify
as fair value hedges are recognised in the statement of Profit or Loss
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in
the fair value of the designated portion of hedging instrument and the
change in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk
are recognised in statement of Profit and Loss in the line item relating
to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of
the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or
loss from that date.

(ii) Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the designated
portion of derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated as ‘Cash Flow Hedge
Reserve’. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Amounts previously recognised and accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the statement of Profit and Loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects the statement of Profit and Loss.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and
is recognised when the underlying transaction is ultimately recognised
in the statement of Profit and Loss. When an underlying transaction is
no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

1.2.19 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included
in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.2.20 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss
before other comprehensive income for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit
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or loss before other comprehensive income for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

1.2.21 Dividend

Dividends paid is recognized in the period in which the interim dividends
are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend
when approved by shareholders. The amount is recognised directly in
equity.

1.2.22 Treasury Shares

Shares issued to Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust has been classified as
Treasury Shares. This has been classified as deduction from other
equity.

1.2.23 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty
and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Impairment charges on loans and advances

The measurement of impairment losses requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These are based on the assumptions
which are driven by a number of factors resulting in future changes to
the impairment allowance.

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail
in Note No. 1.3.15 (vii) Overview of ECL principles.

(ii) Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the
results of the SPPI and the business model test. The Company determines
the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets
are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior
to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which
the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and
S0 a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

(iii) Provisions other than loan impairment

Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as
employee entitlements, litigation provisions, etc. Some of the provisions
involve significant judgement about the likely outcome of various events
and estimated future cash flows. The measurement of these provisions



involves the exercise of management judgements about the ultimate
outcomes of the transactions.

(iv) Fair Value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using various valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments.

(v) Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

Financial Statements

(vi) EIR method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income/expense
using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant
rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given/taken
and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various
stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding
the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected
changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are
integral parts of the instrument.

(vii) Other estimates

These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible
assets etc.

1.2.24 Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or
amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year
ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or
amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

Cash on hand *

(X in Lacs)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Balances with Banks - in Current Account 259 106
Fixed Deposits with banks having maturity of 3 months or less (including accured interest) 32,769 3,613
Total 33,028 3,719
*Amount mentioned as '0' is below rounding off threshold adopted by the Company.

(i) Changes in Cash Flow from financing activities (%in Lacs)
; As at Movement As at
Particulars 31st Mar, 2023 Cash e March 31, 2024
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 25,671 - (25,671) =
Subordinated Liabilities 33,000 - (33,000) -
Total 58,671 - (58,671) —

T in Lacs

; As at Movement As at
Particulars 31st Mar, 2022 Cash e Il March 31, 2023
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 25,723 (52) - 25,671
Subordinated Liabilities 33,000 - - 33,000
Total 58,723 (52) - 58,671
3. Bank Balance other than Note No. 2 ahove (% in Lacs)

. As at As at
Particulars I8 March 31, 2023
Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 14 24
Fixed Deposits with banks having original maturity of more than 3 months (Including
accrued interest for fixed deposits)* 76 241
Total 90 265
* Includes (% in Lacs)

: As at As at
Particulars A ESRAZ  March 31, 2023
Under Lien:
- Bank Guarantees 45 145
4.1 Trade Receivables: (X in Lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

(a) Considered good - Secured;
Less : Allowance for impairment loss allowance

As at
March 31, 2023

(a) Considered good - Unsecured; 995 834
Less : Allowance for impairment loss allowance 346 171

649 663
(c) Significant increase in credit risk - -
Less : Allowance for impairment loss allowance - -
(d) Credit impaired 1,994 2,486
Less : Allowance for impairment loss allowance 1,994 2,486

649 663

Total (a+h+c+d)

i. In determining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected
credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience. The Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount higher of lifetime expected credit losses taking into account historical credit loss experience
(adjusted for forward-looking information) and Income Recognition and Assets Classification norms of RBI compared on individual bucket

basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd.)

. Movements in Expected Credit Losses Allowance is as below:

/ Financial Statements

(X in Lacs)
. As at As at

Particulars ETCURIWPI P March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,657 2,467
Charge in Statement of Profit and Loss (365) 190
Utilized during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 2,290 2,657
ii.  Ageing of Trade Receivables and Credit Risk arising therefrom is as below: (Zin Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2024

Particulars Gross carrying Allowance for Net carrying
amount credit loss amount

Due till three months 323 - 323
Due between three to six months 181 6 175
Due between six months to one year 78 29 49
Due between one year to two year 413 311 102
More than 2 year due 1,944 1,944 -
2,939 2,290 649

(Xin Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars Gross carrying Allowance for Net carrying
amount credit loss amount
Due till three months 416 - 416
Due between three to six months 85 9 76
Due between six months to one year 38 4 34
Due between one year to two year 295 158 137
More than 2 year due 2,486 2,486 -
3,320 2,657 663
4.2 Trade Receivables:
Trade Receivables agein schedule as at 31st March, 2024* .
(Xin Lacs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months 1-2 year Total
6 months 1 year
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 49 102 649
(if) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk -
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk -
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - -
Total 49 102 649
Trade Receivables agein schedule as at 31st March, 2023* Zin Lacs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months 1-2 year Total
6 months 1 year
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 34 137 663
(if) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - -
Total 34 137 663

* Figures in the schedules are net of allowance for impairment loss.
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/
Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd.)

5. Investments (Contd...)

Quantity [ Rinlas) |

Particulars
As at As at As at As at
[[ET(A e BPAirZ ) March 31, 2023 [[EIH 3 WvAPZ] March 31, 2023

Investments Carried at Cost
Investments in Subsidiary Companies
In Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Srei Capital Markets Limited 5050000 5050000 505 505
Srei Insurance Broking Private Limited 5000000 5000000 412 412
Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Limited 127500 127500 13 13
Controlla Electrotech Private Limited (Refer note (ii) below) 35305 35305 708 708
Srei Mutual Fund Asset Management Private Limited 18500000 18500000 = 1,279
Srei Mutual Fund Trust Private Limited 150000 150000 = -
Srei Asset Leasing Limited 1000000 1000000 100 100
Srei Equipment Finance Limited 1000000 79016415 - -
Bengal Srei Infrastructure Development Limited 25500 25500 - -
In Warrants (Unquoted)

Srei Mutual Fund Trust Private Limited 450000 450000 — -

1,738 3,017

Investments in Mutual Funds
In Mutual Funds (Quoted)
Unit Trust of India 400 400 1 1

Investments Carried at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
In Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 500 500 9 9
Bharat Road Network Limited 16630000 16630000 9,280 4,365
Orient Green Power Gompany Limited 10924302 10924302 2,043 989
India Power Corporation Limited (Refer note (iii) below) 105524100 105524100 16,251 10,922
27,583 16,285
In Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
TN (DK) Expressways Limited (Pledged with Bank) 13000 13000 = -
Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited (Pledged with Bank) 19500 19500 = -
Suratgarh Bikaner Toll Road Company Private Limited 17750 17750 = -
Starlift Services Private Limited 1200 1200 - 1
Kamala Tea Company Limited 25000 25000 38 37
Mahakaleshwar Tollways Private Limited 13270376 13270376 - -
In Warrants (Unquoted)
Samsara Energy Limited 23540 23540 - -
Viom Infra Ventures Limited 99620 99620 — -
38 38
In Units of Trusts and Schemes of Venture Funds (Unquoted)
India Advantage Fund III (Refer note (iv) below) 164981 164981 185 185
Infrastructure Project Development Capital 661654 661654 1,336 1,130
Infra Construction Fund (Refer note (iv) below) 1880333 1880333 = 19,335
India Growth Opportunities Fund 3526949 3526949 456 458
Make In India Fund 1000000 1000000 180 157
Vision India Fund 5100000 5100000 2,401 3,442
4,558 24,707
Total 33,918 44,048

All quoted and unquoted investments mentioned above are fully paid-up.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd.)

5. Investments (Contd...)

Note:

(i) During the year, dividend income has been recognised for ¥ 0.03 Lacs (Previous year ¥ 0.02 Lacs) on equity instruments categorised as
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and ¥ Nil (Previous year % 100 Lacs) on equity instruments categorised at deemed
cost from its subsidiary.

(i) The fair value of equity shares of Controlla Electrotech Private Limited is estimated to be higher than its carrying amount as on 31st March,
2024. Accordingly, no impairment provision is considered necessary.

(iii) The Company has investments in units of Alternative Investments Funds which is managed by Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Limited
(Trinity), subsidiary of the Company. As per Clause 23 (1) of AIF Regulations, 2012, Investment Managers are mandated to provide NAV at
least once in every six months. The Company determines the fair valuation of units in the funds based on the NAV provided by Trinity. As of
March 31, 2024, Trinity has supplied NAV for funds as of September 30, 2023, forming the basis for the recognition of fair valuation.

(iv) The Company has investments in units India Advantage Fund Il which is managed by ICICI Venture Funds Management Company Limited.
The fair value has been recognised basis on the of last received NAV as on 31 March, 2023 by the Company.

(v) Pursuant to amalgamation of DPSC Ltd with erstwhile India Power Corporation Limited (IPCL), the Company is entitled to an allotment of
10,55,24,100 equity shares of IPCL. However, the allotment of the Company's holdings has been pending since 2013 due to IPCL's non-
compliance with SEBI Regulations. The fair value of IPCL shares, as quoted on March 31, 2024, has been recognized in the books of account
of the Company.

Similarly, as a consequence of the amalgamation, the Infra Construction Fund (ICF) is entitled to an allotment of 31,35,00,000 equity shares
of IPCL. However, the allotment of the Fund's holdings has been pending since 2013 due to IPCL's non-compliance with SEBI Regulations.
The valuation report submitted by Trinity as of September 30, 2023, has assessed the value of IPCL shares as Nil, reflecting the ongoing
delay in the allotment process.

(vi) The Company's investment in its material subsidiary, Srei Equipment Finance Limited (“SEFL”) was fully impaired during the financials year
ended 31st March, 2021 amounting to ¥ 3,10,455 Lacs. In terms of Approved Resolution Plan, a part of existing issued equity share capital
of SEFL, amounting to ¥ 7,802 Lacs has been cancelled and extinguished by way of Capital Reduction in December, 2023. As part of capital
reduction arrangement, SEFL is liable to pay cash payment of ¥ 50,000 Lacs to SIFL out of which ¥ 30,000 Lacs already paid before March
31, 2024. Since, the book value of these investment was % Nil, the entire consideration of ¥ 50,000 Lacs has been recognised in the Statement
of Profit & Loss as an Exceptional Item and categorized as Profit on Cancellation of Investment.

(vii) 950 nos. NCD's (face value ¥ 10,00,000 each) issued by Fortis Healthcare Holdings Private Ltd were transferred to SEFL under Slump exchange
w.e.f. 01 Oct, 2019. Being matured ISIN, the depository has rejected the transfer request given by the Company in favor of SEFL. Therefore,
these NCD's are being held by the Company on behal of SEFL and are not considered as investments of the Company.

6. Other Financial Assets Zin Lacs)

. As at As at
Particulars IEEIIPI  March 31, 2023
Income accrued - 43
Loans to employees = 2
Security deposits

To Others 131 75

Less - Impairment allowance on security deposits (10) (10)
Excess Corpus in Gratuity assets (Refer Note. 42) 27 29
Receivables from SEFL against cancellation of Investment 20,000 -
Recoverable from Subsidiary Company* 5 5
Others 4 4
Less - Impairment allowance (4) (4)
Total 20,153 144
*Itincludes X 0.21 Lacs receivable from SEFL (Previous Year ¥ Nil) & ¥ 5.02 Lacs fom TAIML (Previous Year ¥ 5.02 Lacs).
7. Other Non-Financial Assets (Zin Lacs)
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Employee Advances 1 4
Advance to Vendors for Operating Expenses 12 30
Less - Impairment allowance on advances (-) (8)
Balances with Government Authorities 96 12
Prepaid expenses 27 7
Total 136 45
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd.)

V.

Financial Statements

8. Current Tax Assets (Net) ( in Lacs)
Particulars Marclﬁf,tzozi
Advance Tax [(net of provision for tax ¥ Nil Lacs 31st March, 2023: X Nil Lacs)] 5,379 5,332
Total 5,379 5,332
The Reconciliation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is as below: (%in Lacs)
. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Profit before tax 48,146 (276)
Statutory Income Tax Rate 2517% 25.17%
Expected income tax expense at statutory income tax rate 12,117 (69)
(i) Income exempt from tax/Items not deductible (net) = (42)
(ii) Effect of indexation benefit/different tax rate on certain items = -
(i) Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) charged/not recognised to Statement of Profit & Loss (37,930) 111
(iv) Other time difference 25,813 -
(v) Income Tax for earlier years 20 5
Total Tax Expense recognised in profit and loss account 20 5
Total Tax Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income - -
9. Deferred Tax Assets/(Deferred Tax Liability) (Net)
The Reconciliation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is as below: (% in Lacs)

As at
1st April, 2023

Recognised /
(reversed) in

Recognised /

(reversed) in Other

As at

Particulars Statement of  Comprehensive 31st March, 2024
Profit & Loss Income
Receivables, Financial Assets and Liabilities at Amortised Cost 27,849 (26,827) - 1,022
Unrealised gain on Investment carried at Fair Value 1,547 2,257 3,804
Carried Forward of Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation 17,314 (11,086) 6,228
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (173) (13) (186)
Other Temporary Differences 5 (4) 1
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 46,542 (37,930) 2,257 10,869
Net Deferred tax assets not recognised 46,542 (37,930) 2,257 10,869
(Xin Lacs)
As at Recognised / Recognised /
Particulars 1st April, 2022 (reversed) in (reversed) in cher As at
Statement of  Comprehensive 31st March, 2023
Profit & Loss Income
Receivables, Financial Assets and Liabilities at Amortised Cost 27,800 49 - 27,849
Unrealised gain on Investment carried at Fair Value 4,792 - 3,245) 1,547
Carried Forward of Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation 18,178 28 (892) 17,314
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (158) (15) - (173)
Other Temporary Differences 184 (173) (6) 5
Net Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) 50,796 (111) (4,143) 46,542
Net Deferred tax assets not recognised 50,796 (111) (4,143) 46,542

The Company has incurred profit for the year ended 31st March, 2024 however has accumulated losses till 31st March, 2023 which resulted in
carry forward business losses on which deferred tax assets can be created to the extent it is probable that in future taxable profits will be available
against which carry forward business losses can be utilized. Considering the uncertainty that future taxable profits will be available for set off
against which carry forward losses can be utilised, the Company has decided not to create deferred tax assets on net basis during the year ended
31st March, 2024 in accordance to Ind AS 12, which will be reviewed in future period.
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12. Trade Payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(Xin Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2024 2023
a) The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier* 6 40

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, = -
Small Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day.

¢) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have - -
been paid but beyond the appointed day) but without adding the interest specified
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -

e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year until such - -
date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Total 6 40

*The information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

Trade Payables include ¥ Nil Lacs (Previous year - X Nil Lacs) due to the related parties.
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March,
2024 2023
For Services 140 641
Total 140 641
(c) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024
(X in Lacs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Less than1year 1-2year  2-3 year More than 3 year Total

Trade Payables
(i) MSME 6 - - - 6
(i) Others 26 108 6 - 140
(iii) Disputed dues (MSMEs) and - -

(ii) Disputed dues (Others) - -

D |
1

32 108 146
Unbilled dues - - - - R
Total 32 108 6 - 146
(d) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2023
(X in Lacs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year  1-2year  2-3 year More than 3 year Total

Trade Payables

(i) MSME 9 30 - 1 40
(i) Others 248 122 76 195 641
(iii) Disputed dues (MSMEs) and - - - - -
(iii) Disputed dues (Others) - - - - -

257 152 76 196 681
Unbilled dues - - - - -
Total 257 152 76 196 681
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13. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

(X in Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Paticulars At Amortised Cost At Fair Value Designated at fair Total JEIGIGETNER SE: d A FII Designated at fair ~ Total

Through profit  value through Through profitand  value through profit

and loss profit or loss Loss or loss

Unsecured
Inter Corporate Deposits = = = = 25,671 - - 25,671
Total - - - - 25,671 - - 25,671
Borrowings in India - - - - 25,671 - - 25,671
Total - - - - 25,671 - - 25,671

As of 31st March, 2023, an Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) of ¥ 25,671 Lacs was outstanding from SEFL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
The ICD bears interest at a rate of 10% per annum.

As per the Approved Resolution Plan, an amount of ¥ 25,671 Lacs representing the debt of the Approving Financial Creditors (AFC) of SEFL has
been assigned to SIFL against repayment of Inter Corporate Deposit owed to SEFL. This debt is an integral component of the Approved Resolution
Plan. In consideration of this assignment, AFC is entitled to hold 20% (Twenty Percent) equity share capital in SIFL.

Accordingly, SIFL has issued 2,00,000 (Two Lacs) equity shares with a face value of ¥ 10/- (Rupees Ten) each. The issue price per share is
¥ 12,836, inclusive of a premium of ¥ 12,826 per share. This issuance has been executed to settle the assigned debt of ¥ 25,671 Lacs, resulting
in AFC holding 20% stake in the Company.

Pursuant to the admission of the Company under the CIRP, SIFL had not provided for interest amount X 1,838 Lacs for year ended 31st March,
2024 and ¥ 2,567 Lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2023 in respect of SIFL’s obligation for interest on Inter Corporate Deposit. After initiation
of CIRP, the interest on ICD is not payable from the date of initiation of CIRP.

14. Subordinated Liabilities

(X in Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Paticulars ARG SRR TR EL TR ES T EICH RIS EIT@N eI At Amortised Cost At Fair Value Designated at fair ~ Total

Through profit  value through Through profitand  value through profit

and loss profit or loss Loss or loss

Subordinated Perpetual - - - - 33,000 - - 33,000
bonds / debentures
(Tier | Capital)
(Refer Note No. 14.7)
Total = = = = 33,000 - - 33,000
Subordinated = = = = 33,000 - - 33,000
Liabilities in India
Total = = = = 33,000 - - 33,000

14.1 Subordinated Perpetual bonds/debentures (Tier | Capital)

During the period, the Company has not raised Unsecured subordinated perpetual debentures (Previous Year: T Nil Lacs). As at 31st March, 2024,
the amount outstanding is ¥ Nil (31st March, 2023: ¥ 33,000 Lacs). These debentures had call option which was exercisable with prior approval
of RBI. Gall Option could be exercised by the Company on 1st April, 2029 for ¥ 32,000 Lacs and 22nd April, 2029 for ¥ 1,000 Lacs.

(X in Lacs)

Rate of Interest As at 31st March, 2023
Maturity Profile Total
2029 - 30 2029 - 30
10% = = 33,000 33,000
Total - - 33,000 33,000
In terms of the Approved Resolution Plan, the debt of Subordinated Perpetual Debentures amounting to ¥ 33,000 Lacs have been converted into

equity shares and such equity shares have been cancelled and extinguished by way of capital reduction.

Pursuant to the admission of the Company under the CIRP, SIFL had not provided for interest amount ¥ 2,362 Lacs for the year ended 31st March,
2024 and ¥ 3,300 Lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2023 in respect of SIFL’s obligation for interest on Non-convertible Perpetual Bond. After
initiation of CIRP, the interest on ICD is not payable from the date of initiation of CIRP.

14.2 Subordinated bonds/debentures (Tier Il Capital)

The Company has not raised any fund from subordinated bonds/debentures qualifying for Tier Il capital during the year ended 31st March, 2024
and 31st March, 2023.

14.3 Subordinated Loan & Deposits

The Company has not raised any fund from subordinated loans & deposits qualifying for Tier || capital during the year ended 31st March, 2024
and year ended 31st March, 2023.
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15. Other Financial Liabilities

(in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
Unpaid Dividends 14 24
Security Deposits & Retentions 37 15,507
Payable to Employees 11 35
Liability for Operating Expenses 206 37
Payable to subsidiary company™* - 107
Total 268 16,044

*As of 31st March, 2023, SEFL had made payments totaling ¥ 107 Lacs on behalf of the Company. These payments were related to a bank guarantee
invoked by a customer of the Company and related charges.

16. Provisions

(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Provision for Unavailed Leave (Refer Note No. 42) 6 6
Total 6 6
17. Other Non-financial liabilities
(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Advance from Customers 8 4
Statutory Liabilities 59 64
Total 67 68
18. Equity Share Capital
(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
No. of Shares No. of Shares 3 in Lacs
Authorised
Equity Shares, ¥ 10/- par value per share 1000000000 1,00,000 1000000,000 1,00,000
Preference Shares, ¥ 100/- par value per share 50000000 50,000 50000000 50,000
1,50,000 1,50,000
Issued and subscribed
Equity Shares, X 10/- par value per share 1000000 100 503086333 50,309
Fully Paid-up
Equity Shares, X 10/- par value per share 1000000 100 503086333 50,309
100 50,309
18.1 Reconciliation of the Number of Equity Shares outstanding
The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding and the corresponding amount thereof, as at the Balance Sheet date is set out below:
(X in Lacs)

. As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars
No. of Shares T in Lacs No. of Shares T inLacs

At the beginning of the year 503086333 50,309 503086333 50,309
Add: Issued during the year (Refer note 48) 491006197 49,101 -

Less: Reduction during the year (Refer note 48) 993092530 99,309 - -
At the end of the year 1000000 100 503086333 50,309
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18.2 Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of each class of shares

The Company’s authorised capital consists of two classes of shares, referred to as Equity Shares and Preference Shares having par value of
% 10/- and X 100/- each respectively. As per Approved Resolution Plan, the par value of Equity Shares have been sub-divided into par value of
Re 1 each with effect from May 7th, 2024. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Preference Shareholder has a preferential
right over equity share holders, in respect of repayment of capital and payment of dividend. However, no such preference shares have been issued
by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023.

The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of
the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

18.3 Shares allotted as fully paid-up without payment being received in cash/by way of bonus shares (during 5 years preceding 31st March,
2024)

During the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Company had issued 200000 shares to Approving Financial Creditors (AFC) on assignment of Debt
of AFCs in exchange of Intercorporate Deposit from SEFL (Refer note 13). The Company has also issued 100000 equity shares to ESOP Trust
during this period without payment being received in cash. Apart from afroresaid, the Company had not issued any shares without payment being
received in cash/by way of bonus shares during preceeding 5 years.

18.4 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares each, are set out below:

SI.No. Name of the Shareholders As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

[RGB (BTG A R ETCL GG No. of Shares % of Shareholding

1 Adisri Commercial Private Limited 30,36,75,845 60.36%
2 National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 4,60,000 46.00% - -
3 India Debt Resolution Company Limited 2,40,000 24.00% - -
4 Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust 1,00,000 10.00% - -
18.5 Shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2024:
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
SI.No. Promoter name No. of shares % of total shares % Change during the year
(i) Adisri Commercial Private Limited - 0.00% -60.36%
(i) Sunil Kanoria - 0.00% -0.36%
(i)~ Hemant Kanoria - 0.00% -0.08%
Total 0.00%
Shareholding of promoters as at March 31, 2023:
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
SI.No. Promoter name No. of shares % of total shares % Change during the year
(i)  Adisri Commercial Private Limited (Holding Company) 30,36,75,845 60.36% -
(i) Sunil Kanoria 18,02,714 0.36% -
(ili)  Hemant Kanoria 3,80,000 0.08% -
Total 30,58,58,559 60.80%

Note: Promoter here means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.
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19. Other Equity (¥ in Lacs)

Particulars As at
CIORVET(A A iPZ 3  31st March, 2023

Treasury Stock

Shares issued to Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust (10) -

Closing halance (10) -

Special Reserve (pursuant to Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

Opening balance 27,512 27,512

Add: Transfer from retained earnings 9,625 -

Closing balance 37,137 27,512

Income Tax Special Reserve (created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

Opening balance 14,606 14,606

Less: Transfer to Restructuring Reserve (14,606) -

Closing bhalance - 14,606

Capital Reserve

Opening balance 1,960 1,960

Less: Transfer to Restructuring Reserve (1,960) -

Closing bhalance - 1,960

Securities Premium Reserve

Opening balance 19,754 19,754

Security premium on new capital issue 25,651

Less: Transfer to Restructuring Reserve (45,405)

Closing halance - 19,754

General Reserve

Opening balance 1,39,604 1,39,604

Less: Transfer to Restructuring Reserve (1,39,604) -

Closing bhalance - 1,39,604

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Opening balance (9,438) (25,040)

Add: Addition during the year (8,851) 15,602

Less: Reclassification to retained earnings (net of tax) - -

Closing balance (18,289) (9,438)

Restructuring Reserve (Refer note 48)
Transfer From

Capital Reserve 1,960 -
Securities Premium Reserve 45,405 -
General Reserve 1,39,604
Capital Reduction 99,309
Income Tax Special Reserve (created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961) 14,606
Payment to AFC towards Bank Guarantee (126)
Transfer to Retained Earnings (3,00,758)

Closing bhalance - -
Retained Earnings (Refer note 48)

Opening balance (2,56,374) (2,56,117)
Add: Profit for the year 48,126 (281)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 1 24
Add: Transfer From Restructuring Reserve 2,91,133 -
Closing balance 82,885 (2,56,374)
Total 1,01,724 (62,376)

(i) Treasury Shares

Treasury shares represents Company's own equity shares held by Kairos ESOP Trust, which is created for the purpose of issuing equity shares
to employees under Company's stock option plan.

(ii) Special Reserve:

Every year the Company transfers a sum of not less than twenty percent of net profit after tax, if any, of that year to its Statutory Reserve pursuant
to Section 45-IC of The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The conditions and restrictions for distribution attached to Special Reserve is as follows:

No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the Company except for the purpose as may be specified by the RBI from
time to time and every such appropriation shall be reported to the RBI within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal. RBI may, in any
particular case and for sufficient cause being shown, extend the period of twenty one days by such further period as it thinks fit or condone any
delay in making such report.
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(iii) Income Tax Special Reserve:

This reserve has been created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and any withdrawal from same will be taxable as per
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(iv) Capital Reserve:

This reserve represents capital investment subsidy received, amount forfeited towards warrant subscription and amount on cancellation of forfeited
equity shares. As per Approved Resolution Plan, existing Capital Reserve has been transferred to Restructuring Reserve during the year ended
31st March, 2024.

(v) Securities Premium:

This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. As
per Approved Resolution Plan, all Securities Premium have been transferred to Restructuring Reserve during the year ended 31st March, 2024.

(vi) General Reserve:

This reserve include amount transferred from net profit as per provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and Reserves created on Amalgamation.
As per Approved Resolution Plan, existing General Reserve has been transferred to Restructuring Reserve during the year ended 31st March,
2024.

(vii) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income:

This Reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the changes in Fair Value of Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income, net of amounts reclassified, if any, to Retained Earnings when those instruments are disposed off.

(viii) Restructuring Reserve:

As per Approved Resolution Plan, Capital Reserve, Securities Premium, General Reserve and amount generated our of Capital Reduction have
been transferred to Restructuring Reserve during the year ended 31st March, 2024. The entire Restructuring Reserve have been transferred to
Retained Earnings as Free Reserve. (Refer note 48)

(ix) Retained Earnings:

This reserve represents the cumulative profits/(loss) of the Company and amounts transferred from Restructuring Reserve as mentioned above.
This can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

20. Interest Income

(Zin Lacs)
Year Ended 31st March, 2024 Year Ended 31st March, 2023
NS ED RIS GO E T EN RS R D G CSA LT CRM - On Financial Assets  On Financial Assets  Interest Income on
. measured at fair measured at Financial Assets measured at fair measured at Financial Assets
Particulars value through 0CI  Amortised Cost HESITTETRE @ value through OCI  Amortised Cost classified at fair
value through value through
profit or loss profit or loss
Interest on deposits with Banks = 220 = - 79 -
Other interest Income - - - - 60 -
Total - 220 - - 139 -
21. Other Income
(X in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
AR R ETH (W4IPZ 88 31st March, 2023
Liability no longer required written back 2 -
Interest on Income Tax Refund = 149
Others™ 1 62
Total 3 211
*It includes income from Guest House ¥ 0.52 Lacs.
22. Finance Costs
(X in Lacs)
Year Ended 31st March, 2024 Year Ended 31st March, 2023
Particulars On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial
HENNES U CERITERRIET TN CERTCIN  liabilities measured  liabilities measured
at fair value at Amortised Cost at fair value at Amortised Cost
through profit or loss through profit or loss
Other interest expense = 3 - 19
Total - 3 - 19
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23. Impairment on Financial Instruments (net) (X in Lacs)
Year Ended 31st March, 2024 Year Ended 31st March, 2023
. On Financial On Financial On Financial On Financial

Particulars ST EESTC ST E S CERTELN  Instruments measured — Instrumentsmeasured
at fair value at Amortised Cost at fair value at Amortised Cost
through OCI through OCI

Investments - - - -

Bad Debt Written Off - 441 - -

Impairment Investment (Fellow Subsidiaries) - 1,280 - -

Other Financial Assets - - - 194

Impairment provision on Trade Receivable = (366) - -

Total - 1,355 - 194

24. Employee Benefits Expenses (X in Lacs)

Particulars Year Ended 31st March, 2023
Salaries and wages 209 256
Contribution to provident and other funds 10 15
Staff welfare expenses 7 5
Total 226 276
25. Administrative and Other Expenses (Xin Lacs)

Particulars

Year Ended 31st March, 2024 Year Ended 31st March, 2023

Rent, Taxes and Energy Costs 119 58
Repairs and Maintenance 67 72
Communication Costs 1 2
Printing and Stationery 4 1
Advertisement and Publicity 6 9
Auditor's Fees and Expenses (Refer Note No. 25.1) 34 43
Legal and Professional Charges 84 49
Insurance 26 14
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note No. 25.2) - -
Travelling & Gonveyance 59 57
CIRP Expenses (Refer Note No. 25.3) 462 514
Other Expenditure 93 112
Total 958 931
25.1 Payments to the Auditor (% in Lacs)
; Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars LY 31st March, 2023
As Auditor - Statutory Audit & Limited Reviews 31 40
For Other Services (Certification etc.) 2 2
For Reimbursement of Expenses 1 1
Total 34 43
25.2 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (R in Lacs)
. OIRUCRTEEIC LI For the year ended
Particulars AL W I 31st March, 2023
(@) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year -
(b)  Amount of expenditure incurred (paid in cash) -
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year - -
(d) Total of previous years shortfall - 52
(e) Reason for shortfall Refer Note No. 49 Refer Note No. 49
(f) Nature of CSR activities Not Applicable Not Applicable
(9) Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the

Company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard

(h)  Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable
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25.3 (Xin Lacs)
i TR OCRTEICIGEI M For the year ended
Particulars TLTOR I 31st March, 2023
Fees to Resolution professional 4 54
Manpower Cost 26 72
Other Expenses 836 388
Total 462 514
26. Earnings Per Share (EPS) - The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic and Diluted EPS (X in Lacs)
: Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars L ERI e 31st March, 2023
Profit/(Loss) for the year 48,126 (281)
Basic and Diluted
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 50,30,86,333 50,30,86,333
Add: Number of Equity Shares issued during the year 49,10,06,197 -
Less: Capital Reduction 99,30,92,530
Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 10,00,000 50,30,86,333
Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding for calculation of EPS 36,04,16,992 50,30,86,333
Nominal Value of each Equity Share (%) 10 10
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity share (%) 13.35 (0.06)

There have been no transaction involving ordinary equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of completion of these standalone
financial statements which would require the restatement of EPS.

27. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the Extent not Provided for) (X in Lacs)

. As at As at
Particulars L B 31st March, 2023

A. Contingent Liabilities

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts :
Income Tax*
Service Tax*
Central Sales Tax*

(b) Guarantees:

Corporate Guarantees™* - 3,270
Bank Guarantees™* - 345
(c) Others *** - 35
Total = 3,650

*Claims/Debts against the Company upto the effective date which are addressed under the NCLT approved resolution plan are not included in
contingent liabilities though many of such claims/debts may be pending for disposal at various judicial forums. As per approved resolution plan,
these liabilities stands extinguished. Accordingly, the management has assessed that the possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits with respect to such claims/debts is remote.

All direct and indirect tax liabilities relating to assessments of earlier year from the effective date stand extinguished as per the NCLT approved
resolution plan. Further, the implementation of the resolution plan does not have any effect over claims or receivables owed to the Company.
Accordingly, the Company has assessed that any receivables due to the Company, evaluated based on merits of underlying litigations, from various
governmental agencies continues to subsist.

** As per the Approved Resolution Plan, all liabilities towards the Corporate Guarantees isssued by the Company and Bank Guarantees have been
extinguished from the effective date. This includes X Nil (31st March, 2023: ¥ 345 Lacs) issued on Company’s behalf by the Banker of SEFL out
of banks credit line of SEFL.

*** SEBI vide its Adjudication Order No. Order/DS/DK/2022-23/20903- 20964 dated 31st October, 2022 (‘Order’), in the matter of Religare
Enterprises Limited had imposed a penalty of ¥ 35 Lacs on the Company payable within 45 days from the date of receipt of the Order. However,
vide its Corrigendum to Order dated 30th November, 2022, SEBI has clarified that the said period of 45 days shall not be applicable in respect of
the Company due to the CIRP proceedings pending against it. The said penalty is payable subject to the provisions of IBC and outcome of the
appeal filed by SEBI in the Dewan Housing Finance Limited case matter in the Hon’ble Supreme Court (Appeal No. 206 of 2020). As per Approved
Resolution Plan, this liablity has been extinguished from the effective date.
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28. Title deeds of Inmovable Properties not held in name of the Company

Relevant line item in | Description of item of Gross carrying value Title deeds held in Whether title deed holder |  Property held | Reason for not heing
the Balance Sheet property (Xin Lacs) the name of is promoter, director or since held in the name of the
relative of promoter / which date Company

director or employee of

As at As at .
31st March, 2024 [ETEHNSION promoter / director
PPE Building (Saket, 8,747.34 8,747.34 | South Lake Properties No 29th Sept, 2010 o
New Delhi) Pvt Ltd / Pushp Vihar
Properties Pvt Ltd /
Koshika Properties Pvt
Ltd / Wales Properties
Pvt Ltd

** In respect of property at Saket Place, New Delhi ('Property'), which was purchased by the Company from third party by execution of deed of
declaration and for which purchase consideration was paid. The builder was supposed to get the required approval of Delhi Development Authority
for conversion of Property from leasehold to freehold before conveyance, which is pending and the matter has been referred to the appropriate
legal forum, where it is sub-judice.

29. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st March, 2023.

30. Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company has not entered into any transaction with Companies struck-off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
the Companies Act, 1956 during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st March, 2023.

31. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

32. The Company has received show cause notices from few banks for declaring the Company as wilful defaulter and suitable replies for the same
has been submitted by the Company to the best of our knowledge and information available. In accordance with the Resolution Plan and Section
32A of the Code, the liability of the Corporate Debtors for any offences committed prior to the commencement of the CIRP shall cease. Consequently,
neither the Corporate Debtors nor the Resolution Applicant shall be prosecuted for any such offences from the NCLT Approval Date onward.
Therefore, the Company shall not be considered a wilful defaulter for the pre-CIRP period, and the erstwhile promoters of the Company are
responsible for addressing the show cause notices related to wilful default for the pre-CIRP period (Also Refer Note No.53).

33. The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction
on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

34. Undisclosed Income

There are no transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended 31st
March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961) There are no previously unrecorded income and related assets have been properly recorded in the books
of account during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st March, 2023.

35. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(A) During the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(B) During the year ended 31st March, 2024 and yearended 31st March, 2023, the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company
shall:

(i)  directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
36. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st
March, 2023.
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37. Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous
years. However, in view of detoriating asset quality and substantial increment in the provisions held and liquidity problems faced by the Company,
the net worth of the Company was fully eroded. The Company was under GIRP with effect from 8th October, 2021. Post implementation of
resolution plan as approved by NCLT vide order dated 11.08.2023, Net worth of the Company as at 31st March, 2024 has turned positive and
continues to operate as a going concern.

38. Regulatory Capital (Capital Adequacy Ratio) (X in Lacs)
Particulars s1stharh, 2020 [T Maroh, 2023

Tier | capital 101,797 (17,052)
Tier Il capital - -
Total capital* 101,797 (17,052)
Risk Weighted Assets 63,858 54,843
Tier | Ratio (%) 159.41% (31.09%)

Tier Il Ratio (%) = -

* If Tier Il capital exceeds Tier | capital, amount exceeding Tier | capital is not considered for Total capital funds & if Tier | capital is negative, Tier Il capital is
ignored. As at 31st March, 2023 subordinated debts (Tier Il capital) have not been considered in Total capital as Tier | capital is negative.

Regulatory capital consists of Tier | capital, which comprises share capital, share premium, perpetual debt instrument, retained earnings including
current year profit/(loss), statutory reserves and other free reserves less deferred revenue expenditure and intangible assets. The other component
of regulatory capital is Tier Il Capital Instruments, which includes subordinate bonds.

39. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet
items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised in respect of each class of Financial Asset, Financial Liability and Equity Instrument are disclosed in Note No. 1.15 to
the financial statements.

A) Categories of Financial Instruments
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:
(X in Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value  Fair Value

Financial Assets
a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i)  Cash and Cash Equivalents 33,028 33,028 3,719 3,719
i) Bank Balance other than (i) above 90 90 265 265
i) Trade Receivables 649 649 663 663
iv) Investment* 1,738 1,738 3,017 3,017
v)  Other Financial Assets 20,153 20,153 144 144
Sub-total 55,658 55,658 7,808 7,808
b) Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss
i) Investments 1 1 1 1
Sub-total 1 1 1 1
c) Measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income
i) Investments 32,179 32,179 41,030 41,030
Sub-total 32,179 32,179 41,030 41,030
Total Financial Assets 87,838 87,838 48,839 48,839
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(3in Lacs)

Particular As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
ariiouars Carrying Value | Fair Value Carrying Value  Fair Value

Financial Liabilities
a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Payables 146 146 681 681
ii) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) = = 25,671 25,671
i) Subordinated Liabilities - > 33,000 33,000
iv) Lease Liabilities 1 1 2 2
v)  Other Financial Liabilities 268 268 16,044 16,044
Sub-total 415 415 75,398 75,398
Sub-total - = - -
Total financial liabilities 415 415 75,398 75,398

*Investment in subsidiary companies are measured at deemed cost.

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured
at fair value in the Company’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and
assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables.

Loans measured at amortised cost

The fair values of loan assets are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on observable future cash flows based on terms, discounted
at the average lending rate of the Company.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets have assets with short-term maturity (include ¥ 20,032 Lacs maturing in less than twelve months) as on balance sheet date
and therefore, the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Debt Securities, Subordinated Liabilities and Other Borrowings measured at amortised cost

The fair values of debts are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual future cash flows based on terms, discounted at
the average borrowing rate of the company.

Other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities have liability with short-term maturity (include ¥ 268 Lacs maturing in less than twelve months) as on balance sheet date
and therefore, the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

B) Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Level
1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity
instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price
as at the reporting period.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example
over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data,
the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities and Loan Assets carried at FVTPL/FVTOCI included in level 3.

(in Lacs)
As at 31st March, 2024

Particulars

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
Other financial assets - - - -
Investments 27,584 - 4,596 32,180

27,584 - 4,596 32,180
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(XinLacs)
Particulars Level1  Level2  Level3 Total
Financial Assets
Other financial assets - - - -
Investments 16,286 - 24,745 41,031
16,286 - 24,745 41,031
Note 1: Fair value of the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(in Lacs)
Fair Value
As at As at Fair Value Valuation Significant
Particular 31st March, 31st March, Heirarchy Technique and Unobservable
2024 2023 Key Input Input
Financial Assets
Other financial assets - - Level 3 Note (ii) Note (v)
Investments 27,584 16,286 Level 1 Note (iii) Not Applicable
Investments 4,596 24,745 Level 3 Note (iv) Note (v) & (vi)
Financial liabilities
Derivative Financial Instruments - - Level 2 Note (i) Not Applicable

(i) Mark-to-Market
Fair value of the asset and liability has been estimated using the current market price, or price for similar assets and liabilities as applicable.
(ii) Income Approach

The discounted cash flow method was used to capture the present value of the expected future benefits (including contractual cash flows) to be
derived from the Loans, Investments and Other Financial Assets.

(iii) Quoted Prices

Quoted bid prices of an active market was used.

(iv) Other Inputs

(a) Market Multiple Method: Relevant information from companies operating in similar economic environment and industry was used.

(b) Discounted Cash Flow Method: Present value of the expected future benefits to be derived from the underlying Assets.

(c) Net Asset Valuation Method: Value of the underlying net assets of the business.

(v) Discount rate, determined using the average cost of borrowing of the Company + spread or contract yield rates or as considered by the Valuer.
(vi) Estimated future cash flows.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (Xin Lacs)

- Investments Other financial assets
Reconciliation
mz- 22-23 Eﬂ. 22-23

Opening Balance 24,745 5,122 - -
Addition - - - -
Sale/Repayment - - - -
Transfers from Level 3 - - - -
Unrealised income/(loss) (20,149) 19,623 = -
Closing Balance 4,596 24,745 - -

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data (impact of change by 2%)

The table below describes the effect of changing the significant unobservable inputs to reasonable possible alternatives. Sensitivity data are
calculated using a number of techniques, including analysing price dispersion of different price sources, adjusting model inputs to reasonable
changes within the fair value methodology.

The ranges are not comparable or symmetrical as the model inputs are usually not in the middle of the favourable/unfavourable range.

Below table shows impact of increase/decrease in fair valuation measurement at 2%.
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(ZinLacs)
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Reconciliation
AL EL B Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
Changes Changes Changes Changes
Investment 92 (92) 495 (495)
Other financial assets - - - -
Total 92 (92) 495 (495)

C) Financial risk management objectives
The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

The Company has reconstituted the Risk Management Committee including constitution of its sub committees viz Operational Risk Management
Committee of Executives, Credit Risk Management Committee of Exectives and the Product & Process Approval Committee. The Asset Liability
Management Committee has also been reconstituted. The Financial risk management framework would further undergo revision since new Board
has been constituted.

a) Market risk

The Company's Financial Instruments are exposed to market changes. The Company is exposed to the following significant market risk:
i.  Foreign Currency Risk

ii. Interest Rate Risk

ii. Other Price Risk

i. Foreign currency risk

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currency which results in exchange rate fluctuations. Such exchange rate risk
primarily arises from transactions made in foreign exchange and reinstatement risks arising from recognised assets and liabilities, which are not
in the Company's functional currency (Indian Rupees).

The Company is having any Foreign Curreny Exposure of USD 245,529 as on 31st March, 2024 (Nil-31 March 2023). Hence, the Company's profit
and loss and equity is exposed to such foreign currency risk.

Foreign Currency Sensitivities

There is outstanding receivable of USD 245,529 in foreign currency as at 31st March, 2024 (Nil-31st March, 2023), which will have sensitivity
impact.

ii. Interest rate risk

Post transfer of business under slump exchange, the Company is not having floating interest rate borrowings. The Company manages the risk
by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, and by use of interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate

swaps. Hedging activities are evaluated to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, to deploy the most cost effective hedging
strategies.

Post transfer of business under slump exchange, the Company has not undertaken lending business.
The Company is not having any borrowing currently.

The sensitivity analysis is applicable on the exposure having floating interest rates for assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period. As
there is no exposure having floating interest rates, no separate disclosure is being done.

iii. Price risk
Equity price risk is related to change in market reference price of investments in equity securities held by the Company. The fair value of quoted
investments held by the Company exposes the Company to equity price risks. In general, these investments are not held for trading purposes.

The fair value of quoted investments in equity, classified as fair value through Profit & Loss/fair value through Other Comprehensive Income as
at 31st March, 2024 is ¥ 27,584/- Lacs (31st March, 2023 is X 16,286 Lacs).

A 10% change in equity prices of such securities held as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023, would result in an impact of ¥ 2,758 Lacs,
and ¥ 1,629 Lacs respectively.
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d) Risk concentrations

The principal business of the Company was to provide financing in the form of loans to its clients for various infrastructure and allied purposes.
Post the transfer of Lending Business, Interest Earning Business & Lease Business ("Transferred Undertaking") together with associated employees,
assets and liabilities of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (SIFL) to Srei Equipment Finance Limited (SEFL) as a going concern basis by way of
slump exchange w.e.f. from October 1, 2019, the new business of SIFL is largely predicated on Infrastructure Advisory, Financial Solutions Advisory
and Fee Based Business.

Credit Risk is the risk of loss that occurs when a borrower or counterparty fails to meet its obligations in accordance with agreed terms, thus
resulting in financial loss. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as
concentration risks. The Gompany’s credit risk policies are approved by the Board from time to time which lays down the credit evaluation and
approval process in compliance with regulatory guidelines.

The Company uses the Expected Credit Loss (EGL) Methodology to assess the impairment on funded credit exposures. The application of the
model was derived from the combination of the probability of default and loss given default being applied to the exposure at default (EAD) to
compute ECL based on historical data on an unsegmented basis due to limitation of count in the past. Owing to transfer of the business, empirical
data for the newly constituted business of SIFL was not available and hence ECL for non-funded credit exposures is being computed by calculating
the difference between the EAD and Net Present Value of the future cash flows and/or expected realisable value of security/collateral. Additionally,
the Company may also carry out reviews for specifically identified exposures by the management as meriting special focus in calculation of ECL
for fulfilling the objective of greater prudence.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a
diversified portfolio. |dentified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient
as permitted under Ind AS 109. The Company measures the loss allowance at an amount higher of lifetime expected credit losses taking into
account historical credit loss experience (adjusted for forward-looking information) and Income Recognition and Assets Classification norms of
RBI compared on individual bucket basis.

Analysis of risk concentration

(X in Lacs)
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Subsidiary Others Total
Investments 1,738 32,180 33,918 3,017 41,031 44,048
Receivable - 649 649 - 663 663

40. Transfers of financial assets
Transfers of financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety:
There was no such transaction during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023.

41. Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

The Company has not obtained any non-financial assets during the current and previous year by taking possession of assets held as security
against credit facility.

42. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company has recognised, in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024 an amount of ¥ 9 Lacs (Previous year
% 12 Lacs) as expenses under defined contribution plans in respect of qualifying employees. The Company has no obligation other than Provident
Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme, National Pension Scheme and Labour Welfare Fund. The contributions are charged to profit and loss
as they accrue.

The amount recognised as an expense towards employers contribution to the aforesaid funds are as below:

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
EYEREL(H WPAiPZ B 31st March, 2023
Provident Fund 9 11
Employee State Insurance Scheme * *
National Pension Scheme 0 1

* X 7000/- (Previous year: ¥ 5,508/-).
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Defined benefit plans

(A) Gratuity Fund:

The Company makes contributions to Defined Benefit Plans for qualifying employees. The scheme is funded by way of separate irrevocable trust.
The fund is managed internally by the Company. These Plans are administered through approved Trusts, which operate in accordance with the
Trust Deeds, Rules and applicable Statutes. The concerned Trusts are managed by Trustees who provide strategic guidance with regard to the
management of their investments and liabilities and also periodically review their performance. The Trustees of the gratuity scheme for the
employees of the Company have interested the administration of the scheme to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).

The liabilities arising in the Defined Benefit Schemes are determined in accordance with the advice of independent, professionally qualified actuaries,
using the projected unit credit method. The Company makes regular contributions to these Employee Benefit Plans. Additional contributions are
made to these plans as and when required based on actuarial valuation. Some Group companies also participate in these Plans. These participating
Group companies make contributions to the Plans for their respective employees on a uniform basis and each entity ascertains their
obligation through actuarial valuation. The net Defined benefit cost is recognised by these companies in their respective Financial Statements.

Under the Gratuity plan, every employee is entitled to gratuity, being higher of the amount, calculated under the Company's plan (based on last
monthly salary and number of years of service) or calculations as laid down under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Gratuity is payable on death/
retirement/termination and the benefit vests after 5 year of continuous service.

Risk Management

The Defined Benefit Plans expose the Company to risk of actuarial deficit arising out of interest rate risk, salary inflation risk and demographic
risk.

(@) Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined
beneift obligation will tend to increase.

(b) Salary Inflation risk: Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

(c) Demographic Risk: This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of
salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement
benefit of short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to long service employee.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at 31st March, 2024.
42.1 Particulars in respect of employee benefits of the Company are as follows:

(X in Lacs)
Gratuity (Funded) Leave (Unfunded)

Description As at As at As at As at
BB PAIPZY  31st March, 2023 BEIERET(H WA P28 31st March, 2023

Change in the defined benefit obligation

Present Value of Obligation at the Beginning of the Year 28 60 2 6
Current Service Cost 3 4 4 3
Interest Cost* 2 4 0 0
Past Service Cost - Plan Amendements - - - -
Acquisitions Cost/credit = - = -
Actuarial (gain)/loss 1 (25) 0 (3
Benefits paid (4) (15) (4) (4)
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the Year 30 28 2 2
Change in plan assets

Fair value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Year 58 68 NA NA
Expected return on Plan Assets 3 4 NA NA
Acquisitions Cost/credit - - NA NA
Contributions by the Employer 1 1 NA NA
Benefits paid (4) (15) NA NA
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the Year 57 58 - -

*Amount mentioned as '0" is below rounding off threshold adopted by the Company.
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Basis used to determine the Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets

The expected return on plan assets is determined based on government bond rate. @ in Lace)
Zin Lacs

Gratuity (Funded) Leave (Unfunded)

Description As at As at As at As at
SRR ETH PAIPZY  31st March, 2023 SEEREIH 728 31st March, 2023

Amount recognised in Balance Sheet consists of:

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the Year 57 58 -
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the Year 30 28 2 2
Net (Asset)/Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet in

respect of defined benefits (27) (30) 2 2

(X in Lacs)
Leave (Unfunded)

Gratuity (Funded)

Description

As at As at As at As at
SRR ETH W{IPZ8  31st March, 2023 S RETHIP I PZS  31st March, 2023

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss
consists of:

Employee benefits expenses:

Current Service cost 3 4 4 3
Past Service Cost - Plan Amendements - -
Net Interest cost™ (2) (1) 0 0
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss = - 0 (3)
Total [A] 1 3 4 0
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from experience adjustments 1 (24) - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from financial assumptions - - - -
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
net interest cost) = - = -
Total [B] 1 (24) -
Expense recognised during the year [A+B] 2 (21) 4 0
*Amount mentioned as '0" is below rounding off threshold adopted by the Company.
Note: The figures for the year ending on March 31, 2024, have been proportionally adjusted based on the figures as of 31st March, 2023.
42.2 Particulars of Investment Details of Plan Assets are as follows:
(Xin Lacs)
Gratuity Leave
% Invested % Invested

Description As at As at As at As at
LR8BI r2Z8  31st March, 2023 LA ELH WP dP2ZY 31st March, 2023

Investment Details of Plan Assets

Schemes of insurance - conventional products 100% 100% Not Applicable Not Applicable
Total 100% 100%
42.3 Principal Assumptions used are as follows:
Discount rate per annum 7.00% 7.20% 7.00% 7.20%
Salary escalation rate per annum 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Age 20-25 : 5.0% Age 20-25: 5.0% Age 20-25:5.0% Age 20-25: 5.0%
Age 25-30: 3.0% Age 25-30: 3.0% Age 25-30: 3.0% Age 25-30: 3.0%
Age 30-35:2.0% Age 30-35:2.0% Age 30-35:2.0% Age 30-35:2.0%
Age 35-50:1.0% Age 35-50: 1.0% Age 35-50:1.0% Age 35-50: 1.0%
Age 50-55 : 2.0% Age 50-55 : 2.0% Age 50-55 : 2.0% Age 50-55 : 2.0%
Above Age 55 : 3.0% Above Age 55 :3.0% Above Age 55 : 3.0% Above Age 55 :3.0%
Indian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
Mortality Rate (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate

42.4 The estimate of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employee market.

42.5 Expected employers contribution towards gratuity fund for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is ¥ NIL Lacs as per actuarial report.
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42.6 Sensitivity Analysis

The Sensitivity Analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the
listed assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change
in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting the sensitivities, the present value of the Defined
Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied
in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of
the Sensitivity Analysis from previous year.

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Gratuity Gratuity Leave
k4 % 3 % k4

(in Lacs) (in Lacs) (in lacs)
Discount Rate + 100 basis points (10.2%) (3) (11.1%) (0) -10.6% (3) (11.0%) (0)
Discount Rate - 100 basis points 11.8% 4 13.1% 0 12.2% 3 12.8% 0
Salary Increase Rate + 1% 7.6% 2 12.9% 0 7.9% 2 12.7% 0
Salary Increase Rate — 1% (6.7%) (2) (11.1%) (0) -7.0% (2) (11.1%) (0)
42.7 Maturity Analysis of The Benefit Payments

(X in Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2023

Expected payment for future years

Gratuity Leave
Year 1 0 0 0 0
Year 2 1 0 1 0
Year 3 1 0 1 0
Year 4 1 0 1 0
Year 5 1 0 1 0
Next 5 Years 11 1 21 1

42.8 Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligations:Gratuity-12 years (31st March, 2023: 12 years). Leave-12 years (31st March,
2023:13 years).
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43. Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24 - "Related Party Disclosures"

Related Parties:

SI. Name of the Company Country of Origin

No.

A Holding Company:

1 Adisri Commercial Private Limited (ceased w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

B Subsidiaries:

1 Srei Equipment Finance Limited India

2 Srei Insurance Broking Private Limited India

3 Srei Capital Markets Limited India

4 Srei Mutual Fund Asset Management Private Limited India

5 Srei Mutual Fund Trust Private Limited India

6  Srei Asset Leasing Limited India

7 Controlla Electrotech Private Limited India

8 Bengal Srei Infrastructure Development Limited India

9  Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Limited India

10 Hyderabad Information Technology Venture Enterprises Limited (Subsidiary of Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Ltd.) India

11 Cyberabad Trustee Company Private Ltd. (Subsidiary of Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Ltd.) India

C Shareholders as per Approved Resolution Plan having substantial shareholding:

1 National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

2 India Debt Resolution Company Limited (w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

D TRUSTS:

1 Srei Mutual Fund Trust India

E OTHERS:

1 Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited Employees Gratuity Trust India

F  Director/Key Management Personnel of the Company: Designation

1 Mr. Rajneesh Sharma (w.e.f 04.10.2021 till 26.02.2024)* Administrator

2 Mr. N. Sivaraman (w.e.f. 26.02.2024) Chairman & Independent Director

3 Mr. P. Santhosh (w.e.f. 26.02.2024) Nominee Director

4 Mr. Avinash Kulkarni (w.e.f. 26.02.2024) Nominee Director

5 Mr. Sunil Srivastav (w.e.f. 26.02.2024) Independent Director

6 Ms. Anuradha Mitra (w.e.f. 05.04.2024) Independent Director

7 Mr. Hardayal Prasad (w.e.f. 05.04.2024) Managing Director & CEO

8  Mr. Manoj Kumar Company Secretary &

Chief Compliance Officer

9  Mr. Vishnu Gopal Agarwal Chief Financial Officer

10 Mr. Syed Faisal Aquil (w.e.f 30.11.2023 till 15.04.2024) Manager

11 Mr. Souren Mokhopadhyay (ceased w.e.f. 18.07.2022) Deputy Chief Executive Officer

12 Mr. Sandeep Agarwal (w.e.f 14.08.2023 till 26.02.2024) Member of Implementation &
Monitoring Committee

13 Mr. Pavel Poddar (w.e.f 14.08.2023 till 26.02.2024) Member of Implementation &
Monitoring Committee

14 Mr. Manveet Vyas (w.e.f 14.08.2023 till 26.02.2024) Member of Implementation &
Monitoring Committee

15 Mr. Sudha Raina (w.e.f 14.08.2023 till 26.02.2024) Member of Implementation &
Monitoring Committee

16 Mrs. Mahua Mukherjee (ceased w.e.f. 18.07.2022) Relative of KMP

* In exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-1E (1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had vide
Press Release dated 4th October, 2021 superseded the Board of Directors of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (SIFL). The Reserve Bank of India
has appointed Mr. Rajneesh Sharma as the Administrator of SIFL under Section 45-IE (2) of the RBI Act w.e.f. 04.10.2021. Post implementation
of resolution plan as approved by NCLT vide order dated 11.08.2023, the new Board has been re-constituted w.e.f. 26.02.2024 and Mr. Rajneesh
Sharma has been appointed as Principal Advisor to Board.
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(X in Lacs)

Name of related party & Nature of Transactions 1AL CR CETA:EIED W For the Year | Balance
Nature of relationship ended as at ended as at

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

(A) Subsidiaries:

Trinity Alternative Investment Advances (Unsecured) - 5.02 - 5.02
Managers Ltd Reimbursement of professional fess paid - 0.27 - 0.27

Rental Received/Receivable - - 0.87 -
Srei Mutual Fund Asset Management Inter Corporate Deposits Received (Unsecured) - - - -
Private Limited Inter Corporate Deposits Refunded - - - -

Interest Paid on Inter Corporate Deposits - - - -
Srei Mutual Fund Trust Subscription to Share Warrant - - - -
Private Limited Advance Given (Unsecured) - - - -

Refund of Advance Given - - R i
Interest on Advance Given - - - -

Controlla Electrotech Inter Corporate Deposits Received (Unsecured) - - - -

Private Limited Inter Corporate Deposits Refunded - - - -
Interest Paid on Inter Corporate Deposits - - - -

Srei Insurance Broking Inter Corporate Deposits Received (Unsecured) - - - -

Private Limited Inter Corporate Deposits Refunded - - - -
Interest Paid on Inter Corporate Deposits - - - -
Rental Received/Receivable 2.65 - 2.65 -
Dividend Income - - 100.00 -
Reimbursement of I.T Cost - - 1.04 -

Srei Equipment Security Deposit Received * 15,000.00 - - 15,000.00

Finance Limited Rental Received/Receivable ** 307.92 - 79.36 228.56
Rent Paid/Payable 13.50 - 13.50 -
Reimbursement of I.T Cost (Receivable) - - 19.78 -
Loan Received - Unsecured (transaction for
the period on maximum outstanding basis)*** 25,671.03 - 31.43 25,671.03
Refund of Loan Received - - 83.88 -
Pre-CIRP claim payable**** 106.63 - 106.63 106.63
Other Payable: Advance Paid***** 3,935.11 0.21 208.00 -
Other Payable: Advance Received***** 3,934.90 - 208.00 -
Compensation Receivable******* 50,000.00  20,000.00 - -
Closure of BG - - 115.58 -
BG issued from SEFL limit ****** 300.72 - - 300.72
Corpus Refund_EY Restructuring-Advance Received 13.44 - - -
Corpus Refund_EY Restructuring-Advance Paid 13.44 - - -

* The same has been extinguished under Capital Reduction Process as per the Approved Resolution Plan.

** ¥ 266.24 Lacs Bad debts written off as per the Approved Resolution Plan.

***Equity share capital issued to Lenders of SEFL assigned in lieu of ICD and allotted as per Approved Resolution Plan.

**** The same has bheen extinguished under Capital Reduction Process as per the Apporved Resolution Plan Process.

*****This represents the amount received/paid on behalf of subsidiary Company, SEFL as agent and trustee.

***** The borrowings outstanding o/a BG from SEFL has been entirely exinguished as per the resolution plan.

**xxxx*Compensation receivable from SEFL on cancellation of Investment in 78016415 equity share of SEFL as per the approved resolution plan.

(X in Lacs)
Name of related party & Nature of GOIRUCR CETSNMEEIET W For the Year | Balance
Nature of relationship Transactions ended as at ended as at

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

(B) Remuneration to Director/Key Management Personnel including their relatives:

Mr. Rakesh Bhutoria (ceased w.e.f close of business hours of 15.09.2021)  Remuneration 69.86# - - 69.86#
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Sultania (ceased to be a KMP w.e.f. 07.12.2021) Remuneration 7.13# - - 7.13#
Mr. Malay Mukherjee (ceased w.e.f 08.10.2021) Sitting Fees 0.50* - - 0.50
Mr. Ram Krishna Agarwal (ceased w.e.f 17.09.2021) Sitting Fees 0.50* - - 0.50
Mr. Rajneesh Sharma (w.e.f 04.10.2021) Consultancy Fee 40.50 - 54.00 -
Mr. Souren Mukhopadhay (ceased w.e.f 18.07.2022) Remuneration - - 38.38 -
Mr. Manoj Kumar (w.e.f. 01.04.2021) Remuneration 66.95 - 44.74 -
Mr. Vishnu Gopal Agarwal (w.e.f. 01.12.2023) Remuneration 46.45 - 39.41 -
Mr. Mr Syed Faisal Aquil (w.e.f. 30.11.2023) Remuneration 2.96 - - -
Mr. Sivaraman Naravanaswami Sitting Fees 1.60 - - -
Mr. Sunil Srivastav Sitting Fees 1.60 - - -
Mrs. Mahua Mukherijee, relative of KMP (from 30.06.2021 to 18.07.2022)  Car Hire Charges - - 2.00 -

# Balance as at 31st March, 2023 is due to the restrictions imposed by the Lenders wherein the salary of employee was capped to ¥ 50 Lacs p.a. during
the period November, 2020 to March, 2021. The Company had made provision of arrear salary of those employees as the same is payable as per the
contractual obligations. These employees had filed their claim under CIRP. The claim was finally admitted and approved by the Hon'ble NCLT vide order
dated 11th August, 2023 and basis the Implemenation and Monitoring Committee held on 22nd September, 2023 the payment was released.

* Extiguishment of claims as per approved resolution plan.
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44. Leases

a. Inthe capacity of Lessee

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial
application

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

4. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

(i) The Company has certain cancellable operating lease arrangements for office premises, which range between 11 months to 15 years and are usually
renewable by mutual consent, on mutually agreeable terms. Some of these lease agreements have rent escalation upto 5% p.a. or 10% p.a. on renewals.

(if) The Company had no non-cancellable operating lease arrangements for office premises during current and previous year.
(iii) Disclosure in accordance to Ind AS 116 is as below:

(X in Lacs)

No. Particulars m 2022-23

Short term lease payment = -
Expense relating to leases of low - value assets = -
Variance lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liability - -
Income from subleasing right of use assets - -
Total Cash outflow for leases 1 2
Interest expense on Lease liability - -

- DO O O T N

g The future lease payments considered for lease liability on an undiscounted basis are as follows:

(X in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Less than one year - 1
One to five years 1 1
More than five years - -
Total 1 2
h  Details of right of use assets and its movement is as below:

(% in Lacs)

Particulars Opening Additions Adjustment Closing
As at April 1, 2023 As at 31st March, 2024

Office Premises:

Right of use Assets 2 - - 2
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation 1 - - 1
Net Carrying amount 1

(X in Lacs)
Particulars Opening Closing

As at April 1, 2022  Additions Adjustment  As at 31st March, 2023

Office Premises:

Right of use Assets 2 - - 2
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation 1 - - 1
Net Carrying amount 1

i The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liability for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 is
considered as 11.50%.

b. Inthe capacity of Lessor

(i) The Company also has cancellable operating lease arrangements for office premises, which range between 1 to 3 years and are usually renewable by
mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.
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(i) Details of rental income towards operating lease for assets and office premises including sublease are as follows:
(Xin Lacs)

Particulars m 2022-23

Rental Income on the basis of earnings of the Lessee - -
Others 355 403
Total Rental Income 355 403

(iii) Details of fixed future lease receivable towards operating lease for assets and office premises are as follows:

(X in Lacs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Within 1 year 65 393
1-2 year - 371
2-3 year - 302
3-4 year = 296
4-5 year - 326
> 5 year - 560
Total 65 2,248
45. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

(Xin Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Assets Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents 33,028 = 33,028 3,719 - 3,719
Bank Balance other than above 90 = 90 187 78 265
Trade Receivables 649 = 649 663 - 663
Investments - 33,918 33,918 - 44,048 44,048
Other Financial Assets 20,032 121 20,153 78 66 144
Current Tax Assets (Net) = 5,379 5,379 - 5,332 5,332
Property, Plant and Equipment - 8,957 8,957 - 9,187 9,187
Right to use assets - 1 1 - 1 1
Other Intangible Assets - 1 1 - 1 1
Other Non-Financial Assets 136 = 136 40 5 45

As at 31st March, 2023

Liabilities Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months

Trade Payables 146 - 146 269 - 681
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - - - - - 25,671
Subordinated Liabilities - - - - 33,000 33,000
Lease Liabilities 1 = 1 1 1 2
Other Financial Liabilities 268 - 268 323 - 16,044
Provisions 6 = 6 6 - 6
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 67 = 67 68 - 68
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46. Informations as required by Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation Directions , 2023 is furnished vide Annexure - 1
attached herewith. These disclosures are prepared under Ind AS issued by MCA.

47. Business Transfer Agreement

During the year 2019-20, the Company and its subsidiary Company, Srei Equipment Finance Limited (EIFL) entered into an agreement dated August
16, 2019, as amended (‘Business Transfer Agreement’) to transfer the Lending Business, Interest Earning Business & Lease Business of SIFL
together with associated employees, assets & liabilities (including liabilities towards issued & outstanding non - convertible debentures) (Transferred
Undertaking), as a going concern by way of slump exchange to the Company pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement, subject to all necessary
approvals. Accordingly, the Company and SIFL passed the relevant accounting entries in their respective books of account to reflect the slump
exchange w.e.f. October 1, 2019 while allotment of shares by SEFL was made on December 31, 2019.

In terms of the resolution plan as approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated August 11, 2023, for the ease of continuation of the businesses
of the Company as going concern and for the purposes of accounting, the slump exchange undertaken between the Company and SEFL shall be
considered to be effective from the effective date as provided under the Business Transfer Agreement dated August 16, 2019 (as amended), entered
into between SEFL and SIFL, except as provided expressly in the approved resolution plan. Given that the accounting treatment of the BTA has
already been reflected in the audited financial statements ending March 31, 2020, no further accounting impact is deemed necessary in the books
of accounts to give effect to the resolution plan. It is further clarified that this treatment would be without prejudice to the rights of the CoC to
pursue any legal actions in respect of such slump exchange, against the erstwhile Promoters or the Promoter Group.

48. Implementation of Consolidated Resolution Plan

The Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) vide press release dated October 4, 2021 in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-IE (1) of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (‘RBI Act’) superseded the Board of Directors of the Company and appointed an Administrator under Section
45-IE (2) of the RBI Act. Further, RBI, in exercise of powers conferred under Section 45-IE (5) (a) of the RBI Act, has constituted a three-member
Committee of Advisors for advising the Administrator.

The RBI had also filed application for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (‘CIRP’) against the Company under Section 227 read
with clause (zk) of sub-section (2) of Section 239 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016 (‘the Code’) read with Rules 5 and 6 of the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Insolvency and Liquidation Proceedings of Financial Service Providers and Application to Adjudicating Authority)
Rules, 2019 (‘FSP Insolvency Rules’) before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (‘Hon’ble NCLT’). Hon’ble NCLT vide its
order dated October 8, 2021, admitted the application filed by RBI for initiation of CIRP against the Company. Further, Hon’ble NCLT gave orders
for appointment of Mr. Rajneesh Sharma, as the Administrator to carry out the functions as per the Code and that the management of the Company
shall vest in the Administrator.

The Administrator, after adopting proper procedure, had filed applications for consolidated resolution process before the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal-Kolkata Bench (Hon’ble NCLT) in the case of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited and Srei Equipment Finance Limited (IA No. 1099
of 2021 under CP.294/KB/2021 and IA No. 1100 of 2021 under CP.295/KB/2021). The application in this matter was admitted and the final order
was received on February 14, 2022 wherein the Hon’ble NCLT approved the consolidation of the corporate insolvency of Srei Infrastructure Finance
Limited and Srei Equipment Finance Limited.

The Consolidated Committee of Creditors (CoC) took on record three Resolution Plans received from Prospective Resolution Applicants (PRAs)
on January 18, 2023. The three Resolution Plans received by the Consolidated CoC were put to e-voting. The Consolidated CoC took on record
the results of the e-voting in CoC meeting held on February 15, 2023, and the resolution plan submitted by National Asset Reconstruction Company
Limited (NARCL) was duly approved by CoC by majority voting under Section 30(4) of the IBC read with Regulation 39(3) of CIRP Regulations,
2016, thereby, declaring NARCL as Successful Resolution Applicant (SRA). The resolution plan of NARCL approved by Consolidated Committee
of Creditors (CoC) was filed before Adjudicating Authority on February 18, 2023 for its approval and the same was approved by Hon’ble NCLT
vide its Order dated August 11, 2023.

In terms of the approved resolution plan, an Implementation and Monitoring Committee (“IMC”) was constituted which was empowered to supervise

the implementation of the approved resolution plan and oversee the management of the affairs of the Company as per the terms of the approved

resolution plan till the closing date. The IMC in its meeting dated August 16, 2023 passed a resolution appointing the Administrator as Chairman

of IMC and vide IMG resolution dated August 17, 2023 authorised him to continue to operate all the bank accounts and undertake various activities

as are required to ensure the Company’s status as a going concern during the implementation of the approved resolution plan.

Important provisions of approved resolution plan along with various steps undertaken for the implementation of approved resolution plan are

given below:

(i) The approved resolution plan shall be binding on the Company and other stakeholders involved in terms of Section 31 of the Code.

(i) The administrator shall stand discharged from his duties with effect from the order dated August 11, 2023, save and except the duties
envisaged in the resolution plan.

(iii) An Implementation and Monitoring Committee (“IMC”) was constituted which was empowered to manage the affairs of the Company till the
closing date. Thereafter implementation is carried out by IMC for implementation of the resolution plan.

(iv) IMC received the Implementation Notice dated September 22, 2023 from NARCL in terms of the approved resolution plan and referring to
the Reallocation Notice dated September 21, 2023 issued by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) (CoC Re-allocation Notice), notifying the

Effective Date as September 22, 2023, being the date on which NARCL, as the Resolution Applicant proposed to commence the Steps set
out in Section 4 (Steps of Implementation) of the approved resolution plan.

(v) The Company, on instructions of the IM took necessary steps including making payments, to various stakeholders in terms of the approved
Resolution Plan.

(vi) The Company had filed the application for delisting of the Equity Shares and the Perpetual Debt instruments of the Company from the respective
stock exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in terms of steps for the implementation as provided
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in the approved resolution plan. Accordingly, the record date for delisting of equity shares and perpetual debt instruments issued by the
Company was fixed on Friday, October 6, 2023. Subsequently, these equity shares and Perpetual Debts were delisted by both the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE with effect from December 14, 2023.

(vii) The existing equity share capital of ¥ 50,309 Lacs has been cancelled/extinguished via capital reduction without payment of any compensation
to the shareholders. The corresponding amount has been transferred to Restructuring Reserve.

(viii) The Company has issued 4,60,000 equity shares with a face value of ¥ 10 each to the Resolution Applicant, NARCL, and 2,00,000 equity
shares with a face value of ¥ 10 each to India Debt Resolution Company Limited (IDRCL). Additionally, the Company has allotted 2,00,000
equity shares, each with a face value of % 10, totalling ¥ 20 Lacs, to Approving Financial Creditors (AFC) in exchange for the assignment of
AFCs' Debt. Furthermore, 1,00,000 equity shares with a face value of ¥ 10 each were issued to Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust.

(ix) The Company disbursed % 7 Lacs to approved operational creditors and settled ¥ 111 Lacs for employees' claims related to the pre-CIRP
(Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) period.

(x) The Company had paid ¥ 126 Lacs to AFC in relation to bank guarantees issued during the pre-CIRP period. The amount has been debited
to Restructuring Reserve.

(xi) The Company extinguished pre-CIRP liabilities towards outstanding operational creditors, Perpetual Debts, Government dues and payments
to related parties totalling to ¥ 49,000 Lacs through capital reduction process and transferred the corresponding amount to Restructuring
Reserve.

(xii) The Company has transferred both statutory and non-statutory reserves to Restructuring Reserve totalling to ¥ 2,01,575 Lacs.
(xiii) The remaining balance of ¥ 3,00,758 Lacs in restructuring reserve has been transferred to retained earnings of the Company as per details

given below:

Nature of the ltems Amount in Lacs
Equity Share Capital Reduction 50,309
Pre-CIRP liabilities towards Perpetual Debts 33,000
Pre-CIRP liabilities towards outstanding operational creditors, Government dues and payments to related parties 16,000
Payment to AFC against bank guarantees set aside by the Company (126)
Transfer of Reserve (both statutory and non-statutory in nature) 2,01,575
Transfer to Retained Earnings 3,00,758

(xiv) In terms of Approved Resolution Plan, a part of existing issued equity share capital of SEFL, amounting to ¥ 7,802 Lacs was cancelled and
extinguished by SEFL by way of Capital Reduction on December 19, 2023. The subsidiary company is liable to make cash payment of ¥ 50,000
Lacs to SIFL as compensation which has been recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss as an Exceptional Iltem and categorized as Profit
on Cancellation of Investment. Out of afore said ¥ 50,000 Lacs, SEFL has made payment of ¥ 30,000 Lacs on 27th March, 2024 and balance
¥ 20,000 Lacs is outstanding as on 31st March, 2024.

IMC, vide its resolution dated 19th December 23 has declared that 31st December, 2023 is closing date of balance sheet for the purpose of
audit and its handover to the new Board of Directors. The handover of the closing date balance sheet along with other necessary requirement
including Reconstitution of the Board of Directors took place on 26th February, 2024. On completion of the handover activities by the IMC
to Board of Directors, IMC got dissolved. Accordingly, effect of Resolution Plan has been given in the financial statements for the year ended
on 31st March, 2024.

49. As at March 31, 2021 the Company was having funds amounting to ¥ 53 Lacs in relation to the Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) which
were unspent. These unspent amounts as per the requirements of Section 135 of the Act were to be transferred to funds specified under Schedule
VIl to the Act within a period of 6 months. However, the domestic lenders of the Company had stipulated TRA mechanism effective November
24, 2020, pursuant to which all the payments being made by the Company were being approved/released based on the TRA mechanism. The
Company was not able to transfer the aforesaid unspent CSR amount as per the requirements of Section 135 of the Act. The Company has written
letter to the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) seeking exemptions from the obligations of the Company under provisions of Section 135(5)
and Section 135(7) of the Act. The reply from MCA in this regard is still awaited.

Subsequently, as per the approved resolution plan, no amount was payable to the statutory authorities against their dues and hence all such dues
were extinguished.

50. The Company is unable to transfer 66,215 Equity shares pertaining to the Financial Year 2014-15, due for transfer to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund in accordance with the applicable provisions of Section 124 of the Act read with Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 due to the technical reasons as stated in Note no. 15.1 above. The Company has
requested for guidance from IEPF authorities and also requested them to file claim for pre CIRP amount. The authorities are yet to revert on the
same.

After NCLT order dated August 11, 2023, approving the Resolution Plan submitted by National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited, the entire
equity shares of all shareholders has been extinguished through capital reduction process. Hence, there is no need to transfer these equity shares
to IEPF.

51. Going Concern

CIRP was initiated in respect of the Company w.e.f. October 8, 2021 and the resolution plan of NARCL was approved by Hon'ble NCLT vide order
dated August 11, 2023. The Company has adhered to the implementation of resolution plan as per the indicative timelines. Accordingly, based
on the implementation of the resolution plan, the successful resolution applicant is confident of improving the credit profile of the Company,
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including through time-bound monetisation of assets including arbitration awards, claims and other assets which would result in it being able to
meet its obligations in due course of time. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

52. Probable Connected/Related Companies

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in its inspection report and risk assessment report (the directions) for the year ended March 31, 2020 had identified
‘certain borrowers’ as probable connected/related companies. In the directions, the Company and SEFL havebeen advised to re-assess and re-
evaluate the relationship with the said borrowers to assess whether they are related parties to the Company or to SEFL and also whether transactions
with these connected parties are on arm’s length basis.

It has been brought to the Administrator’s notice that the superseded Board of Directors and the erstwhile management had taken legal view to
determine whether such borrowers are related parties to the Company or SEFL. Based on the legal view, the erstwhile management was advised
and had therefore come to the conclusion that the Company or SEFL have no direct or indirect control or significant influence (as per Companies
Act, 2013, Ind AS) over such borrowers and are not under common control and accordingly, are not a related party of the Company or SEFL.
The erstwhile management had also obtained an assessment report on the review and verification of the transactions with the aforesaid probable
connected/related parties from an independent Chartered Accountant firm, which states that the transactions of the Company/SEFL with probable
connected parties were done at arm’s length principles and are in the ordinary course of business and that such parties are not related parties of
the Company/SEFL under the Act or Ind AS 24.

However, the Administrator was not in a position to comment on the views adopted by the erstwhile management of the Company in relation to
the findings of the directions since these pertain to the period prior to the Administrator’s appointment. As a part of the CIRP, the Administrator
got conducted transaction audits/reviews relating to the process and compliances of the Company and had also appointed professionals for
conducting transaction audit as per Section 43, 45, 50 and 66 of the Code.

Out of Accounts referred by the RBI in the directions, the Administrator had received account wise transaction audit reports, which identified
certain transactions as fraudulent in nature under Section 66 of the Code, including undervalued transactions. In respect of such accounts, the
Administrator has filed applications under Section 60(5) and Section 66 of the Code before the Kolkata bench of the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal (NCLT) on various dates for adjudication. Since, the entire loan portfolio was transferred by SIFL to SEFL under BTA (referred in
note 3 above), the afore-mentioned transactions are appearing in the books of SEFL currently. SEFL has also made 100 % impairment on such
accounts. The transaction audit has been completed and the necessary impact of the same has been incorporated by SEFL in their financial results.

53. Based on the information available in the public domain, some of the lenders have declared the bank account of the Company as fraud.
However, in case of one of the lender, on the basis of petition filed by the ex-promoter before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, the Hon’ble Court
has passed interim relief to the petitioner vide order dated April 22, 2022, restraining the said lender from taking any further steps or action
prejudicial to the petitioner on the basis of the order declaring the bank account as fraud. Thereafter vide order dated May 15, 2023, the application
was disposed of directing that the order declaring the account of the Company as fraud was set side. Further, liberty was granted to the banks
to proceed ahead in accordance with the direction given in the aforesaid order.

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has received Show Cause Notices (SCNs) from some of the Banks/Financial Institutions.
The Resolution plan states as under:

“Notwithstanding anything contained in the Resolution Plan and in accordance with Section 32A of the Code, the liability of the Corporate Debtors
for an offence committed prior to the commencement of the CIRP, if any, shall cease, and neither the Corporate Debtors nor the Resolution
Applicant shall be prosecuted for any such offence on and from the NCLT Approval Date. If a prosecution has been instituted during the CIRP
against the Corporate Debtors, the Corporate Debtors shall stand discharged from the NCLT Approval Date.”

Based on the above clause of Resolution plan the Erstwhile promoter of the Company are liable to answer the said Show Cause Notice.
54. Inaccordance to Ind AS 108 - "Operating Segments", the required disclosure is done in the Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company.

55. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its letter dated April 18,2023 has initiated inspection into the affairs of the Company and has
sought information and documents under Section 206(5) of the Act. The Company has provided necessary documents as required by MCA.

56. The Enforcement Directorate (ED) on 31st January, 2023 conducted simultaneous investigation on office premises of the Company and its
subsidiary, Srei Equipment Finance Ltd. The Company and its officials are co-operating and providing the required information/ documents as
available.

57. Figures pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged / regrouped, wherever necessary, to make them comparable with those of current
year.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration No. 306033E/E300272

Sd/- Sd/-
Hardayal Prasad Avinash Kulkarni
Sd/- Managing Director & CEQ Director
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia DIN: 08024303 DIN: 02982164
Partner
Membership No. 068851 Sd/- Sd/-
Vishnu Gopal Agarwal Manoj Kumar
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & CCO

Date: June 5, 2024
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ANNEXURE | TO NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Refer Note No. 46)
Disclosure of details as required in terms of Annexure- Il of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time (the “Master Directions”) - Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

1. The following table provides reconciliation of expected credit loss provided by the Company in books under the provisions of Indian Accounting
Standards with provisions required under norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of India.

As at 31st March, 2024:

(X in Lacs)
Assets Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Net Carrying Provisions required  Difference
Assets Classification as per Classification as Amount as per (Provisions) as Amount as per IRACP hetween
RBI Norms per Ind AS 109 Ind AS 109  required under norms provisions and
Ind AS 109 IRACP norms
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 6 7=4-6
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - -
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful - up to 1 yearStage 3 - - - - -
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA - - - - -
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 - - - - -
commitments, etc. which are in the Stage 2 - - - - -
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered Stage 3 - - - - -
under current IRACP norms*
Subtotal - - - - -
Total Stage 1 - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 - - - - -
Total - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2023:
(R in Lacs)
Assets Gross Carrying Loss Allowances Net Carrying Provisions required  Difference
Assets Classification as per Classification as Amount as per (Provisions) as Amount as per IRACP between
RBI Norms per Ind AS 109 Ind AS 109 required under norms provisions and
Ind AS 109 IRACP norms
1 2 3 4 5=3-4 6 7=4-6
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - -
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 - - - - -
Doubtful - up to 1 yearStage 3 - - - - -
1to 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - - -
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA - - - - -
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 - - - - -
commitments, etc. which are in the Stage 2 - - - - -
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered Stage 3 - - - - -
under current IRACP norms*
Subtotal - - - - -
Total Stage 1 - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - -
Stage 3 - - - - -
Total - - - - -

*In accordance to IndAS 109, Financial guarantees are recognised initially as a liability at fair value. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS115.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS

115. The Company measures the loss allowance under simplified approach as specified in Ind AS 109, wherein staging is not required. Therefore, same

is not considered in above disclosure.

2. Disclosure on moratorium to borrowers in terms of RBI circular dated 17th April, 2020.

The Company is not undertaking lending business. Therefore, there are no such case as on 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023.

3. Disclosures on MSME - Restructuring of Advances (RBI/2018-19/10 DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2018-19) dated 01.01.2019 and subsequent
amendment thereto dated 11.02.2020 as required by RBI guidelines on Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector — Restructuring
of Advances.

The Company is not undertaking lending business. Therefore, there are no such case for disclosure under above.
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ANNEXURE | TO NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Refer Note No. 46)

Disclosure of details as required in terms of Appendix VI-A (Annexure V1) of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial
Company - Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time (the “Master Directions”) - Notes to Accounts for NBFCs on
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies

4.

As at 31st March, 2024:

Public disclosure on liquidity risk as per RBI Circular DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework
for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies dated November 4, 2019.

(i)  Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
No. Number of Significant Counterparties Amount % of Total % of Total
(X in Lacs) deposits Liabilities
1 - N.A. N.A.
(ii)  Top 20 large deposits (Amount: Nil ; and % of total deposits: NA)
(iii)  Top 10 borrowings (Amount: Nil; and % of total borrowings: NA)
(iv)  Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
No. Name of the instrument/product Amount % of Total
(X in Lacs) Liabilities
1 - 0%
2 - 0%
(v)  Stock Ratios:
No. Particulars % of Total % of Total % of Total
Public Funds Liabilities Assets
(@)  Commercial papers 0% 0% 0%
(b)  Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) 0% 0% 0%
(c)  Other short-term liabilities N.A.* 85% 0.4%
* there is no Public Fund as on 31.03.2024

(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

Post superession of the Board of the Company by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-1E (1) of
the RBI Act, 1934, has vide Order/Press Release dated 4th October, 2021, Asset Liability Management Committee (ALMC) has been reconstitution
w.r.f. 10th Dec 2021.

(vii) Guidelines of Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) as per RBI Circular DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 on Liquidity Risk Management
Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies dated November 4, 2019 is applicable to NBFC-NDSI's with an
assets size of ¥ 5,000 Crores and above. As the assets size of the Company is below the prescribed limit, the disclosure requirement is not applicable
to the Company.

As at 31st March, 2023:

(i)  Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)
No. Number of Significant Counterparties Amount % of Total % of Total
(X in Lacs) deposits Liabilities
1 5 58,671 N.A. 77%
(ii)  Top 20 large deposits (Amount: Nil ; and % of total deposits: NA)
(iii)  Top 10 borrowings (Amount: ¥ 58,671 Lacs; and % of total borrowings: 100%)
(iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product
No. Name of the instrument/product Amount % of Total
(% in Lacs) Liabilities
1 Commercial Paper -
2 Subordinated Perpetual debentures (Tier | Capital) 33,000 44%
3 Inter Corporate Deposits 25,671 34%
(v)  Stock Ratios:
No. Particulars % of Total % of Total % of Total
Public Funds Liabilities Assets
(@  Commercial papers 0% 0% 0%
(b)  Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) 0% 0% 0%
(c)  Other short-term liabilities 1% 0.8% 0.9%
(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management:

Post superession of the Board of the Company by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-IE (1) of the RBI
Act, 1934, has vide Order/Press Release dated 4th October, 2021, Asset Liability Management Committee (ALMC) has been reconstitution w.r.t 10th Dec,
2021.
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ANNEXURE | TO NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Refer Note No. 46)

Disclosure of details as required in terms of Annexure- VIl of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time (the “Master Directions”) - Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(% in Lacs)

Category As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023

a) Direct exposure
i) Residential Mortgages - -
iy Commercial Real Estate - -
iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures = -
iv) Infrastructure Real Estate (SEZ's, Industrial Parks, IT Parks, Hotels) = -
b) Indirect exposure 185 185

Exposure to Capital Market
(% in Lacs)

SI. Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2024 March, 2023

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units
of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt; 29,360 19,341

ii) advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on clean basis to
individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual funds; = -

ii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security; - -

iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e.
where the primary security other than shares/convertible bonds/convertible debentures/
units of equity oriented mutual funds does not fully cover the advances; = -

v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of
stockbrokers and market makers; - -

vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/bond/debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new
companies in anticipation of raising resources; - -

vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues; = -

viii) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) 4,558 24,707

Total Exposure to Capital Market 33,918 44,048

Customer Complaints

SI. Particulars 2022-23

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
b) No. of complaints received during the year Nil Ni
c) No. of complaints redressed during the year Nil Nil
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year Nil Nil
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Disclosure of details as required in terms of Annexure- VIIl of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company -
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time (the “Master Directions™) - Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

(Xin Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Liabilities Side Amount Amount Amount Amount
outstanding overdue outstanding overdue

8. Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial Company
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

(a) Debentures/Bonds:
Secured - : _
Unsecured (Other than falling within the meaning of public deposit) - - 33,000
) Deferred Credits = - -
) Term Loans o - -
) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - - 25,671
) Commercial Papers 5 - -
f) Public Deposit - - ;
g) Other Loans:
Working capital facility o - -

Break-up of (f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid)

(@) Inthe form of Unsecured debentures - - -

(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where
there is a shortfall in the value of security - - -

(c) Other public deposits

b

Tin Lacs
As at 31st As at 31st
Assets Side [ ET(H I WL 7Z 88 March, 2023
Amount Amount

Outstanding Outstanding

9. Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in (6) below]:
(@) Secured - i,
(b) Unsecured - -

10. Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and other assets counting towards asset financing activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial lease
b) Operating lease
(if) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
b) Repossessed Assets - -
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed - -
(b) Loans other than (a) above = -

11. Break up of Investments $
Current Investments

1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

(i) Debentures and bonds

(i) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others

2. Unquoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

(if) Debentures and bonds

(i) Units of mutual funds

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others

Long - Term investments

Quoted:
i) Shares: (a) Equity 27,583 16,285
(b) Preference = -

ii) Debentures and bonds - -
iit) Units of mutual funds 1 1
iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Others

$ The Company has not disclosed the breakup of investment into Long term investment and current investment as the classification is not required under Ind AS
issued by MCA. All investment are considered as Long term investment for above disclosure.
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Disclosure of details as required in terms of Annexure- VIII of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time (the “Master Directions™) - Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

(X in Lacs)
As at 31st As at 31st
Assets Side \|E1(H WPA17Z 88 March, 2023
Amount Amount

OIS NG  Outstanding

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(i) Debentures, bonds/ nits = -
(iii) Units of mutual funds = -
(iv) Government Securities - -
(v) Others (Investment in Funds, Trust, Share Warrant & Deemed Investment) 4,558 24,707

12. Borrower group - wise classification of assets financed as in (5) and (6) above:

(X in Lacs)
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Category Amount net of provisions Amount net of provisions

Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
(@) Subsidiaries - - - - - -
(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

Total - - - . - -

13.Investor group wise classification of all investments (current and long-term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted) @:
(X in Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

Market Value / Book Value Market Value / Book Value
CICELQITO R ET RO HOLE] Break up or fair (net of provisions)
value or NAV* value or NAV*

Category

1. Related Parties™*
(@) Subsidiaries 1,738 1,738 3,017 3,017
(b) Companies in the same group - - - -
(c) Other related parties - - - -
2. Other than related parties 32,180 32,180 41,031 41,031

Total 33,918 33,918 44,048 44,048

**All Indian Accounting Standards issued by MCA are applicable including for valuation of investments.
@ The Company has not disclosed the breakup of investment into Long term investment and current investment as the classification is not required under Ind AS
issued by MCA.

14. Other Information:
(X in Lacs)

s at As at
R BT P2 31st March, 2023

Amount

Particulars

i. Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties - -
(b) Other than related Parties = -
ii. Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties - ;
(b) Other than related Parties - -
iii. Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

1. As defined in point 5.1.32 of paragraph 5 of Chapter-Il of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based Regulation Directions
23.

Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in Ind AS issued by MCA.
All notified Indian Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by MCA are applicable including for valuation of investments and other
assets acquired in satisfaction of debt.

wn
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Disclosure of details as required in terms of Annexure- XIV of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company
- Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time (the “Master Directions”) - Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

15. Credit Default Swaps

(X in Lacs)
Sl. Particulars As at
SR NETH vAIPZ B8 31st March, 2023
1. No of Transactions during the year Nil Nil
2. Amount of protection bought during the year Nil Nil
Nos of Transactions where credit event payment was received during the year
a) Pertaining to current year's transactions Nil Nil
b) Pertaining to previous year's transactions Nil Nil
4. QOutsatnding transactions as on March 31st, 2024
a) No. of Transaction Nil Nil
b) Amount of Protection Nil Nil
5. Net Income/Profit (expenditure/loss) in respect of CDS tranaction during the year-to-date
a) Premium paid Nil Nil
b) Credit event payments received (net of value deliverable obligation) Nil Nil
16. Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
(Xin Lacs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023
i) CRAR (%) 159.41% (31.09%)
ii) CRAR —Tier | Capital (%) 159.41% (31.09%)
iii) CRAR — Tier Il Capital (%) 0.00 0.00
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital* = -
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments* = -
* During the year figure
17. Investments
(X in Lacs)
As at As at
31st March, 2023
1) Value of Investments
i) Gross Value of Investments
a) InlIndia 36,035 3,55,241

b) Outside India - -
ii) Provisions for Depreciation

a) InIndia 2,117 3,11,193

b) Outside India - -
i) Net Value of Investments

a) InIndia 33,918 44,048

b) Outside India = -

2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

i) Opening Balance 3,11,193 3,11,193
i) Add: Provisions made during the period/year = -
iii) Less: Write-off/write-back of excess provisions during the period/year 3,09,076 -
iv) Closing Balance 2,117 3,111,193
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Disclosure of details as required in terms of Annexure XXII of Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company —
Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023 as amended from time to time (the “Master Directions”) - Notes to Accounts for NBFCs

18. Forward Rate Agreement/Interest Rate Swap

(X in Lacs)
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
i) The notional principle of swap agreements Nil Nil
i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the agreements Nil Nil
iii) Collateral required by the NBFC upon entering into swaps Nil Nil
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps Nil Nil
v) The fair value of the swap book Nil Nil
19. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives
(X in Lacs)

As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

i) Notional Principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during

the period/year (instrument-wise) Nil Nil
i) Notional Principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding (instrument-wise) Nil Nil
ii) Notional Principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and

not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) Nil Nil

iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not
"highly effective" (instrument-wise)

20. Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
(i) Qualitative Disclosure

The structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading, is not applicable since the Company is not engaged in derivative
trading.

(ii) Quantitative Disclosures

(X in Lacs)
As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars Currency Interest Rate Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives
i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) For hedging Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Marked to Market Positions [1]
a) Asset (+) Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Liability (-) Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Credit Exposure [2] Nil Nil Nil Nil
iv) Unhedged Exposures - - - -
21. Asset Liability Management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2024 are as follows:
(X in Lacs)

1dayto 8daysto 15daysto Over1 Over 2 Over3  Over6 Over1 Over3 Over5  Total
Tdays 14days  30/31 month months ~ months  months year years  years

Particulars days(one upto2  upto3  upto6 uptol  upto3 upto5

month) months  months  months  year years years
Deposits (Unclaimed) - - - - - - - - - - -
Advances - - - - - - - - - - -
Investments [refer note-1 below] - - - - - - - 32,180 - 1,738 33,918
Borrowings - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency Assets - - - - - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency Liabilities - - - - - - - - - - ;

Notes:

1 The maturity pattern of Investments has been considered on the basis of Managements best estimates.
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Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at 31st March, 2023 are as follows: (% in Lacs)

1dayto 8daysto 15daysto Over1 Over 2 Over3  Over6 Over1  Over3 Overb Total
Tdays 14days  30/31 month  months  months months year years  years

Particulars days(one upto2  upto3  upto6 upto1  upto3  upto5

month) months  months  months  year years years

Deposits (Unclaimed) -
Advances - - - - - - - - - - -
Investments [refer note - 1 below] - - - - - - - 41,031 - 3,017 44,048
Borrowings (refer note - 2 and 3 below) - - - - - - -
Foreign Currency Assets -
Foreign Currency Liabilities -

Notes:

1. The maturity pattern of Investments has been considered on the basis of Managements best estimates.

2. The ICD of ¥ 25,671 Lacs from the subsidiary Company, Srei Equipment Finance Limited pertains to Pre-CIRP period and repayments are not determinable
pursuant to initiation of CIRP.

3. Perpetual Debt Instruments amounting to ¥ 33,000 Lacs are not having fixed due date for repayment and therefore, not considered in the above maturity pattern.

22. Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation Company (SC)/Reconstruction Company (RC) for Asset Reconstruction
(% in Lacs)

Sl. Particulars | 202324 | 2022-23

i) No. of accounts - -
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC = -
i) Aggregate consideration - -
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -
v) Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value = -

23. Details of Security receipts held by Company is as below:

(X in Lacs)
Backed by NPAs sold by the Backed by NPAs sold by other Total
Particul Banks/FIs/NBFC’s as underlying banks/financial institutions/non-
articulars banking financial companies as
underlying

Under Investment - - - - - i
Under Loans - - - - - -

24. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken
(Xin Lacs)

Sl. Particulars B 202223

i) No. of accounts = -
ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold = -
i) Aggregate consideration - -
iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -
v) Aggregate gain/(loss) over net book value = -

25. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC

The Company has not exceeded the Prudential exposure limits during the current period and previous year in respect of exposure towards single
borrower and group of borrowers.
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26. Unsecured Loans/Advance
Unsecured Advance as at 31st March, 2024 is X 4 Lacs (Previous year X 6 Lacs)
27. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company received a Gertificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) on 1st August, 1998 to commence/carry on the business
of Non-Banking Financial Institution (‘NBFI’) and was subsequently classified as Infrastructure Finance Company vide Certificate of Registration
B-05.02773/dt. 31 March, 2011. The Company has received communication from RBI to reclassify it as Investment and Credit Company. The
Company is in the process of surrendering its certificate of Registration of Infrastructure Finance Company. The Company is also a Public Financial
Institution (PFI) notified under Section 4A of the Companies Act, 1956.

28. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

SEBI vide its Adjudication Order No. Order/DS/DK/ 2022-23/20903- 20964 dated October 31, 2022 (‘Order’), in the matter of Religare Enterprises
Limited had imposed a penalty of ¥ 35 Lacs on the Company payable within 45 days from the date of receipt of the Order. However, vide its
Corrigendum to Order dated 30th November, 2022, SEBI has clarified that the said period of 45 days shall not be applicable in respect of the
Company due to the CIRP proceedings pending against it. The said penalty is payable subject to the provisions of IBC and outcome of the appeal
filed by SEBI in the Diwan Housing Finance Limited case matter in the Hon’ble Supreme Court (Appeal No. 206 of 2020). As per Approved Resolution
Plan, this liablity has been extinguished from the effective date. No penalites has been imposed by RBI and other regulators during the year ended
31st March, 2024.

29. Draw Down from Reserves
Details of draw down from Reserves is disclosed in Note No. 19 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

30. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

. As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars - -
Domestic Overseas Domestic Overseas
Name of SPV sponsored Nil Nil Nil Nil

31. Details of Financing of Parent Company Products

Financing of Parent Company Products during the year ended 31st March, 2024 is Nil (Previous year Nil).

32. The Company has not done any Securitisation during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st March, 2023.
33. Disclosure of Fraud

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO FRAUD IN TERMS OF THE NOTIFICATION ISSUED BY RESERVE BANK OF INDIA VIDE DNBS/2016-17/49 Master
Direction DNBS. PPD.01/66.15.001/2016-17

Based on the information available in the public domain, some of the lenders have declared the bank account of the Company as fraud. However,
in case of one of the lenders, on the basis of petition filed by the ex-promoter before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, the Hon’ble Court has passed
interim relief to the petitioner vide order dated April 22, 2022, restraining the said lender from taking any further steps or action prejudicial to
the petitioner on the basis of the order declaring the bank account as fraud. Thereafter vide order dated May 15, 2023, the application was disposed
off and the Order declaring the account of the Company as fraud was set side. Further, liberty was granted to the banks to proceed ahead in
accordance with the direction given in the aforesaid Order.

34. Provisions and Contingencies
(Xin Lacs)

SI. Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account As at As at
SRR BT (WPAIPZY  31st March, 2023

i) Provisions for depreciation on Investment 1,280 -
ii) Provision towards NPA - -
iii) Provision for Impairment on Loans - -
iv) Provision made towards Income tax = -
v) Provision for Standard Assets# - -
vi) Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)

Provision for Impairment on financial assets (366) 194

# Provision for standard assets is included in Provision for Impairment on Loans.
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35. Concentration of Advances
(X in Lacs)
As at As at
SRR ETH WvAIPZY  31st March, 2023

Particulars

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers - -
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the NBFC 0.00% 0.00%

36. Concentration of Exposures
(Xin Lacs)
As at As at
IR ET(H WPAIPZ S 31st March, 2023

Particulars

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers/customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC
on borrowers/customers 0.00% 0.00%

37. Concentration of NPA@
(X in Lacs)

. As at As at
Particulars 3BT WPDIPZE  31st March, 2023

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts

@ NPA accounts refer to stage 3 assets. Stage 3 Assets includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date as defined under
Ind AS. 90 Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.

38. Sector - wise NPAs

(X in Lacs)
As at 31st As at 31st
Sl. Sector March, 2024 March, 2023
Percentage of NPAs to Percentage of NPAs to

Total Advances in that sector Total Advances in that sector
1. Agriculture & allied activities - -
2. MSME - -
3. Corporate borrowers - -
4. Services - -
5. Unsecured personal loans - -
6. Auto loans - )
7. Others - -
39. Movement of NPAs Fin Lacs
sl Particul As at 31st As at 31st

- Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023

i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.00% 0.00%

ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross) - -
a) Opening Balance - .

b) Additions during the year = -
c¢) Reductions during the year - -
d) Closing Balance - -
iif) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening Balance - -
b) Additions during the year - -
c¢) Reductions during the year - -
d) Closing Balance - -
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening Balance - -
b) Provisions made during the year - -
c) Write - off/write - back of excess provisions = -
d) Closing Balance - -
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40. Details of Non-performing Loan Assets purchased from other NBFCs

Zin Lacs
sI. Particul As at 31st As at 31st
- rarticulars March, 2024 March, 2023
(i) (a) No. of accounts purchased during the year = -
(b) Aggregate outstanding - .
(ii) (a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year = -
(b) Aggregate outstanding - i
41. Details of Non-performing Loan Assets sold to other NBFCs
(% in Lacs)

SI. Particul As at 31st As at 31st
- Farticulars March, 2024 March, 2023
i) No. of accounts sold - -

ii) Aggregate outstanding - R
i) Aggregate consideration received - -

42. Related Party Transactions
42.01

The Company is incorporating the details of all material transactions with related parties in the Annual Report of the Company for the Financial
year ended March 31st, 2024.

42.02

The Company is incorporating the policy on dealing with related party transactions on its website and also in the Annual Reportof the Company
for the Financial Year ended March 31st, 2024.

43. Ratings
As at 31st As at 31st
Sl. Particulars March, 2024 March, 2023
Brickwork #
i) Long Term Banking facilities™ - -
ii) Short Term Banking Facilities™ - -
iii)y Short Term Debt Instruments * - -
iv) NCDs/Bonds* = -
v) Unsecured Subordinated/Tier-1l Debentures/Bonds™ > -
vi) Subordinated Perpetual bonds/debentures (Tier | Capital) = BWRD
Detail of migration of ratings :
- 2022-23
Sl. Particulars
et Brickwork #

i) Long Term Banking facilities™* - -

ii) Short Term Banking Facilities™ = -

iii) Short Term Debt Instruments * - -

iv) NCDs/Bonds* = -

v) Unsecured Subordinated/Tier-1l Debentures/Bonds™ = -

vi) Subordinated Perpetual bonds/debentures (Tier | Capital) ** BRW D

* Borrowings transferred to Srei Equipment Finance Limited (SEFL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as part of the business of the Company transferred
to SEFL on and from 1st October, 2019 (refer note 47 of Notes to financial statement). The Rating Agencies is still continuing to issue the ratings in the name of
the Company. As there is no outstanding in the books of the Company, the same is not being considered in the above table of outstanding ratings including its
migration.

** As per the Approved Resolution Plan, the liability of Subordinated Perpetual bonds/debentures are extinguished as per capital reduction process during the period.
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# Vide order dated 6th Oct 2022, SEBI had cancelled Certificate of Registration (COR) of Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited as a Credit Rating Agency (CRA).
The CRA has been directed to wind down its operations within a period of six months from the date of the aforesaid Order and not to take any new clients/fresh
mandates from the date of Order. RBI has also vide press release dated 12th Oct, 2022 communicated the same to all Regulated Entities and advised that the
instructions regarding the prudential treatment of the existing ratings issued by the rating agency shall be advised separately, which is still awaited. Further, since
the Company was under CIRP, all the debts owed to financial Creditors was crystallized as on Insolvency Commencement Date i.e. October 8, 2021 and all debts
were payable as per the Resolution Plan approved by Adjudicating Authority. In view of the above, the Company had not approached other CRAs for getting fresh
ratings for the instruments rated by the Brickwork Ratings

44. Remuneration of Directors

The Company is incorporating all pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the Gompany in the Annual Report
of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31st, 2024.

45. Management

The Company is incorporating as part of the Directors’ report or as an addition thereto, a Management Discussion and Analysis report which shall
form part of the Annual Report to the shareholders to the extent applicable. This Management Discussion & Analysis shall include discussion on
the following matters within the limits set by the Company’s competitive position:

(i) Industry structure and developments.

(i) Opportunities and Threats.

(iii) Segment-wise or product-wise performance.
(iv) Outlook.

(v) Risks and concerns.

(vi) Internal control systems and their adequacy.

(vii) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance.
(

viii) Material developments in Human Resources/Industrial Relations front, including number of people employed.

46. Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

The Company does not have any impact of prior period items and changes in accounting policies in the net profit and loss for the current year
ended March 31st, 2024 and previous year ended March 31st, 2023.

47. Revenue Recognition

There were no circumstances noted during the current year ended March 31st, 2024 and previous year ended March 31st, 2023, in which the
Company has postponed revenue recognition pending the resolution of significant uncertainties.

48. Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS)

As of March 31st, 2024 and March 31st, 2023, the Company has domestic subsidiaries. There are no foreign subsidiaries for the periods. Therefore
the Company has prepared consolidated financial statements as required.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements
of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (“hereinafter referred to as the
holding company” or “SIFL”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and Trust,
which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2024,
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income) for the year ended on that date, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, except for the effects/possible effects of the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in
conformity with Indian Accounting Standard the aforesaid consolidated
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
atrue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and loss and total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) In case of one of the subsidiaries of the Holding Company, audited
by another auditor, who reported that Property, Plant and Equipment
includes assets having gross book value of ¥ 5,070 Lacs and written
down value of ¥ 525 Lacs as on March 31, 2024 are either not in
possession of the Company or not physically found by the Group.
No provision for the same has been made in accounts. As informed
by the Group, the management has initiated legal proceedings for
recovery of the Property, Plant and Equipment against the assets
not in the possession of the Group having gross book value X 4,795
Lacs and written down value of ¥ 518 Lacs as on March 31, 2024.
Further, as also informed to us by the management of the Group,
for the other items of PPE having gross book value ¥ 275 Lacs
and written down value of ¥ 7 Lacs as on March 31, 2024, the
management is in the process of reverification regarding the
availability of these assets. Accordingly, we are unable to comment
on the impact of the same, if any, on the Ind AS Financial Statements.

b) In case of one of the subsidiaries of the Holding Company, audited
by another auditor, who reported that Intangible assets having gross
book value of ¥ 835 Lacs and written down value of ¥ 165 Lacs as

Financial Statements

/

on March 31, 2024 are not accessible for use to the Group. No
provision for the same has been made in accounts. As informed to
us by the management of the Group, the management is in the
process of reverification regarding the usability of these assets.
Accordingly, we are unable to comment on the impact of the same,
if any, on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

c) We draw reference to Note No. 58 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements which explains that SIFL has not received Board approved
financial results of 01 subsidiary, viz. Trinity Alternative Investment
Managers Limited and 02 subsidiaries of Trinity (step down
subsidiaries of SIFL), viz. Hyderabad Information Technology Venture
Enterprises Limited and Cyberabad Trustee Company Private Limited
for the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st March,
2023 and accordingly, the financial statements of these companies
have not been considered for consolidation as on 31 March, 2024
the Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31 March,
2024 are not comparable with the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March, 2023. We are unable to comment on
the possible impact of the same on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 or any other
consequences arising out of such non-compliance on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements Section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements:

a. Note No. 1.5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements which
describes the significant changes during the year as a result of
implementation of the approved resolution plan.

b. Note No. 52 to the consolidated Financial Statements which describes
the impact of various steps undertaken for implementation of the
resolution plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated
August 11, 2023 in the consolidated Financial Statements.
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c. Note No. 56 to the consolidated Financial Statements, SEFL on the
basis of abundant prudence, has decided to make provision to the
extent of interest income recognized during the period on Net stage-
Il Accounts and make additional provision to the extent of IRAC
provision as management overlay in ECL. Our opinion on the
consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of the
above stated matters.

Management’s Responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The RBI vide press release dated 4 October, 2021 in exercise of the
powers conferred under Section 45-IE (1) of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 ("RBI Act") superseded the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and Srei Equipment Finance Limited (“hereinafter referred to
as SEFL”) and appointed an Administrator under Section 45-1E (2) of
the RBI Act. Further, RBI, in exercise of powers conferred under Section
45-1E (5) (a) of the RBI Act, has constituted a three-member Committee
of Advisors for advising the Administrator.

The RBI had also filed application for initiation of CIRP against SIFL
and SEFL under Section 227 read with clause (zk) of sub-section (2)
of Section 239 of the Code read with Rules 5 and 6 of the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy (Insolvency and Liquidation Proceedings of Financial
Service Providers and Application to Adjudicating Authority) Rules,
2019 ('FSP Insolvency Rules') before the Hon'ble NCLT. Hon'ble NCLT
vide its order dated 8 October, 2021 admitted the application filed by
RBI for initiation of CIRP against SIFL and SEFL. Further, Hon'ble NCLT
gave orders for appointment of Mr. Rajneesh Sharma, as the
Administrator to carry out the functions as per the Code and that the
management of SIFL and SEFL shall vest in the Administrator. Further,
RBI has also retained the three-member Committee of Advisors, as
aforesaid, for advising the Administrator in the operations of SIFL and
SEFL during the CIRP.

The Administrator, after adopting proper procedure, had filed applications
for consolidated resolution process before the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal-Kolkata Bench (Hon’ble NCLT) in the case of Srei
Infrastructure Finance Limited and Srei Equipment Finance Limited (1A
No. 1099 of 2021 under CP.294/KB/2021 and 1A No. 1100 of 2021
under CP.295/KB/2021). The application in this matter was admitted
and the final order was received on February 14, 2022 wherein the
Hon’ble NCLT approved the consolidation of the corporate insolvency
of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited and Srei Equipment Finance
Limited.

The Consolidated Committee of Creditors (CoC) took on record three
Resolution Plans received from Prospective Resolution Applicants
(PRAs) on January 18, 2023. The three Resolution Plans received by
the Consolidated CoC were put to e-voting. The Consolidated CoC took
on record the results of the e-voting in CoC meeting held on February
15, 2023, and the resolution plan submitted by National Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (NARCL) was duly approved by CoC
by majority voting under Section 30(4) of the IBC read with Regulation
39(3) of CIRP Regulations, 2016, thereby, declaring NARCL as Successful
Resolution Applicant (SRA). The resolution plan of NARCL approved
by Consolidated Committee of Creditors (CoC) was filed before
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Adjudicating Authority on February 18, 2023 for its approval and the
same was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide its Order dated August 11,
2023.

In terms of the resolution plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT order dated
August 11, 2023, an Implementation and Monitoring Committee (“IMC”)
had been constituted which was empowered to supervise the
implementation of the approved resolution plan and oversee the
management of the affairs of the Group as per the terms of the approved
resolution plan. The IMC in its meeting dated August 16, 2023 passed
a resolution appointing the Administrator as Chairman of IMC and vide
IMC resolution dated August 17, 2023 authorized him to continue to
operate all the bank accounts and undertake various activities as are
required to ensure the Group’s status as a going concern during the
implementation of the approved resolution plan. IMC stands dissolved
and the Board of the Company was re-constituted on February 26,
2024, to take charge of the affairs of the Company.

The Company’s Board of Directors is s responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of
these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in India including the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates
are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and of its associates are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibhilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s



report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated
Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

/ Financial Statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

i.  The Consolidated Financial Statements includes the audited financial
statements of 08 subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect
Group's share of total assets of X 4,63,354 Lacs as at 31 March,
2024, Group's share of total revenues of ¥ 61,590 Lacs, Group's
share of total net loss of ¥ 7,65,035 Lacs and Group's share of total
comprehensive income of ¥ (7,65,341) Lacs for the year ended 31
March, 2024 respectively and net cash outflows amounting to
X 2,21,843 Lacs for the year ended 31 March, 2024, as considered
in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited
by their respective independent auditors. The independent auditors'
reports on financial statements of these entities have been furnished
to us by the management and our opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these entities, is based solely on
the reports of such auditors.

ii. The Consolidated Financial Statements includes the unaudited
financial statements of 1 Trust whose financial statements reflect
Group's share of total assets of ¥ 1 Lac as at 31 March, 2024,
Group's share of total revenues of X Nil, Group's share of total net
profit after tax of ¥ Nil and Group's share of total comprehensive
income of X Nil for the year ended 31 March, 2024 respectively and
net cash inflows amounting to X Nil for the year ended 31 March,
2024. These unaudited financial statements have been furnished to
us by the existing management of the Holding Company and our
opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
Trust is based solely on such unaudited financial statements.

iii. The audit of comparative financial information of the Group for the
year ended 31st March 2023 prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards was carried out by the predecessor auditor.
The predecessor auditor had given Disclaimer of Opinion Report
for the said period vide their report dated May 16, 2023, whose
reports have been furnished to us by the management and which
have been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit of the
Financial Statements. Our audit report is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the
Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on
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the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate
financial statements and the other financial information of the
subsidiaries, incorporated in India, as noted in the “Other Matters”
Section, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and
on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate
financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries
and trust, as noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

a.

98

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors
except for the matters stated in the paragraph 2(h)(vi) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there
under.

On the basis of the written representations received from the
directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company
none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)
of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statement and operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B” which is based on the auditor’s report of the
Company and subsidiaries company. Our report express an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of internal controls over financial reporting with reference to
these consolidated financial statements of these companies.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with the requirements of Section 197(16)
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
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Holding Gompany to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations
on its financial position in its financial statements.
Refer Note No. 30 of Consolidated Financial Statement.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required
to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Group.

iv. a) As represented by the management, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note no 39
to Consolidated Financial Statement no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) As represented by the management that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
no. 39 to Consolidated Financial Statement no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Group from any person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing
has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.



v. The Group has not declared/paid any dividend paid during
the year. Hence, reporting the compliance with Section 123
of the Act is not applicable.

vi.

a.

Based on our examination, which included test checks,
except for the instances mentioned below, the Company
has used accounting software for maintaining its books
of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has been operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective software:

In case of Holding Company and its subsidiary
SEFL, the feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility was not enabled at the data base level to log
any direct data changes for the accounting software’s
i.e. Oracle, used for maintaining the books of
account. Consequently, we were unable to verify
the integrity of audit trial throughout the year.

In case of one of the subsidiaries the feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled
at the application layer.

Further, based on our examination and audit report
of its subsidiaries, the Holding Company and its

/ Financial Statements

subsidiaries SEFL has used accounting software
which is operated by a third-party software service
provider, for maintaining its books of account. In
absence of ‘Right to Audit’ clause in the agreements
entered with the third-party software service
provider, we are unable to comment whether audit
trial feature of the said software was enabled and
operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software or whether
there were any instances of the audit trial feature
been tampered with.

For S K AGRAWAL AND CO

Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.- 306033E/E300272

Sd/-

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
(Partner)

Membership No. 068851
UDIN: 24068851BKCAZQ02953

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 5, 2024

Annual Report 2023-24 | 99




$REI

Annexure - A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited for the year

ended 31 March, 2024

(Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by Holding Company and the books of account and records examined by
us in the normal course of audit and based on audit report of subsidiaries companies incorporated in India and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we state that:

xxi. Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARQ) reports of the companies

included in the consolidated financial statements are :

Sr. No.  Name of the entities

CIN

Holding Company/Subsidiary

Clause number
of the CARO
report which is
unfavourable or
qualified or adverse

1. Srei Infrastructure
Finance Limited

L29219WB1985PLC055352

Holding Company

3i(c), 3xx(a)

2. Srei Equipment Finance U70101WB2006PLC109898 Subsidiary 3i(b), 3i(c), 3iii(c), 3iii(d), 3ix(a),

Limited 3ix(b), 3ix(e), 3ix(f), 3xi(a), 3xvii,
3xx(a)

3. Bengal Srei U70109WB2004PLC100517 Subsidiary 3iii(c), 3ix, 3xvi, 3xix
Infrastructure
Development Limited

4. Srei Mutual Fund Trust U65990WB2009PTC139790 Subsidiary 3xvii
Private Limited

5. Srei Capital Markets U67190WB1998PLC087155 Subsidiary 3vii(b), 3xvii
Limited

6. Srei Mutual Fund Asset U74110WB2009PTC139801 Subsidiary 3iii(a), 3ii(c), 3iii(d), 3iii(e), 3xvii
Management Private
Limited

7. Srei Insurance Broking U67120WB2002PTC095019 Subsidiary 3viii

Private Limited

For S K AGRAWAL AND CO
Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.- 306033E/E300272

Sd/-

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
(Partner)

Membership No. 068851
UDIN: 24068851BKCAZQ2953

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 5, 2024
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-
Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (“the Holding Company”), its
subsidiary companies and its trust, which are incorporated in India,
as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit
evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability

of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far
as it relates to eight (8) subsidiaries, which is Company incorporated
in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For S K AGRAWAL AND CO

Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.- 306033E/E300272

Sd/-

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
(Partner)

Membership No. 068851
UDIN: 24068851BKCAZQ2953

Place: Kolkata
Dated: June 5, 2024
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31st March, 2024

; Note
Particulars No.
ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above 3
(c) Receivables
- Trade Receivables 4
(d) Loans 5
(e) Investments 6
(f) Other Financial Assets 7
(2) Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net) 8
(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9
(c) Property, Plant and Equipment 10
(d) Right-of-use Assets
(e) Goodwill on Consolidation
(f) Other Intangible Assets 11
(9) Intangible assets under development
(h) Other Non-Financial Assets 12
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables
(i) Trade Payables
(ii) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 13
(iii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 13
(b) Debt Securities 14
(c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 15
(d) Subordinated Liabilities 16
(e) Lease Liabilities
(f) Other Financial Liabilities 17
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 9
(b) Provisions 18
(c) Other Non-Financial Liabilities 19
(3) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 20
(b) Other Equity 21

Non-controlling Interests
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

(X in Lacs)
March 31, 2024 WET{H ) B4 IPZ]

63,884 2,56,419
3,107 18,604
2,098 2213
2,98,564 9,49,263
69,983 1,08,700
841 64,067
23,042 6,852
642 552
80,305 1,33,184
304 507
- 683
315 542
6 -
2,912 23,626

5,46,003 15,65,212

6 230

271 6,934
2,97,597 2,59,944
525 26,69,340
6,236 2,95,458
353 638
11,354 15,343
161 15,348
1,34,985 3,988
100 50,309
(10,74,756)  (17,52,324)
11,69,171 4

546,003 15,65,212

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements. 1to 67

The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.306033E/E300272

Sd/-

Hemant Kumar Lakhotia
Partner

Membership No. 068851

Place: Kolkata
Date: June 5, 2024
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/-

Hardayal Prasad
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08024303

Sd/-
Vishnu Gopal Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Sd/-

Avinash Kulkarni
Director

DIN: 02982164

Sd/-
Manoj Kumar
Company Secretary & CCO
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended 31st March, 2024
(Xin Lacs)

. Note As at As at
Particulars No. RUEIHEINAPZY March 31, 2023

Revenue from Operations

(i) Interest Income 22 45,769 1,28,418
(ify  Dividend Income™ = -
(iii) Rental Income 12,960 20,355
(iv) Fees and Commission Income 1,654 2,969
(v) Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments under fair value through profit or loss 8 8
(vi) Others 2076 2,670
(I) Total Revenue from Operations 62,467 1,54,420
(1)  Other Income 24 11,494 1,869
(1) Total Income (1+1) 73,961 1,56,289
Expenses
(i)  Finance Costs 25 14,217 7,624
(i) Fees and Commission Expense 2,003 1,781
(iii) Net loss on fair value changes 23 88,408 9,624
(iv) Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortised cost 803 5,567
(v) Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net) 26 6,74,562 1,42,216
(vi) Employee Benefits Expenses 27 6,469 8,745
(vii) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expense 30,733 43,582
(viii) Administrative and Other Expenses 28 15,154 19,158
(ix) Loss/write-off on Repossessed Assets and Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 20,416 13,257
(IV) Total Expenses (IV) 8,952,765 2,51,554
(V) Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional ltems & Tax (llI-1V) (7,78,804) (95,265)
(VI) Exceptional Items (10,15,593)
(VI) Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and after Exceptional Items(V+VI) (7,78,804) (11,10,858)
(VII) Tax Expense:
(a) Current Tax - 49
(b) Current Tax in respect of earlier year 19 6
(c) Deferred Tax (88) (14)
(IX) Profit/(Loss) After Tax but before Loss of Associates (VII-VIII) (7,78,735) (11,10,899)
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associates = -
(X) Profit/(Loss) After Tax (IX+X) (7,78,735) (11,10,899)
(X1) Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
(a) Remeasurement Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plan (80) (163)
(b) Gains/(Losses) on Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income (8,849) 15,605
(c) Tax related to above 2 (1)
(i) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
(a) Effective portion of gains and losses on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge > -
(b) Gains on fair valuation of loans (229) (719)
(c) Tax related to above = -
(XII) Total Other Comprehensive Income (XI) (9,156) 14,722
Total Comprehensive Income (X+XI) (7,87,891) (10,96,177)
(XI1I) Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
- Owners of the parent (7,78,734) (11,10,900)
- Non-controlling interest (1) 1
(X1V) Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
- Owners of the parent (9,156) 14,722
- Non-controlling interest - -
(XV) Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:
- Owners of the parent (7,87,890) (10,96,178)
- Non-controlling interest (1) 1
(XVI) Earnings per Equity share (Par Value X 10/- per Equity Share) 29
Basic Earnings per equity share (in ) (216.07) (220.82)
Diluted Earnings per equity share (in ) (216.07) (220.82)
*Amount mentioned as '0" is below rounding off threshold adopted by the Company.
Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 11067
The Notes referred to above form an integral part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
This is the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration No.306033E/E300272
Sd/- Sd/-
Hardayal Prasad Avinash Kulkarni
Sd/- Managing Director & CEO Director
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia DIN: 08024303 DIN: 02982164
Partner
Membership No. 068851 Sd/- Sd/-
Vishnu Gopal Agarwal Manoj Kumar
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & CCO

Date: June 5, 2024
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Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 31st March, 2024

®in Lacs)

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 | \ET¢H I A1 &)

A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (7,78,804) (11,10,858)
Adjustments for:
Net unrealised fair value (gain)/loss 88,397 9,624
Net (gain)/loss on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment (988) 7,555
Interest on Income Tax Refund (3) (1,493)
Liabilities No Longer Required written back (396) (362)
Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net) 6,74,562 1,42,216
Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net) on Exceptional items = 9,37,100
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment Expense 30,733 43,582
Net (gain)/loss on derecognition of Financial Instruments under amortised cost category 803 5,567
Impairment/Write-off on Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 20,416 13,257
Net unrealised fair value (gain)/loss on exceptional items > 78,493
Operating profit before working capital changes 34,720 1,24,681
Changes in Working Capital
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables and Others Assets (1,980) 24,936
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans Assets 56,346 (83,180)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Others Liabilities (27,749) (5,843)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances 15,497 77
Cash Generated/(used) in operations 76,834 60,671
Direct Taxes Paid (net of refund) (2,574) 13,784
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Operating Activities 74,260 74,455
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Capital Work-in-Progress/ Intangible Assets (31) -
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible assets 4,809 10,945
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments (Other than Subsidiaries) 6,797 48,197
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Investing Activities 11,575 59,142
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities
(Repayment of)/Proceeds from issuance of Debt securities (including subordinated debt securities) (84,278) 1,268
(Repayment of)/Proceeds from Working Capital facilities (Net) (1,60,672) 3,053
Repayment of Other Borrowings (33,420) (10,577)
Net Cash (used in)/generated from Financing Activities (2,78,370) (6,256)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,92,535) 1,27,341
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,56,419 1,29,078
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 63,884 2,56,419
in Lacs)
f . As at As at
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents: March 31, 2023
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
(a) Cash on hand 1 8
(b) Balances with Banks - in Current Account 13,139 28,574
(c) Fixed Deposits with original maturity period less than three months 50,744 2,27,837
63,884 2,56,419

Explanations:

1. The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

2. Previous period figures have been rearranged/regrouped wherever necessary to conform to the current year's classification.
This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants For and on hehalf of Board of Directors
ICAl Firm Registration No.306033E/E300272

Sd/- Sd/-
Hardayal Prasad Avinash Kulkarni
Sd/- Managing Director & CEO Director
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia DIN: 08024303 DIN: 02982164
Partner
Membership No. 068851 Sd/- Sd/-
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Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited

Material Accounting Policies and Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements

1 (a) GENERAL INFORMATION
Implementation of Consolidated Resolution Plan

The Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) vide press release dated October 4,
2021 in exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-1E (1) of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (‘RBI Act’) superseded the Board
of Directors of the Company and SEFL and appointed an Administrator
under Section 45-1E (2) of the RBI Act. Further, RBI, in exercise of
powers conferred under Section 45-1E (5) (a) of the RBI Act, has
constituted a three-member Committee of Advisors for advising the
Administrator.

The RBI had also filed application for initiation of Corporate Insolvency
Resolution Process (‘CIRP’) against the Company and SEFL under
Section 227 read with clause (zk) of sub-section (2) of Section 239 of
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016 (‘the Code’) read with
Rules 5 and 6 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy (Insolvency and
Liquidation Proceedings of Financial Service Providers and Application
to Adjudicating Authority) Rules, 2019 (‘FSP Insolvency Rules’) before
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (‘Hon’ble
NCLT’). Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated October 8, 2021, admitted
the application filed by RBI for initiation of CIRP against the Company
and SEFL. Further, Hon’ble NCLT gave orders for appointment of Mr.
Rajneesh Sharma, as the Administrator to carry out the functions as
per the Code and that the management of the Company shall vest in
the Administrator.

The Administrator, after adopting proper procedure, had filed applications
for consolidated resolution process before the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal- Kolkata Bench (Hon’ble NCLT) in the case of Srei
Infrastructure Finance Limited and Srei Equipment Finance Limited (1A
No. 1099 of 2021 under CP.294/KB/2021 and IA No. 1100 of 2021
under GP.295/KB/2021).The application in this matter was admitted
and the final order was received on February 14, 2022 wherein the
Hon’ble NCLT approved the consolidation of the corporate insolvency
of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited and Srei Equipment Finance
Limited.

The Consolidated Committee of Creditors (CoC) took on record three
Resolution Plans received from Prospective Resolution Applicants
(PRASs) on January 18, 2023. The three Resolution Plans received by
the Consolidated CoC were put to e-voting. The Consolidated CoC took
on record the results of the e-voting in CoC meeting held on February
15, 2023, and the resolution plan submitted by National Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (NARCL) was duly approved by CoC
by majority voting under Section 30(4) of the IBC read with Regulation
39(3) of CIRP Regulations, 2016, thereby, declaring NARCL as Successful
Resolution Applicant (SRA). The resolution plan of NARCL approved
by Consolidated Committee of Creditors (CoC) was filed before
Adjudicating Authority on February 18, 2023 for its approval and the
same was approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide its Order dated August 11,
2023.

In terms of the approved resolution plan, an Implementation and
Monitoring Committee (“IMC”) was constituted which was empowered
to supervise the implementation of the approved resolution plan and
oversee the management of the affairs of the Company as per the terms
of the approved resolution plan till the closing date. The IMC in its
meeting dated August 16, 2023 passed a resolution appointing the
Administrator as Chairman of IMC and vide IMC resolution dated August
17, 2023 authorised him to continue to operate all the bank accounts
and undertake various activities as are required to ensure the Company’s
status as a going concern during the implementation of the approved
resolution plan.
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IMC, vide its resolution dated 19th December 23 has declared that
December 31st, 2023 is closing date of balance sheet for the purpose
of audit and its handover to the new Board of Directors. The handover
of the closing date balance sheet along with other necessary requirement
including Reconstitution of the Board of Directors took place on February
26th, 2024. On completion of the handover activities by the IMC to
Board of Directors, IMC got dissolved. Accordingly, effect of Resolution
Plan has been given in the financial statements for the year ended on
March 31st, 2024.

1 (b) MATERIAL ACCOUNTIING POLICIES
1.1 Basis of Preparation

The Consolidated Financial Statements relates to M/s. Srei Infrastructure
Finance Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together hereinafter
referred to as “Group”), and Trust. The Consolidated Financial Statements
have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and notified under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) along with other relevant
provisions of the Act, the Master Direction. Accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements is to be read in conjunction with the
annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 and any
public announcement made by the Group during the reporting period.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
immediately previous financial year and corresponding reporting period.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the application of fair value
measurements required or allowed by relevant Accounting Standards.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and
the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are
significant to the Group are discussed in Note 1.28-Significant accounting
judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results could differ from those estimates and the differences between
the actual results and the estimates would be recognized in the periods
in which the results are known/materialized.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest lac, except when
otherwise indicated.

Comparative information has been regrouped/rearranged to accord with
changes in presentations made in the current period, except where
otherwise stated.

These Consolidated Financial Statements of SIFL, its subsidiaries and
trust together referred to as “the Group” for the year ended 31st March,
2024 have been taken on record by the by the Board of Directors of the
Company on June 05, 2024. The IMC was dissolved and the Board was
reconstituted on February 26, 2024 till that time the affairs of the
Company were managed by IMC through the Administrator (acting as
a chairman of the IMC).It is also incumbent upon the Resolution
Professional, under Section 20 of the Code, to manage the operations
of the Company and SEFL as going concern. Since the Administrator
has taken charge of the affairs of the Company and SEFL on 04th
October, 2021, the Administrator is not liable or responsible for any
actions and has no personal knowledge of any such actions of the



/ Financial Statements

Company or SEFL prior to his appointment and has relied on the position (iv) The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the
of the financial statements of the Company and SEFL as they existed following basis:

on 04th October, 2021. Regarding information pertaining to period prior
to 04th October, 2021 the Administrator has relied upon the explanations,
clarifications, certifications, representations and statements made by

a) The financial statements of the Group and trust have been
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items

the chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Business Officer, of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The intra-group
Chief Compliance Officer and Legal Head (‘the existing official of the balances and intra-group transactions have been fully eliminated
Group’), who were also part of the Group prior to appointment of the except where losses are realized.

Administrator. As part of the CIRP, the Administrator has initiated
audits/reviews relating to the processes and compliances of the Group
and has also appointed professionals for conducting transaction audit
as per Section 43, 45, 50 and 66 of the Code.

(=3
—

The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in the
subsidiary companies and trust over its share of equity/corpus
of the subsidiary company/trust, at the dates on which the
investments is made, is recognized as ‘Goodwill’ being an
1.2. Basis of Consolidation asset in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Alternatively,
where the share of equity/corpus as on the date of investment

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial o : e
is in excess of cost of investment of the Company, it is

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

i.e. its subsidiaries. It also includes the Group’s share of profits recognized under ‘Other Equity’, in the Consolidated Financial
in associate and interest in trust that are consolidated in a manner Statements.

as explained below. c) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of
Control is achieved when the Company is exposed to, or has rights investment in subsidiary/Trust and the carrying amount of its
to the variable returns of the entity and the ability to affect those assets and liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognized
returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements in the statement of Profit and Loss as profit or loss on disposal
of the subsidiaries and associate acquired or disposed off during of subsidiary.

the period are included in the consolidated statement of Profit and

Loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective d) Mino.ri‘ty intere§t, if any, in the net asslets of.consolidated
date of disposal, as appropriate. subsidiary consists of the amount of equity attributable to the
’ minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are
(||) The fi.nancial State.me.nts of the subsidiary companies and Trust made by the Company in the subsidiary company and further
used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the
as of the Company i.e. year ended 31§t I\/Iarch, 2024.and are dates of investments as stated above.
prepared based on the accounting policies consistent with those
used by the Company. e) Investment made by the Company in an associate company

is accounted under the equity method, in accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standard 28 on ‘Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures’.

(iii) The financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with the Ind AS 110-‘Consolidated Financial Statements’
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, ~ (v) The subsidiary companies considered in the Consolidated Financial

2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act. Statements are as below:

Subsidiaries & Step-down Subsidiaries Country of Origin Share of ownership Share of ownership

interest as at interest as at
IR HVET(H e PZ 7B 31st March, 2023 (%)

Srei Equipment Finance Limited India 100 100

Srei Asset Leasing Limited India 100 100

Srei Capital Markets Limited India 100 100

Controlla Electrotech Private Limited India 100 100

Srei Mutual Fund Asset Management Private Limited India 100 100

Srei Mutual Fund Trust Private Limited India 100 100

Srei Insurance Broking Private Limited India 100 100

Bengal Srei Infrastructure Development Limited India 51 51

Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Ltd India 51 51

Hyderabad Information Technology Venture Enterprises Limited

(Subsidiary of Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Ltd) India 51 51

Cyberabad Trustee Company Private Limited (Subsidiary of Trinity

Alternative Investment Managers Ltd) India 51 51

Trusts:

Srei Mutual Fund Trust India 100* 100*

* holding % of Corpus

The accounting policies for some specific items are disclosed in the  1.3. Presentation of Financial Statements

respective notes to the financial statements. Other material accounting The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and trust are
policies and details of significant accounting assumptions and estimates presented as per Schedule |1l (Division I1l) of the Companies Act, 2013
are set out below in Note No. 1.3 to 1.29. applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
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(MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported
on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts without being contingent on a
future event and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the following
circumstances:

i.  The normal course of business
ii. The event of default

ii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and/or its
counterparties

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements (e.g.
International Swaps and Derivative Association Arrangements) are
presented net if all the above criteria are met.

1.4. Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
other relevant provision of the Act and guidelines issued by the Reserve
Bank of India (“the RBI”).

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods
presented in the financial statements, unless otherwise stated.

1.5. Significant changes in the interim reporting period

In terms of the resolution plan approved by Hon’ble NCLT order dated
August 11, 2023, an Implementation and Monitoring Committee (“IMC”)
has been constituted which is empowered to supervise the
implementation of the approved resolution plan and oversee the
management of the affairs of the Group as per the terms of the approved
resolution plan till the closing date. The IMC in its meeting dated August
16, 2023 passed a resolution appointing the Administrator as Chairman
of IMC and vide IMC resolution dated August 17, 2023 authorised him
to continue to operate all the bank accounts and undertake various
activities as are required to ensure the Group’s status as a going concern
during the implementation of the approved resolution plan.

The financial position and performance of the Group was particularly
affected as a result of implementation of the approved resolution plan
in the following items during the year ended to March 31, 2024:

(i) Allthe existing reserves of the Group (other than retained earnings)
has been transferred to restructuring reserves. (Refer Note no. 21)

(i) Reduction in equity share Capital and the net consideration payable
on capital reduction has been transferred to restructuring reserve.
(Refer Note no. 20 and 52)

(iii) Allidentifiable assets and liabilities of the Group has been recorded
at their respective fair value and difference, if any, between the fair
value of identifiable assets and liabilities has been transferred to
restructuring reserves. (Refer Note no. 10 and 52)

(iv) After considering the above adjustment, the balance in restructuring
reserve account has been transferred/adjusted to the retained
earnings of the Group (Refer note no. 21)

(v) Balance in retained earnings of the Group has been construed as
free reserve for the purpose of the Companies Act 2013 and
prescribed RBI guidelines. (Refer note no. 21)

(vi) Any transaction cost incurred in relation to the implementation of
the resolution plan has been recognized as expense in profit and
loss account. (Refer note no. 28)

(vii) There is an increase in impairment on financial instruments post
reversal of impairment reserve as per RBI approval to give the
effect to the resolution plan (Refer note no 26)

(viii) The Group, on instructions of the IMC, has taken all necessary
steps including making payments, to various stakeholders in terms
of the approved resolution plan (Refer Note no. 14, 15, 16 and 52)
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(ix) All contingent liabilities on account of implementation of the
resolution plan has been permanently extinguished, discharged
and settled in term of approved resolution plan (Refer note no. 30)

1.6. Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary represents the excess
of the consideration transferred in the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired,
liabilities assumed and contingent liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested
for impairment annually. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying value of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying value of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit in proportion to the
carrying value of each asset in the unit.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period. On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of profit or loss on disposal.

1.7. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from Operations is recognised in the consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis as stated herein below:

(a) Interest income from financial assets is recognised by applying
the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR’) to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets, other than credit-impaired assets and those
classified as measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI). The
basis of computation of EIR is discussed in Note No. 1.21.3.
Interest Income for borrowers whose transactions are determined
as fraudulent in nature is not recognized from the start of the
quarter in which the same is determined as fraudulent.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows
having impact on EIR are recognised as interest income with the
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

(b) Income or net gain on fair value changes for financial assets
classified as measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI is recognised as
discussed in Note No. 1.21.3.

(c) Income from Credit Impaired Financial Assets is recognised on
net basis i.e. after considering Impairment Loss Allowance.

(d) Interests on delayed payments by customers are treated to accrue
only on realisation, due to uncertainty of realisation and are
accounted accordingly.

(e) Income from dividend is recognised when the Group’s right to
receive such dividend is established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

(f) Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

(9) Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease, unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
the benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished or the
rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general



inflation to compensate for the Group’s expected inflationary cost
increases.

(h) Referral income is recognised when it becomes due under the
terms of the relevant mutually agreed arrangement.

(i) Income from joint controlled operation is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s share in jointly controlled operations arising out of
sale of units generated as per the terms of the respective power
purchase agreements with the State Electricity Boards.

(j) Interest income on fixed deposits/margin money/pass through
certificates is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

(k) In case of assignment transactions, as the Group retains the
contractual right to receive some of the interest amount due on
the transferred assets, the present value of such interest receivable
is recorded as ‘Interest retained on pools assigned’ with
corresponding gain recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss.

(I) Revenue from Contract with Customers:

Revenue is recognised when transfer of control of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects that the consideration
the Group expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.
Revenue is recognised when related services are rendered and
performance obligation is satisfied which is based on a five-step model
as set out below, unless included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as
an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable
rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that
must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance
obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good
or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the performance obligation is
satisfied.

Satisfaction of performance obligation in some cases requires
acknowledgement/acceptance of service by the Customer.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which
we refer to as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues
are classified as contract liabilities (which we refer to as unearned
revenues).

Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has
not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures
for contracts where the revenue recognised corresponds directly with
the value to the customer of the entity's performance completed to
date, typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material
basis.

1.8. Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

/

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Group's net investment in the leases
Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the net
investment in the lease and reduce the amount of income recognised
over the lease term based on interest rate implicit in the lease.

Financial Statements

The Group as lessor

Assets given on operating leases are included in Property Plant and
Equipment. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

For the revenue recognition policy on Lease Contracts, refer Note
No. 1.7.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with on borrowing costs (see 1.10 below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.

The Group’s operating lease asset classes primarily consist of leases
for buildings or part thereof. The Group assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of
an identified asset (i) the Group has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii)
the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with low-value
assets and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less). For these short term and low value leases, the Group recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight line basis
over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate
the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities
excludes these options as there is no reasonable certainty that they will
be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability i.e. the present value of future
lease payment, adjusted for any lease payment made at or prior to the
commencement date of lease plus any initial direct costs, an estimate
of costs to be incurred in dismantling and removing or restoring the
underlying asset less any lease incentive received. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The lease liability is initially
measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using interest rate implicit
in the lease or if not readily determinable using the incremental borrowing
rate. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment
to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment
if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of
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the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. In the event that
lease incentives are received to enter into lease, such incentives are
adjusted towards right-of-use-asset.

Lease liability and right-of-use asset have been separately presented
in the Balance Sheet.

1.9. Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentational currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian
Rupee (INR) in Lacs, the functional currency of the Group. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Initial recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items are restated using the exchange
rate prevailing at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items (carried at fair value) as on reporting date are
restated using the exchange rate prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation differences on such items
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss on such items.

For non-monetary items (carried at historical cost), restatement
is not required as on reporting date.

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses:
Financial Assets:

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated using the exchange
rate prevailing at the reporting date.

e For monetary financial assets measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI
or FVTPL and non-monetary financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss except for those which are designated
as hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

e Foreign currency changes for non-monetary financial assets
measured at FVTOGI are recognised in OCI.

Financial Liabilities:

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and translated using the exchange
rate prevailing at the reporting date.

For monetary financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI
or FVTPL and non-monetary financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss except for those which are designated as hedging
instruments in a hedging relationship. For financial liabilities that are
measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of
the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Foreign currency changes for non-monetary financial liabilities measured
at FVTOCI are recognised in OCI.

1.10. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds including interest expense
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calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect
of assets acquired on finance lease. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Interest expense includes origination costs that are initially recognised
as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over
the expected life using the EIR. It also include expenses related to
borrowing which are not part of effective interest as not directly related
to loan origination.

1.11. Employee Benefits
Retirement benefit costs and other employee benefits
(A) Defined Contribution Plans:

Contributions to Provident Fund, Pension Fund and Employee State
Insurance are considered as defined contribution plans and are
recognised as expenditure based on the amount of contribution
required to be made and when an employee renders related services.

(B) Defined Benefit Plans:

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other
than a defined contribution plan. The Group 's net obligation in
respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that
amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a potential asset for the Group, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’).
In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise
actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Group determines
the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability
(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the
period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss when the benefits of a plan
are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past
service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. the Group recognises gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement
occeurs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in Balance Sheet
represents the actual deficit or surplus in Group's defined benefit
plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.



(C) Short-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect
of wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual
leave and sick leave in the period in which related service is rendered.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service are measured
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service.

(D) Other long-term employee benefits (unfunded)

The cost of providing other long term employee benefits is calculated
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, and spread over the period
during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’
services. Re-measurement actuarial gains and losses and past service
cost are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss for
the period in which they occur. Other long term employee benefit
obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value
of related obligation.

1.12. Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current Tax is determined at the amount of tax payable in respect of
taxable profit for the year as per the Income-tax Act, 1961. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting
period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is
a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is
intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

The Group’s deferred tax is calculated using tax rate that are substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities.

Assets for Own Use:
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

1.13. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment shown in the consolidated balance sheet
consists of assets used in provision of services or for administrative
purposes, and include assets leased by the Group as lessor under
operating leases.

Initial and subsequent recognition

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost together
with borrowing cost capitalized for qualifying assets. Cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item
to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset
is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit
and Loss.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use. It is recognised to write down the cost of assets less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight-line basis. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets description as per Note No.10

Useful Life as per the Companies Act 2013

Useful Life as followed by the Group

Buildings 60 years 60 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years 10 years
Computers & Office Equipment 3,5, 6 years 3,5,6 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years 7, 8 years
Plant and Machinery 15, 22 years 8,15,22 years
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Assets for Operating lease:

Assets description as per Note No. 10

Useful Life as per the Companies Act 2013

Useful Life as followed by the Group

Computers 3, 6 years 5 years
Earth Moving Equipment 9 years 7 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years 7 years
Plant and Machinery 15, 30 years 8,15 years
Windmills 22 years 20 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

Leasehold assets including improvements are amortised over the shorter
of lease period and their useful life on the same basis as owned assets.
Freehold Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on assets purchased/sold during the period is recognised
on a pro-rata basis.

1.14. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised
on a straight-line basis over 2-6 years, which reflects the managements
estimate.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and
Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

1.15. Investment Property

Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified
as investment property and measured and reported at cost, including
transaction costs.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off
the cost of the investment property less their residual values over their
useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or in
case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical
evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is
reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of
consumption of the future benefits embodied in the investment property.
The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each
financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful
life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss in the same period.
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1.16.Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment on an annual basis, and
on a shorter period whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of Profit and
Loss.

1.17. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as a finance cost.



When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised
as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected
benefits to be derived by the Group from a contract are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contract.

In case of litigations, provision is recognised once it has been established
that the Group has a present obligation based on information available
up to the date on which the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements
are finalised and may in some cases entail seeking expert advice in
making the determination on whether there is a present obligation.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group
or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is
a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. Group does not recognize contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. Contingent assets are not recognised in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, but are disclosed where an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

1.18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, balances with
banks, cheques on hand, remittances in transit and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.19. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker (CODM). The
CODM assess the financial performance and position of the Group and
makes strategic decisions.

Segments are organized based on businesses which have similar
economic characteristics as well as exhibit similarities in nature of
services offered.

1.20. (i) Repossessed Assets and Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of
Deht

Repossessed assets and assets acquired in satisfaction of debt are
those assets whose carrying amount is recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. These assets are
disclosed as part of ‘other non-financial assets’ and are carried
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

(ii) Non-Current Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
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is intended to be recovered principally through a sale (rather than
through continuing use) when the asset is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sale of such asset and the sale is probable and is expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification. Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

1.21. Financial Instruments
Classification of financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement
categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss
account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial
assets’ cash flows and the Group’s business model for managing
financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects
how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business
objective. The Group’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and
is based on observable factors.

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected
scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into
account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that
is different from the Group’s original expectations, the Group does not
change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that
business model, but incorporates such information when assessing
newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process is to assess the contractual
terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the
financial asset.

In making this assessment, it is considered whether the contractual
cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest
includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk,
other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a
basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce
exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless
it has designated liabilities at fair value through the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss account or is required to measure
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

1.21.1 Recognition of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans
& advances and all other regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on the trade date basis.
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1.21.2 Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

1.21.3 Subsequent Measurement:
(A) Financial Assets
Financial Assets carried at Amortised Cost (AC):

These financial assets comprise bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables,
other receivables, investments and other financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a
business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The EIR is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the
amortized cost of a financial liability on initial recognition.

The EIR for financial assets or financial liability is computed

a. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument
in estimating the cash flows.

b. Including fees and transaction costs that are integral part of EIR.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by the Group in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’ applies, are
measured at FVTOCI, where an irrevocable election has been made by
management on an instrument-by-instrument basis. These investments
are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified
to the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the
investments. Dividends on such investments are recognised in the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Debt investments measured at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income under effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses
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are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

A financial asset which is not classified as AC or FVTOCI is measured
at FVTPL. A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or
debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as
at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains
and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated
any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as
FVTPL and held by the Group on the balance sheet date are recognized
in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. In cases there is a net
gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value
changes” under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the
same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the consolidated statement of
Profit and Loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial
assets measured at amortised cost and FVTOCI at each reporting date
based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

In case of debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance
measured in accordance with the above requirements is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the
Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss but is not reduced from the
carrying amount of the financial asset in the Consolidated Balance Sheet;
so the financial asset continues to be presented in the balance sheet
at its fair value.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses taking into account historical
credit loss experience (adjusted for forward-looking information) and
Income Recognition and Assets Classification norms of RBI compared
on individual bucket basis, wherever applicable.

Derecognition of Financial Assets:

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights



to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset accounted under Ind AS 109 in
its entirety:

a) For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

b) For financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the cumulative fair value adjustments
previously taken to reserves are reclassified to the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset represents an equity
investment in which case the cumulative fair value adjustments
previously taken to reserves may be reclassified within equity.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part
transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the previous
carrying amount of the larger financial asset shall be allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is derecognised,
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
it recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, it continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a liability for the proceeds received.

Modification/revision in estimates of cash flows of financial assets:

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated
or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or modification does not
result in the derecognition of that financial asset in accordance with Ind
AS 109, the Group recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss.

Various quantitative and qualitative factors are considered to determine
whether the renegotiated terms are substantially different and whether
the same would amount to extinguishment of financial asset and
recognition of a new financial asset. The gross carrying amount of the
financial asset is recalculated as the present value of the renegotiated
or modified contractual cash flows that are discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. Any costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

(B) Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments:
Classification as debt or equity:

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Repurchase
of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Group's own equity instruments.

/

The Group classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured
at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities,
shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial Statements

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities
are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 - “Financial Instruments”.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method except
for those designated in an effective hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the EIR method.

Trade and other payables

A payable is classified as 'trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount
due on account of goods purchased or services received in the normal
course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year, which
are unpaid. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantees issued by the Group are those guarantees that
require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder of the guarantee
for a loss incurred by the holder because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment, when due, to the holder in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantees are recognised initially as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transactions costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined
as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised
less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss.

1.21.4 Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously
backed by past practice.
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1.21.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the Consolidated Financial Statements are categorised into Level 1,
2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are as follows:

Level 1: Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted
quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Group has access to at the measurement date. The Group considers
markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with
regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities
and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on
the consolidated balance sheet date.

Level 2: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market
data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable
inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates and yield curves,
implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may
be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to
which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument.
However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs which
are significant to the entire measurement, the Group will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole.

1.21.6 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles

Expected credit loss (ECL) is the probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e., the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected
life of the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is the difference between
scheduled or contractual cash flows and actual expected cash flows.
Consequently, ECL subsumes both the amount and timing of payments.
It also incorporates available information which is relevant to the
assessment, including information about past events, current conditions
and reasonable and supportable information about future events and
economic conditions at the reporting date.

The Group uses the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Methodology to assess
the impairment on funded credit exposures. The application of the
model was derived from the combination of the probability of default
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and loss given default being applied to the exposure at default (EAD)
to compute ECL based on historical data on an unsegmented basis due
to limitation of count in the past. Owing to transfer of the business,
empirical data for the newly constituted business of the Group was not
available and hence ECL for non-funded credit exposures is being
computed by calculating the difference between the EAD and Net Present
Value of the future cash flows and/or expected realisable value of
security/collateral. Additionally, the Group carries out reviews for
specifically identified exposures as meriting special focus in calculation
of EGL for fulfilling the objective of greater prudence.

Unsegmented portfolio for ECL

In case of Loans where financing was restricted to a large extent to the
infrastructure sectors, considering the limitations of count over the past
years, EGL is computed on an unsegmented portfolio basis.

Staging:

The loan portfolio would be classified into three stage-wise buckets —
Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 corresponding to the contracts assessed
as performing, under-performing and non-performing, in accordance
with the Ind AS guidelines.

While the presumption for inter-stage threshold for Stage 1 is 30 days,
the Group has rebutted the presumption and has considered 60 days
as the threshold. As the borrowers are typically operating in infrastructure
sector, where receivables tend to be stretched, notwithstanding whether
the principals are government, quasi-government entities or private
sector entities. As per current market practice, NBFCs typically tend to
be paid later than banks by borrowers since banks control their working
capital financing.

Methodology:

The basis of the ECL calculations are outlined below which is intended
to be more forward-looking. Key elements of ECL are, as follows:

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon,
a default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period,
if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the
portfolio.

EAD is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into
account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date,
including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by
contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities,
and accrued interest from missed payments.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs
at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive,
including from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed
as a percentage of the EAD.

The key tenets of Group's methodology are as under:

Past performance as basis for ECL discovery: Group's ECL methodology
is based on discovery of the relevant parameters namely EAD, PD and
LGD from the Group's actual performance of past portfolios.

Write-offs

The Group reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when
the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial
asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. Any subsequent recoveries
against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at
an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk



on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected
credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

In case of debt instruments at FVTOCI, the loss allowance measured
in accordance with the above requirements is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding effect to the statement of
Profit and Loss but is not reduced from the carrying amount of the
financial asset in the balance sheet; so the financial asset continues to
be presented in the balance sheet at its fair value.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope
of Ind AS 115, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount
higher of lifetime expected credit losses taking into account historical
credit loss experience (adjusted for forward-looking information) and
Income Recognition and Assets Classification norms of RBI compared
on individual bucket basis, wherever applicable.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss
allowance for trade receivables, the Group has used a practical expedient
as permitted under Ind AS 109.

1.22. Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to
manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks,
including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and
cross currency swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments
are disclosed in note to the financial statements.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument,
in which event the timing of the recognition in the consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship
and the nature of the hedged item.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of Ind AS 109 are treated as separate
derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured
at FVTPL.

1.23. Hedge Accounting

The Group complies with the principles of hedge accounting where
derivative contracts are designated as hedging instruments. At the
inception of the hedge relationship, the documentation is done for the
relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along
with the risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking
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hedge transaction, which can be a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge.
Furthermore, on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Fair Value hedges

Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify
as fair value hedges are recognised in the consolidated statement of
Profit and Loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value
of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.
The change in the fair value of the designated portion of hedging
instrument and the change in fair value of the hedged item attributable
to the hedged risk are recognised in consolidated statement of Profit
and Loss in the line item relating to the hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of
the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or
loss from that date.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the designated
portion of derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
‘Effective portion of cash flow hedges’. The gain or loss relating to the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of Profit and Loss.

Amounts previously recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity relating
to effective portion as described above are reclassified to the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the periods when the hedged item affects the
Statement of Profit and Loss, in the same line as the recognized hedged
item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognized in OCI and accumulated
in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized when the
forecast transaction is ultimately recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.24. Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included
in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.25. Earnings Per Share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance
with Ind AS 33 “Earnings per share”. Basic earnings per share are
calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before other comprehensive
income for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit
or loss before other comprehensive income for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted
for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued
at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding equity
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shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of
the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented.

1.26. Dividend

Dividends paid (including dividend distribution tax thereon) are recognized
in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the Board
of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by
shareholders. The amount is recognized directly in equity.

1.27. Treasury Shares

Shares issued to Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust has been classified as
Treasury Shares. This has been classified as deduction from other
equity.

1.28. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty
and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

1.28.1 Impairment charges on loans and advances

The measurement of impairment losses requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
collateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These are based on the assumptions
which are driven by a number of factors resulting in future changes to
the impairment allowance.

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail
in Note No. 1.21.6 Overview of ECL principles.

1.28.2 Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the
results of the SPPI and the business model test. The Group determines
the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets
are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The
Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior
to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether
the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which
the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and
S0 a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

1.28.3 Provisions other than loan impairment

Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as
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employee entitlements, litigation provisions, etc. Some of the provisions
involve significant judgement about the likely outcome of various events
and estimated future cash flows. The measurement of these provisions
involves the exercise of management judgements about the ultimate
outcomes of the transactions.

1.28.4 Fair Value measurement

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
in the consolidated balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted
prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of consolidated financial instruments.

1.28.5 Hedge Designation

The appropriateness of the designation of certain derivative instruments
such as cash flow hedges, and the measurement of hedge effectiveness
at the inception/origination of the transaction.

1.28.6 Defined employee henefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed annually.

1.28.7 EIR method

The Group’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense
using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant
rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken
and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various
stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding
the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected
changes to India’s base rate and other fee income/expense that are
integral parts of the instrument.

1.28.8 Identification of Related Parties

Related Parties for the purpose of Companies Act, 2013 and relevant
Ind AS, is identified by the Group, for necessary compliance/reporting/
disclosures etc, as per the Board approved Related Party Transactions
(RPT) Policy.

1.28.9 Other estimates

These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible
assets etc.

1.29. Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or
amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year
ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or
amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd.)

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents (%in Lacs)
Particulars ol

arch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 1 8
Balances with Banks-in Current Account # 13,139 8,574
Balance with Banks-in Fixed Deposits Accounts having original maturity up to 3 months
(including accured interest) 50,744 2,27,837
Total 63,884 2,56,419

# Includes % 2,589 Lacs pertaining to a cash credit account with a bank, having a debit balance as at 31st March, 2023

(i) Changes in Cash Flow from financing activities (%in Lacs)

Movement* -
H As at " s a
Particulars 1st Apri. 2023 Cash Non-Cash March 31, 2024

Debt Securities 2,59,944 (36,337) 73,990 2,97,597
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 26,69,340 (2,28,351)  (24,40,464) 525
Subordinated Liabilities 2,95,458 (2,094)  (2,87,128) 6,236
Total 32,24,742 (2,66,782) (26,53,602) 3,04,358

* Refer No. 1,2 & 52

(Xin Lacs)
Movement**
Particulars 1st A 2022 Cash NOm-Cash yyaren 31 2023
Debt Securities 2,59,552 - 392 2,59,944
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 26,76,864 (10,773) 3,249  26,69,340
Subordinated Liabilities 2,94,582 - 876 2,95,458
Total 32,30,998 (10,773) 4,517  32,24,742
**Includes adjustments on account of effective interest rate and other adjustments.
3. Bank Balance other than Note No. 2 above (% in Lacs)
. As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023
Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 14 24
Earmarked Balances 303 5,176
Fixed Deposits with banks having original maturity of more than 3 months (Including
accrued interest for fixed deposits)* 2,790 13,404
Total 3,107 18,604

@ Includes ¥ 54 Lacs pertaining to unclaimed interest for earlier issued private placement non convertible debentures pending to be transferred to a seperate bank
account as at March 31st, 2024.

*Includes (% in Lacs)
. As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2023

Under Lien**:

- Borrowings - 40

- Letter of Credit / Bank Guarantees (Refer Note No. i) 94 8,386

- Others 185 2,729

**Does not include Interest accrued but not due as at March 31st, 2024 % Nil ( March 31st, 2023 : ¥ 138 Lacs).

i. In terms of the approved resolution plan, all lien has been reduced to nil and permanently settled, discharged and extinguished in full. However, the Company is
in the process of removing lien marked by the banks on fixed deposits of ¥ 6 Lacs towards letter of credit/bank gurantee as at May 22nd, 2024.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd.)

4. Receivables:
Trade Receivables (% in Lacs)

Particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

(a) Considered good-Secured,; - -
Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance = -

(b) Considered good-Unsecured; 2,745 2,545
Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance 651 381
2,094 2,164

(c) Significant increase in credit risk 4 51
Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance - 2
4 49

(d) Credit impaired 1,989 2,263
Less: Allowance for impairment loss allowance 1,989 2,263
Total (a+h+c+d) 2,098 2,213

(i) Indetermining the allowances for credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected
credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.

The change in Expected Credit Loss Allowance of the portfolio was driven by a change in the size of the portfolio and movements between
age buckets as a result of increase or decrease in credit risk of the receivables.

(ii) Trade Receivables agein schedule as at 31st March, 2024* (Zin Lacs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months 1-2 year 2-3 year More than Total
6 months 1 year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1,479 360 255 - - 2,094
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 4 - - - - 4

(ifi) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -

Total 1,483 360 255 - - 2,098
Trade Receivables agein schedule as at 31st March, 2023* % in Lacs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 months 1-2 year 2-3 year More than Total
6 months 1 year 3 years
i)  Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1,508 518 138 - - 2,164
i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 21 - - 28 - 49

i) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -
v)  Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -

* Figures are net of allowance for impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd.)

(iii) Movements in Expected Credit Losses Allowance is as below: (%in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,646 2,652
Charge in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (3) 66
Disposal of entity under control = -
Utilized during the year 3) (72)
Balance at the end of the year 2,640 2,646
(iv) Ageing of Trade Receivables and Credit Risk arising therefrom is as below: @in Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

Gross carrying Allowance for Net carrying

amount credit loss amount

Not due = =
Due till three months 516 8 508
Due between three to six months 980 6 974
Due between six months to one year 584 224 360
Due between one year to two year 669 413 256
More than 2 year due 1,989 1,989 -

4,738 2,640 2,098

(X in Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars Gross carrying Allowance for Net carrying
amount credit loss amount

Not due - - -
Due till three months 660 8 652
Due between three to six months 886 9 877
Due between six months to one year 726 208 518
Due between one year to two year 296 158 138
More than 2 year due 2,291 2,263 28

4,859 2,646 2,213

The contractual amount outstanding on financial assets that were written off during the reporting period but are still subject to enforcement activity

is X Nil (March 31st, 2023 X 2,200 Lacs).

The change in Expected Credit Loss Allowance of the portfolio was driven by a change in the size of the portfolio and movements between age

buckets as a result of increase or decrease in credit risk of the receivables.

Annual Report 2023-24 |121




$REI

"S8I1LIN08S SB P|ay [BI81.||09/S1aSSk PuR AurdwWOn 8y} JO S19SSE Ayl 10 UONBN[RA 10} 9E "0 810N Jaj8J 0S|y “uodn paijal pue Janje [BUISIXa Ue Ag 1IN0 Paliie)

‘91qealjdde alaym ‘s1asse Bulhiapun ay} JO UOIIBN[BA UO PaSeq ale S1asse Ueo| 1Sulebe ‘S1amo.l0q syl Aq palesd Salllinaas "paindas Se palapisuod ussq aAey "398 S8|(eAIad8./SMO]} USBI/anuaAal ||01 8niny 1ano ableyd AQ paindss
ale YoIym saunsodx3 "A11In2ss [elale||09 Jo Aem AQ s1amoli0q sy} Jo sateys Aunba Jo abpajd Aq painaas Ajjeuonippe ale ‘Sased uienad ul pue saiadold ajgeAoLWILI/Sa|qRAIBI81/S19SSe patedaylodAy BuiAiapun Aq paindss aie sueo,

€92°6v‘'6  8LL°12 - 16061 189°2 c8b°/2'6 96862 89681 - 89681 - 966°6L°2 18N (11) 9 pue 13N (1) (9) 1eoL
- - - - - - = - = - = - 13N (11) (9) 1101
- - - - - - - - - - - - 9JUBMO||e SSO| EwE\__mQE_ 18S9
- - - - - - = = = - = - eipu| apisino sueo (1) (9)
€92'6v'6  8LL°12 - 160°61 189°2 o8v°/2'6 796862 896°81 o 896°81 o 96G°'6L°2 13N (9) @101
18¥'8L° 1L - - - - 18Y'8L°L1 Gev'leve - - - S Gev'IE'Ye 80UBMO[ $SO| JusuLIedw| 1S58
0zL'l2'lz  8LL'12 - 160°61 189°2 2v6'60°L2 666'62°'L2  896°8L = 89681 - 1€0°LL L2 ss01g (9) 1ejo)
886'92'/¢ 81112 - 16061 189'C 012'0°22 €69'62'/¢ 8968l = 896'8 = TN WX siay0 (1)
28l - - - - 28l 90¢ = = - = 90¢ l0ypag aland (1)
eipuj ui sueo (9)
€92°6V°'6  8LL°12 - 160°61 189°2 c8v/2'6 069862 896°81 - 89681 - 966°6L°2 13N (4) 1ej0)
1Sv'8L°21 - - - - 16Y'8L°1 sev'leve - 2 2 5 Gev'IE'he 90UBMO|[B SSO| Juswfedw| 1S58
02L°'12'12 81112 - 160°61 189°2 2v6°50°L2 G208,z  896°8L - 89681 - L0°LL L2 ss019 (g) |10}
eyt - - - - 288 0r'L 968'G6 = = - = 968'G6 paundssun (11)
988'/8'Ge 81112 - 16061 189'C 095°69'G2 6227€'9¢  896'8k - 896'8 = 192'GL'9Z  .SMOl} ysed/siesse o|qibuel Aq paines (1)
(a)
€92'6v'6  8LL'12 - 160°61 189°2 a8v°/2'6 796862 896°81 = 89681 = 96G°'6L°2 18N (v) 1e10)
18¥'8L° 2L - - - - 187'82°21 sev'leve - = - S Gev'1E'Ye 80UBMO|[e $SO| JusuIedw| 1SS
0zL°12'Lz  8LL12 - 16061 1892 2v6'60°L2 666'62°'L2  896°8L = 896°81 = Le0°‘LL L2 ss049 (y) [ejo)
/L - - - - /L - - - - - - 1soda( e1e10di09401u]
'sueo Jayio ()
£89'C - - - - £89'C Ges 3 3 ® 2 Ges Buises (1)
016'v2'le  8.L'12 - 16061 189'C 2818022 v91'62'2¢  896'Sk - 896'8 - 9610422 ueojwisl ()
(v)
sueoq
$S07 $S07
10 J130.d yhinoayy awoau| 10 0.4 ybnoayy awoau|
anjep Jie4 $s0710 anisuayaldwon 1509 anjep Jie4 $s07 10 anisuayaidwo?
|ejo1 |ejoygns Je pajeubisaq  jjoud ybnosyl Jayjg ybnoiyy pasipowy |ejoy |ejoygng je pajeubisaqg Jjoid ybnosy) 18yjQ ybnoayp sienaijed
anjep Jied Iy anjep Jied |y
£202 ‘YaIe\ I1SL€ Je Sy 202 ‘YaIely ISLE Je Sy
(soeur2)

ueoq °g
(*pwo09) $202 ‘yaIelN 1SLE papua Jeaf ay) o}

Sjuawaje)s [e1aueul pajepijosuoy ayj o} SajoN

122 | Annual Report 2023-24




nts

Financial State

Ul 9SB8.I08P 10 9SBAIOUI JO 1|NSal & Se Sabe)s Uaamlaq sjuaLwsAoW pue oljojuiod ay) Jo uoiisodwod ayy ui abueyd ‘oijojuiod ayl Jo 8z1s 8y} ul abueyd & Aq UsALIP Sem o1jojiod ay) J0 89URMO||Y SSOT 1Ipain pajaadx3 Ul abueyd sy “Al
“(S927 98166 2 £20Z ‘ISLE Y2IB\) SI8T GL6'SL 2 SI ANAIOR JUSLWISIIO0LUA 0] 199IqNs (s aJe 1ng poriad Buiodal ay) BuLIN 10 USIILIM 819M Jey) S18SSE URO| U0 BuIpuBISING JUNOWE [BNJORILOD 8l |

"S19M0.10Q 8y} JO %S 1Ipald

‘ainBiy Bulouereq siuasaldey #

SIUBLIAIL]S [BIOURUIL PAIBPII0S0D Y1 JO 9G "OU 810U JaJal 9

"(S9B7 622 2 €202 ‘1S1E Y9Je|\) SIBT [IN 2 0 aWwoaul aAisusysIdwod Jaylo ybnoiy) painseal S}aSSe UBO| U0 Pajeald 99UBMO|[R 193 Sapnjou]
*21ns0dXa 198YS 89UB[RQ 4J0 UO (SI8T [HG°/ 2 €202 ISLE Y2IBAl) |IN 2 JO 80UBMO|[B 79T Sapnjau|

123

889°8/°LL - 6£2'G9°LL  GS¥ 6621 Gev 18 12 - L16°0Z'v2 0L 8vv0L aoue|eq Buisoa-asuemojje 193
(6£6'99) - (£8¢'99) (1) (15t) (VAWAN) - (VAWAN) - - 140 UBNLIM SJunowy
- - uoiuBbooaiap ul Huinsal
10U SUOIRIIIPOW 0} 8NP SMOJ} YSBI [enjdeliuod o} sebuey?
- - - - - - - - - - 1UN0JSIP JO puimun
- - £08'82 (06°¢) (e28've) - - ¥60'G (BtY) (S¥9't) ¢ abe1g 01 s1asuel]
- - (1) G6 (08) - - (2, €2 (6) Z abeis 0] siajsuel]
- - (59g°zH) (29) L1¥'21 - - (090'%) (@ 290'y | abe1g 01 sJajsuel]
vLL'sg'or - 169'/9°0F 691 (902°21) ¥65'69'9 - G9G'12'9 (Z1) (¥56°L) #/13009Y 40 JUN0JIE U0 793 4O [eSI8A3) pue poLad 8y} Buunp
safe]s usaMiaq pallajsuel} $81nsodx3 Jo 793 pua pouad uo Joeduw|
LLL'S - - - LLL'E A - y28 - - 1usWasINgsIp 18u/paseyaind 10 pajeulblio S19SSe Ma
or'8'L - A WA VAN 9/6'Ge 889'8L°/1 - 662'59°LL  00°GSy 1662} aoueleq Bujuado-souemojie 193
[ejo1 190d . ¢ abejg Z abejg | abejg : F—
£202 ‘Y2IBA ISLE 18 Sy 1202 ‘YdIBIN ISLE 18 SY
(soequrp) »-M0|aq uaAlb s1 aauejeq 793 Jo uoKe119U0IaY Il

‘ainBiy Bulouefeq siuasalday #
“UBO| 01 QY PUB 1USWISAAU| JO UOISIBAUOD UQ DD

"(s987 160°6 1 2 £202 ‘ISIE YaJB\) S987 896G 2 01 Buigunowe sso| 40 1y04d ybnoayl anjen Jrey 1e pajeubisap sueo| jo junowe HuiAlied ssolb sapnjox3 @

*sueo| j0od ay} paubisse aiam oym siapus| Auedwon o] JuswiAed ul |[eJLIOYS SAPNJOUI SAIUBIR] JBUIQ ‘€202 1SLE LRl 18 SY (2)
*AjU0 SUBO| WO} PAISNIPE USQ SARY SB|(BAIBIAI 13Lj10/9SBa|/SUROT PaUBISSE JO UN0JIE U0

S$9|qeAI999Y (940N 810N JajeY) 202 ‘IS LE Y9IBl\ U0 S S8|qeAlsdal [00d paubisse SIapus| SPJemoy |[ej LIoys 1au sy paysinbuixs sey Auedwo? sy ‘uejd UoRNj0Sal JO SWLIS] Ul WSIUBYIBW UoiNquUIsip panosdde ay1 01 Juensind (1) :8JoN

AN 9/981°/2 86S°E 1689 Le0°LL L2 - 062°€6'92 66 9/G°/1 ®@a33uejeq fuisojd junowe Huikiies ssoin
(£00°68) - (£6€'62) (2) (£09'6) (156°02) - (156°02) - = 1JO UBJLIM SpuUnowy
- - - - - - - - - - uoiyubogaiap ul Buiynsal jou
SUOIRIIHPOW 01 8NP SMO|} YSBI [BNjoRIIU0I 0} Sabueyn

- - 9¢£'/8'9 (L/6'20°4)  (6SE'¥8'S) - - ZeL'sy (69t°€) (£99'v¥) ¢ abe1g 03 SJajsuel|
- - (k1) 286°e (L26°¢) - - (6) 65 (09) ¢ abelg 01 siajsuel|
- - (z6¢) (802) 009 - - (182'6) - 1826 | a0e1S 03 Slajsuel|
619'28 - - - 61928 - - - - - (mofag 810N Jajay) saouejeq JayiQ
£2L'6b - £2.'6 - - 02201 - 0cL'0k - - junowe BuiA11ed 18U U0 1SaI8}ul 9AI8YT
(606't1) - (89¢'2¢) £90°¢ (#09'01) (962°02) - (102'v8) (621) (99%'91) # (paisnipe s[enJode 1seJalul sapnjoul
pue s}Jo 81M Buipnjaxa) predas 10 pasiuboasiap S18SSy

€611 - - - e6LYh 018 = 018 - - @® 1UaWaSINGSIp 10U/paseyaind 10 pajeulblio S18SSe Mo
629'8/'/2 - 18/'86°02  G¥L'00‘L £0/'61'G 8v2'16'L¢g - 9/9'8L'/2  865'E v/6'89 aoueleq Hujuado-junowe BulAiIBI $S019
lejoL 190d £ afiejs Z afeig L abejg : Jenared

£202 ‘Y4Bl ISLE 1B Sy 202 ‘YaIel ISLE e Sy

(soequry) :SM0[|0j se sI ‘sueo] jo junowe Buihies ssolb ay) uj safiueys jo sishjeue uy °|

(***"puog) ueoq -g
(*Pwo)) y20z ‘yaie I1sLE papusa Jeak ay) 1o}

SJU3wWaje}s [e1aueul{ pajepljosuo’) ayj o) SajoN

Annual Report 2023-24




$REI

‘|IN 2 S SYS 9S8y} 40 anjeA BuiAiied ayl
palapisuod sey Auedwo) syl ‘9yy Wolj €20 ‘YI0E aunp 1sod Buizes pamalnsl Jo 82UaSqe 8y} Ul “€20g ‘UI0E dunp |11} PIjeA SEM pajiwi] 9HY Juapnid Jo (4S) sidiaoal A1In29S ul JuawisaAul Joj Buijes A19A09a1 a|qejieae 1sale| oyl (A)

“uoifeapnipe Joj (19N [eunqu] meT Auediog [eUONEN 8]g,UOH 8U} JO LOUAQ EIBY[0Y 8} 810J8q BP0 AU} JO 99 PUE (G)09 SUONIAS Japun Paj|lj 81am
uoneaijdde yaiym 1sureBe apos syl 10 99 PUB 0§ ‘G ‘S UONIAS JBPUN SHPNE UONIBSURI} 13PUN PAIBA0I SIUN0IIR YINS L0 $8INS0AX JUBLIISAAUI 1O %00} JO JU3IX8 8y} 0] 89URMO|[B SSO] Juawuiredwi pajeais pey Auedwos ayy (Al)

'¥20¢
‘1S1€ YaJe|\ papus JeaA [eloueul) sy} Bulinp 1o} palun09de usaq Sey swWes sy} pue £20g ‘1S1E YoJe| 1B Se SJUaWnaop JueAajal/suoliedlylied buipuad $300q Ul paJapisuod ussg jou sey Huiunodde A1essadau syl Yolym 1o} 220z
‘Y12z fey palep uoijoe a1eiodiod oine Buisn Ag Janss| aAl10adsal Aq Jun09de Jewaq 43S WoJ) pawaspal Ajjelalejiun aiem paniwi asiidislug uonaniIsu0aay % alen s1essy Aq panss! (QddN) seinuagaq pe1asiold [edioutid uoy (i)

'$$820.4d Juawioje ay} ur Aejap Bulobuo syl Bunaalye. ‘|IN Se SeJeys 19d| 40 anjeA 8yl Passasse sey ‘€z0gz ‘0 Jaquieldag Jo se Auull Aq paniwgns Lodal uoieniea ay) suolieinbay 1g3s yum soueldwoa-uou s,79d| 03 anp
€10g 99uls Buipuad uaaq sey sbuipjoy s,pun4 sy Jo JUBLWIO|[B dYI ‘JaASMOH 19d] 40 Saieys Alnba 000‘00‘GE L€ JO JUBLLIO|IB UB 03 PAJLIIUS SI (49]) PUN4 UOIINIISUOY BIJU| 8Y1 ‘UCBWEDBWE BY1 4O 99Uanbasu0d e se ‘Ale|iwig

‘Auedwon 8y} J0 JUNOJI. JO $300q 8y} Ul Paziubodal usaq Sey ‘g0z ‘1§ YoJely uo pajonb se ‘saleys 10d| 10 anjeA Jiej 8yl "suoienbiay |g3s yim soueldwod-uou s,19d| 01 anp €10z 89uls buipuad usaq sey
sbuipjoy s,Auedwon 8y Jo JusWIO0|[B Y} ‘JaASMOH 19d]| 40 Saieys AUnba Q0| ‘¥ GG 0 40 JUBWIO0|[e UR 0} pajlIua S Auedwion ayl ‘(79d1) pawi uonieiodio” Jamod BIpu| 8[1yMmisIa Yim pi] 9Sd4a 40 uonewebewe o3 Juensing (1)
"uolen|eA Jie} Jo uolyubodas ayy Joy siseq ayy Bulwloy ‘€z0g ‘0¢ Jequwiaidag Jo se spuny 1o} AYN paliddns
sey Alull ‘y20z ‘L€ Yoe 40 Sy “Auul Ag papinoid AYN 8Ul UO Paseq Spuny 8yl Ul SHUN JO UOIBN[eA Jie) 8y} Saulwislep Auedwon syl "Syuow xis A19A8 Ul 89U0 1SBS| 1B AYN 8pIA0id 0} pajepuell aie SIabeue|y JUSWISAAU|
‘2102 ‘suonenbay 4y 40 (1) £¢ asne|) Jad sy “Auedwo? ayi jo Aeipisqns ‘(Ayuii]) paywi] siebeue|y JuaL1SaAU| aAIRUIBYY Auli] Ag pabeuew SI yalym spun{ SJUaLISAAU| BAITRUIBYY JO SHUN Ul Sjuswisaaul sey Auedwod ayyl (1)

00,80°L - 6166 - veL‘ag G8G ey 186°8 €86'69 - 16,09 - 285°02 602°vE 26L°6 (9)-(v) = @ 18N - |eyoL
(065'6) - - - - - (065°6)  (8€2I1) - (8ro') - (8v9°1) = (065°6) (0) 8ouBMO|[E SSO] JuBULIedW| SS3T]
062°8L°L - 6166 - veL‘eg G8G‘ey LLg'8L  122°18 - 6€V°29 - 0£2°82 602°VE 28L°8lL g-lejol
062811 - 61,66 - vE1L'9G G8G'EY 12681 ezl - 6E7°29 - 0€2'8¢ 6027€ 28.°81 eIpu| Ul sjuswisaaul (1)
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - BIPU| 8PISINO SJUBWISAAU (1)
062°8L°L - 6LL'66 - veL'es G8s‘ey L.g'8L 12218 - 6EV°29 - 0£2°82 602°VE 28L'8lL Y ss0i - ejo)
6lv'8C - 617'8¢C - 92r'e €66'G¢ - 1€9°8 - €98 - 1812 778°G - Spun{ 8injus/ Jo SaW8YIS pue ssni] Jo spun uj
679°19 - 679°19 - €86 vy 990°/1 - oreoy - 0vE‘9r - G/6°L) G9¢'8¢ - S8Jel008SY '3 8InJU8A JUIOf ey} Jayjo Juswnsul Aynb3
28 - 159'6 - GeL'6 9¢S 1/G8L  0S¢'9¢ - 89Y°, - 89y°/ - 28.81 $81111nJ8s 1gaQ
SjuawWjsanu|
$S07 40 Jjoid $S07 10 }joid
ybnoiyy $S07 awoau| ybnoiyy $S07 awoau|
anjepaiejle  Jojioid  anisuayaidwo? 1509 anjeaied e 10 Jjoid anisuayaidwo? 1509
|ejol siaylg  |ejoiqng pajeubisaqg ybnoayp  Jayjo ybnoayy pasiowy NI S13yy |ejoyqng  pajeubisaqg  ybnosyy 13yig ybnosyy pasipowy le|naiyed
Ry  eweew
€202 ‘YIIB\l ISLE Je Sy ¥202 ‘ydJeiy ISLE je sy
(soeur ) juawisaaul ‘9

("P09) 202 ‘uaie 1sLE papua Jeah ayy 1o}

sjuawaje]s [e1oueulq pajepijosuoy ayj 0} SajoN

124| Annual Report 2023-24




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024 (Contd.)

7. Other Financial Assets

/ Financial Statements

(X in Lacs)

i As at As at
Particulars EIEIWPIPZ 88 March 31, 2023
Income accrued but not due = 43
Interest retained on Pool Assigned - 398
Rental accrued but not due 144 546
Less: Impairment loss allowance for Rental accrued but not due (8) (19)
Loan to employees - 15
Security deposits 1,106 1,059
Less: Impairment loss allowance for Security deposits (740) (708)
Excess Corpus in Gratuity Assets - 11
Claims Receivables = 62,196
Other Advances and Receivables 338 525
Contribution to trust fund 1 1
Total 841 64,067
8. Current Tax Assets (Net) in Lacs)
Particul As at As at

articulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Advance Tax (net of income tax provision) 23,042 6,852
Total 23,042 6,852
The reconciliation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is as helow: in Lacs)

. A UCREOLCTGELE  For the period ended
Particulars BRI Z8  31st March, 2023
Profit Before Tax (7,78,804) (11,10,858)
Statutory Income Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168%
Expected income tax expense at statutory income tax rate (1,96,009) (2,79,581)
(i) Income exempt from tax/ltems not deductible (net) = 2,023
(i) Net Deferrred Tax assets charged/not recognised to Statement of Proft & Loss 1,52,897 2,50,419
(iii) Other differences 43,024 27,180
(v) Income Tax for earlier years 19 -
Total Tax Expense recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (69) 4
Total Tax Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 2 1)
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/
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024

12. Other Non-Financial Assets

(% in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Capital Advances 29 30
Employee Advances 22 42
Advance to Vendors for Operating Expenses 339 368
Balances with Government Authorities 1,569 1,419
Repossessed Assets and Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt™ 809 21,492
Prepaid expenses 144 275
Total 2,912 23,626

* Includes repossessed assets (net) amounting to ¥ 422 Lacs (March 31st, 2023: ¥ 3,282 Lacs). It also includes assets/collaterals acquired in satisfaction of debt
amounting to X Nil, the gross value of these assets/collaterals is ¥ 30,301 Lacs (March 31st, 2023: assets/collaterals acquired in satisfaction of debt amounting
t0 % 18,210 Lacs, the gross value of these assets/collaterals is ¥ 30,301 Lacs).

13. Trade Payables

(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

(X in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
a)  The principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier 6 230

b)  The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small

and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day. - -
c)  The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day) but without adding the interest

specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -
d)  The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid
e)  The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year until

such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose

of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 - -

Total 6 230
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(% in Lacs)
. As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
For Supplies and Services 191 710
Others 80 6,224
Total 271 6,934
(iii) Trade Payahles ageing schedule
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024:
(Rin Lacs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
i)  MSME 6 - - - 6
ii

(

(i)  Others 160 104 6 - 271
(iii)  Disputed dues-MSMEs and -

(iv) Disputed dues-Others - - - - -
Total 167 104 6 - 277

Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2023:

(X in Lacs)

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years ota
(iy MSME 13 216 - 1 230
(i)  Others 2,253 2,426 553 1,175 6,407
(i)  Disputed dues-MSMEs and - - - - -
(iv)  Disputed dues-Others 50 - 419 58 527
Total 2,316 2,642 972 1,234 7,164
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/
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024

14.1 Secured Non-Convertible Debentures

Amount outstanding (X in Lacs) ##

Date of Allotment Face value per As at March 31st, 2024 As at March 31st, 2023 Interst rate  Earliest redemption date /
debenture (%) @ (Refer Note No. 1 (a), 52) (%)* Balance tenure (years)
Private Placement:
18 January, 2018 10,00,000 - 1,000 11.00% 18 January, 2028
20 December, 2016 10,00,000 - 1,000 11.00% 20 December, 2026
26 March, 2018 10,00,000 - 1,650 11.00% 26 March, 2025
09 December, 2014 10,00,000 - 1,900 12.05% 09 December, 2024
03 October, 2017 10,00,000 - 600 10.99% 03 October, 2024
15 September, 2017 10,00,000 = 2,350 10.50% 15 September, 2024
22 June, 2017 10,00,000 - 2,000 11.23% 22 June, 2024
20 June, 2014 10,00,000 - 1,000 12.90% 20 June, 2024
13 June, 2014 10,00,000 - 1,000 12.92% 13 June, 2024
10 June, 2014 10,00,000 - 1,000 13.40% 10 June, 2024
31 May, 2017 10,00,000 - 1,000 11.32% 31 May, 2024
26 May, 2017 10,00,000 - 2,000 11.45% 26 May, 2024
30 January, 2019 10,00,000 - 30,000 12.50% 30 January, 2024
02 December, 2016 10,00,000 = 500 11.00% 02 December, 2023
29 November, 2013 10,00,000 - 450 13.10% 29 November, 2023
04 April, 2018 10,00,000 - 1,400 10.30% 04 April, 2023
14 March, 2018 10,00,000 - 500 10.30% 14 March, 2023
24 January, 2013 10,00,000 - 110 13.50% 24 January, 2023
05 October, 2012 10,00,000 - 2,000 13.35% 05 October, 2022
31 July, 2012 10,00,000 - 130 13.40% 31 July, 2022
June 08, 2012 10,00,000 - 70 13.40% 08 June, 2022
29 October, 2011 10,00,000 - 3,000 13.90% 29 October, 2021
06 October, 2016 10,00,000 - 500 11.95% 06 October, 2021
09 September, 2011 10,00,000 = 1,000 13.90% 09 September, 2021
26 December, 2023 1,000 * - 0.00% 27 December, 2024
26 December, 2023 1,000 58,147 - 0.00% 26 December, 2025
26 December, 2023 1,000 87,220 - 0.00% 26 December, 2026
26 December, 2023 1,000 1,93,823 - 0.00% 26 December, 2027
26 December, 2023 1,000 92,066 - 0.00% 26 December, 2028
Public Issue:
11 May, 2015 1,000 - 3,215 12.25%-12.50% 7 years
January 17, 2017 1,000 - 33,842 11.11%-11.75% 5 years
25 May, 2018 1,000 - 41,598 10.75%-11.60% 3-10years
24 January, 2019 1,000 - 14,005 11.81%-12.75% 3-5years
06 October, 2016 1,000 - 15,585 11.60%-12.00% 5 years
27 February, 2017 1,000 - 17,547 11.12%-11.75% 5 years
16 March, 2018 1,000 - 27,110 10.43%-11.26% 5 years
15 May, 2019 1,000 - 9,363 12.05%-13.00% 3-5years
Total 4,31,256 2,18,425

@ In terms of the approved resolution plan (Refer Note No. 1(a) and 52) payment made to the debenture holders and thereafter new instruments issued and remaining
liabilites has been extinguished.

## Includes Deferred Interest of NCD of ¥ 1,33,639 Lacs (March 31st, 2023: X Nil), effective interest adjustment of ¥ 20 Lacs (March 31st, 2023: X Nil) and does
not includes Interest Accrued and not due of T 1 Lacs (March 31st, 2023: X Nil) and overdue interest X Nil (March 31st, 2023: X 37,470 Lacs).

* In terms of the approved resolution plan, in case of early recoveries from the underlying assets, the Company shall have option to make accelerated payment on
NCDs at a pre defined discounting rate for computing net present value on the date of accelerated payment. NCDs, if outstanding at the end of respective redemption
date from the date of allotment shall be transferred to the security receipt holders in the ratio of their holding of the security receipts issued by the NARCL
Trust-0007.

** In terms of the approved resolution plan accelerated payment made to NARCL Trust-0007 against NCD 1 on March 27th, 2024 basis NPV @ 8% for X 18,291
Lacs.

Security: The Secured Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by first pari-passu charge on receivables of the Company, both present and future, from its assets.

14.2 Long-Term Infrastructure Bond

Amount outstanding (¥ in Lacs) ***
Face value per As at March 31st, 2024 As at March 31st, 2023  Interst rate Earliest redemption date/

debenture (%) GEEAICHNIEVBEPAM  (Refer Note No. 1(a), 52)* (%) Balance tenure (years)
Thursday, March 22,2012 1,000 - 967 11.15% 22 March, 2027
Thursday, March 22, 2012 1,000 - 1,055 10.90% 22 March, 2022
Total - 2,022

The above debentures are redeemable at par in single instalment.

*Does not include Interest Accrued and not due X Nil (March 31st, 2023: X Nil ) and overdue interest ¥ Nil (March 31st, 2023: ¥ 2,027 Lacs).

@ In terms of the approved resolution plan (Refer Note No. 1(a) and 52) payment made to the debenture holders and thereafter new instruments issued and remaining
liabilites has been extinguished.
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15.5 Unsecured Deferred payment liabilities

(X in Lacs)
Outstanding Repayment terms
(Refer Note No. 1 (a) and 52) Balance Rate of
Particulars (Zin Lacs) (X in Lacs) tenure  Interest per

As at 31st March, Overdue @ Monthly Quarterly Half yearly Yearly (vears) annum
2024

Deferred payment liabilities - - - - - R
Total - - - B - B

@ In terms of the approved resolution plan (Refer Note No. 1(a) and 52) payment made to the lenders and remaining liabilites has been extinguished.

(Xin Lacs)
Outstandi Repayment terms
utstanding
Particulars (Refer Note No. 1 (a) and 52) Balance Rate of
(% in Lacs) (X in Lacs) tenure Interest per
As at 31st March, Overdue @ Monthly Quarterly Half yearly Yearly (years) annum
2023
Deferred payment liabilities 9,123 9,123 - - - - 0-1 0%-10%
Total 9,123 9,123 - - - -
@ It also includes interest overdue.
15.6 Inter-corporate deposits
(X in Lacs)
. Repayment terms
) Quistanding (Refer Note No. 1 (a) and 52) Balance Rate of
Particulars (i Lacs) (% in Lacs) tenure  Interest per
As at 31st March, Overdue @ Monthly Quarterly Half yearly Yearly (vears) annum
2024
Inter-corporate deposits - - - - - - - 0%

Total - - - - - - -

@ |In terms of the approved resolution plan (Refer Note No. 1(a) and 52) payment made to the lenders and thereafter new instruments issued and remaining liabilites
has been extinguished.

(X in Lacs)
. Repayment terms
] Outstanding (Refer Note No. 1 (a) and 52) Balance  Rate of
Particulars - -
(% in Lacs) (X in Lacs) tenure  Interest per
ears annum
As at 31st March, Overdue @ Monthly Quarterly Half yearly Yearly (vears) !
2023
Inter-corporate deposits 106 106 - - - - - 7%
Total 106 106 - - - - -

Does not includes Interest accrued and not due % Nil.
@ It also includes interest overdue.

136| Annual Report 2023-24




Financial Statements

"paysinbuixa uaaq sey say|iqel bul

IBLUA. PUB PANSS] SJUBINIISUI M3U 19)Jealay] pue SIapjoy ainjuagap syl 01 apew uswhed (gG pue ()| "ON 810N Jajey) uejd uonnjosal panoidde ayj Jo Swisl U] @

1sau8)ul [euad sapnjoul , .

(S0BT Py’ | 2 :€202 ISLE UDIBIN) [IN 2 1S8193UI BNPIBAO 8PNJIUI JOU $80(

137

06.°9Y - lejoL
1202 ‘1aqwagsq 0g 08 - %05}
8202 ‘1aquiads ¢} 000°0+ - %00°¢}
6202 1Ay 22 000+ - %00°0}
6202 1Ay 10 000'2€ - %00°0}

(26 pue ()| "oN 3joN J8jay) (26 pue (e)} "oN 3joN J3j3y)
ajep uondo [ed jsaijie3 £202 ‘Y2IeIN 1S1.€ 1B SY 202 ‘yaIely 1SL.E Je sy «x(%) 8184 1s3103u]

(saeq ur ) Buipueyjsino junowy

“JUBW10|[B JO 81Bp 8y} WOJj JBak Yl | Jo pus 8yl 1e Auedwor ayi Ag pasiolaxa jou si uondQ |89 41 ‘steak Juanbasqgns Joj wnuue Jad siujod siseq g0 4o 8iel uodnod dn dajs e pey
sainjuagap [enjadiad asay] ‘|gy Jo [erosdde Joud yum ajgesialaxs SI YaIyM Swas) [enjoeliuod Jad se uondo |[ea pey sainjusgaep [enjadiad asayl "(S9B7 0629y 2 €202 ISLE Y9IRI) |IN 2 SI Sainjusgep [enjadlad pareuipiogns painaasun
40 199dsaJ ul Buipuelsino [ediounid 4o Junowe ayl ‘pg0g ‘ISLE YaIely 18 Sy “(JIN 2 : €202 ‘I1S1E YoJey) |IN 2 Buiiunowe sainjuagap [enjadiad pareuiplogns painaasun pasies Auedwon ayl ‘pz0g ‘1S1E YaJey papus Jeah ayi buling

» (renden | 1811) saimuaqap |enjadiad pajeuipiogns painaasupn |91

857°G6°2 - - 8G1°G6°2 9€2°9 - - 9€2°9 |ejol
- - - - - - - - BIpu| 8pIsIno salljiqel paleulplogqng
8G1'G6°C - - 8G1G6'C 9629 - - 9629 elpu| ul sailjiqel pajeulpiogns
85166 ¢ - - 8G'G6 ¢ 9629 - - 9€2°9 lejol
G289l - - G289l - 3 2 - (lewde || Ja11) painaasun-sueo pajeulpiogng
- - - - 9€2'9 - 9e2'9 (fende || JalL) painoasun-ainuagaq
a|qiuaAu0 AjjeuondQ a|qewaspay
697°0€'C - 697°0€C - - - - (lewde || Ja11) seinjusgap/spuoq paleulpioqns
v91°8y - - voL'8y - - - - (fenden | sa11) sainuaqap/spuoq [enjadiag pajeulpiogng
$S07 10 $S07 10
njoad ybnouyy $S07 pue njoid ybnoayy $S07 pue
|ejol anjep Jie4 1j0.d ybnoay} 1509 anjep Jie4 1j01d ybnoayy 1s0)

1e pajeubisaqg anjep Jied 1y pasipowy 1y 1e pajeubisaqg anjep Jieq Iy pasipowy 1y sie[naiied

£202 ‘Yyale| IsLg je sy 202 ‘YdJBI ISLE 1 SY

(soeur2)

sal|iqer] pajeulpiogng "gi
1202 ‘yoIei IsLE papua Jeak ay} Joj

SJU3Waje}s [e1aueul{ pajepijosuo’) ayj o) SajoN

Annual Report 2023-24




$REI

"8NPIBAO 1S8J81UI SAPNJIUI OSE 1|
"aNPJaAo ale £20Z ‘YoJBIA 1S LE 18 Se Buipuelsino Junowe ‘[(e)} "ON 810N Jajay] (D 10 uonenIul 0} Juensing

- - G289l 628 ol jejol

%L - %01

L-0 - - Geg'9l Geg'9lk (lende) || Jal|) sueo| ulie} pajeulpiogng ssdny

wnuue sad (sieap) wawipejsul ajbuig Kapenp ® anpianQ €202 ‘ISLE YdIel\ 1e sy
jSaiaju| jo Bjey  aInua) souejeg (soeq ui 2) (soe ui 2) sienaieg
(26 pue (e) | "oN ajoN 18jaY) Buipue)sing ’
swJa) juswAeday

"paysinBuilxa Usaq sey sayijiqel| Bululewa pue Panss SJUBLINIISUI MaU J8)/2alaL] PUB SIBp|oy ainjuagap ay o] apeuw juswAed (zg pue (e) L o 810 Jajey) ued uonnjosas panoidde ay) Jo swie) U|

- - - : lejoL

- L(lendeq || Ja11) sueo| wJe} pajeulpiogng sadny

wnuue Jad
1sa43ju] Jo ajey

awipesul ajbuig Kapenp ® anpianQ $202 ‘I1SLE YaIe 1e sy
(s1eap) (ssequry) (saequry)
alnuaj aauejeg {28 PUE (2] 1 0N 810N 13j24) sie|naijed
¢S pu L "ON 310N 133y
suia) uawkeday Buipueising

(1endeq ] 4811) sueo| pajeulpiogns aadny painaasufn Z'91
202 ‘ydaell 1sL€ papua Jeak ay} 1o}
Sjuawaje]s |eiaueul{ pajepijosuo?) ayj o} S810N

138| Annual Report 2023-24




/
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024

16.3 Unsecured subordinated redeemable non-convertible debentures (Tier Il Capital) & optionally convertible debentures (OCD-Tier Il Capital)

During the year ended March 31st, 2024, in terms of the approved resolution plan, the Company has issued subordinated optionally convertible debentures qualifying
for Tier Il Capital amounting X 8,00,000 Lacs (March 31st, 2023 X Nil). The following table sets forth, outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date:

Amount outstanding (3 in Lacs) ##

Date of Allotment Face value per As at As at March 31st, 2023 Interst rate Earliest redemption
debenture (3) March 31st, 2024@ (Refer Note No. 1(a) (%)* date/Balance
and 52) tenure (years)*
Private Placement:
10 October, 2018 10,00,000 - 500 12.25% 10 October, 2028
23 June, 2017 10,00,000 - 4,500 11.00% 23 June, 2027
30 March, 2017 10,00,000 - 5,000 12.25% 30 March, 2027
04 November, 2016 10,00,000 - 1,000 11.85% 04 November, 2026
07 October, 2016 10,00,000 - 4,000 12.75% 07 October, 2026
04 October, 2016 10,00,000 - 1,500 12.75% 04 October, 2026
24 August, 2016 10,00,000 - 3,000 11.50% 24 August, 2026
26 May, 2016 10,00,000 - 350 12.25% 26 May, 2026
25 May, 2016 10,00,000 - 2,000 12.75% 25 May, 2026
31 March, 2016 10,00,000 - 2,000 12.00% 31 March, 2026
18 March, 2016 10,00,000 - 500 12.70% 18 March, 2026
05 February, 2016 10,00,000 - 500 12.60% 05 February, 2026
20 January, 2016 10,00,000 - 500 12.60% 20 January, 2026
11 January, 2016 10,00,000 - 1,500 12.60% 11 January, 2026
24 September, 2015 10,00,000 - 500 12.50% 24 September, 2025
20 August, 2015 10,00,000 - 1,000 12.50% 20 August, 2025
13 August, 2015 10,00,000 - 15,000 12.75% 13 August, 2025
16 March, 2015 10,00,000 - 500 13.00% 16 March, 2025
01 March, 2017 10,00,000 - 500 12.40% 01 June, 2024
03 July, 2018 10,00,000 - 5,000 12.25% 03 May, 2024
25 October, 2016 10,00,000 - 5,000 11.80% 25 April, 2024
10 March, 2017 10,00,000 - 7,500 12.95% 10 March, 2024
17 July, 2013 10,00,000 - 2,300 12.75% 17 July, 2023
29 June, 2013 10,00,000 - 3,540 12.75% 29 June, 2023
07 May, 2013 10,00,000 - 2,080 13.25% 07 May, 2023
24 September, 2015 10,00,000 - 1,200 12.40% 24 April, 2023
29 March, 2016 10,00,000 - 200 12.70% 29 March, 2023
28 March, 2013 10,00,000 - 1,650 13.25% 28 March, 2023
01 March, 2013 10,00,000 - 1,750 13.25% 01 March, 2023
28 January, 2013 10,00,000 - 700 13.80% 28 January, 2023
24 January, 2013 10,00,000 - 900 13.25% 24 January, 2023
24 January, 2013 10,00,000 - 6,070 13.80% 24 January, 2023
16 January, 2013 10,00,000 - 250 13.70% 16 January, 2023
16 January, 2013 10,00,000 - 7,000 13.85% 16 January, 2023
17 December, 2012 10,00,000 - 1,700 13.50% 17 December, 2022
31 October, 2012 10,00,000 - 490 13.70% 31 October, 2022
18 October, 2012 10,00,000 - 1,060 13.70% 18 October, 2022
28 September, 2012 10,00,000 - 2,890 13.70% 28 September, 2022
13 August, 2015 10,00,000 - 5,000 12.75% 13 August, 2022
31 July, 2012 1,00,000 - 1,206 13.50% 31 July, 2022
09 March, 2017 10,00,000 - 500 12.18% 09 June, 2022
01 June, 2012 1,00,000 - 1,130 13.50% 01 June, 2022
30 March, 2012 10,00,000 - 10,000 13.40% 30 March, 2022
12 January, 2012 1,00,000 - 8,410 13.90% 12 January, 2022
11 January, 2012 1,00,000 - 6,600 13.90% 11 January, 2022
23 December, 2011 1,00,000 - 6,905 13.90% 23 December, 2021
01 February, 2016 10,00,000 - 700 12.15% 01 May, 2021
24 September, 2015 10,00,000 - 2,360 12.30% 24 April, 2021
19 December , 2023** 1,000 6,96,882 - 0.00% 18 December, 2031
19 December, 2023 1,000 25,716 - 0.00% 18 December, 2031
19 December, 2023 1,000 77,402 - 0.00% 18 December, 2031
Public Issue:
24 January, 2019 1,000 - 1,428  12.75%-13.00% 10 years
08 August, 2017 1,000 - 56,199  11.25%-11.70% 5-10 years
16 March, 2018 1,000 - 2,702 11.12%-11.75% 10 years
Total 8,00,000 1,98,770

%1) In terms of Lh%approved resolution plan (Refer Note No. 1(a) and 52) payment made to debenture holders, new instruments issued and remaining liabilites has
een extinguished.

In terms of the approved resolution plan, the Company has issued OCD on December 19, 2023 having face value of ¥ 8,00,000 Lacs to various stakeholders and
the same has been fair value at ¥ 6,028 Lacs on the initial date of recognition in the books of accounts. The difference between face value and fair value has been
transferred to the restructuring reserve, which has been subsequently transferred to retained earnings of the Company. Further, interest to be provided for on the
fair value of OCD at the rate of 12% per annum from the initial date of recognition.

## Does not includes Interest Accrued and not due ¥ 208 Lacs (March 31st, 2023: % Nil) and overdue interest ¥ Nil (March 31st, 2023: ¥ 31,699 Lacs).

*In terms of approved resolution plan, any recovery from underlying assets of the Company after payments of all NCDs shall be used to repay the OCDs.
In case of early recoveries from the underlying assets, the Company shall have option to make accelerated payment on the OCDs at an net present value (NPV)
computed on the date of accelerated payment.

Conversion at the option of holder from the beginning of the 6th year till maturity. Conversion at the option of the Company at the end of 8 years. Any outstanding
amount at the end of year 8 shall be converted into equity at fair value.

**0CDs of X 151 Lacs pending for allottment to Candor Kolkata One Hi-Tech Structures Pvt Ltd.
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17. Other Financial Liabilities

(% in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
Unpaid Dividends (Refer Note No. 61) 14 24
Unpaid Matured Debentures and Interest Accrued thereon (Refer Note No. 61) 302 333
Trade Deposits received 7,176 8,510
Security Deposits & Retentions 37 507
Payable to Employees 346 1,317
Liability for Operating Expenses 1,358 2,569
Financial Guarantee Liability = 105
Adavance from Operating Lease Customers 2,121 1,978
Total 11,354 15,343
18. Provisions
(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note No. 46)
Provision for Gratuity 17 -
Provision for Unavailed Leave (including sick leave) 144 340
Others
Provision against disputed statutory dues under litigation (Refer Note No. 52) - 15,008
Total 161 15,348
19. Other Non-Financial Liabilities
(X in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
Defered Interest on Secured Non Convertible Debentures 1,33,639 -
Interest Capitalisation Account - 1,878
Advance from Customers 9 4
Statutory Liabilities 1,304 2,013
Pre-received amount for lease contracts 33 93
Total 1,34,985 3,988
20. Equity Share Capital
. As at 31st March, 2023
Particulars No.of Shares X in Lacs
Authorised
Equity Shares, X 10/- par value per share 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,000
Preference Shares, ¥ 100/- par value per share 5,00,00,000 50,000 5,00,00,000 50,000
1,50,000 1,50,000
Issued and subscribed
Equity Shares, X 10/- par value per share 10,00,000 100 50,30,86,333 50,309
100 50,309
Fully Paid-up
Equity Shares, X 10/- par value per share 10,00,000 100 50,30,86,333 50,309
100 50,309

20.1 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding

The reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding and the corresponding amount thereof, as at the Balance Sheet date is set out below:

s As at 31st March, 2023
Equily Shares No.of Shares X in Lacs
At the beginning of the year 503086333 50,309 503086333 50,309
Add: Issued during the year 491006197 49,101 - -
Less: Reduction during the year 993092530 99,309 - -
At the end of the year 1000000 100 503086333 50,309
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20.2 Reconciliation of the number of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares outstanding

b. The reconciliation of the number of Preference Shares outstanding and the corresponding amount thereof as at the Balance Sheet date is set
out below:

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

No. of Shares T in Lacs No. of Shares Tin Lacs

At the beginning of the year = = - -
Add: Issued during the year in terms of the approved resolution plan 1,16,91,68,206  11,69,168 - -
At the end of the year 1,16,91,68,206  11,69,168 - -

20.3 Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of each class of shares

Equity Shares

The Group’s authorised capital consists of two classes of shares, referred to as Equity Shares and Preference Shares having par value of ¥ 10/-
and X 100/- each respectively. As per Approved Resolution Plan (refer note 1(a), the par value of Equity Shares have been sub-divided into par
value of ¥ 1 each with effect from May 7th, 2024. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Preference Shareholder has a
preferential right over equity share holders, in respect of repayment of capital and payment of dividend.

Dividend are declared in Indian rupees. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Group, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

20.4 Shares allotted as fully paid-up without payment being received in cash/by way of bonus shares (during 5 years preceding 31st March,
2023)

During the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Company had issued 200000 shares to Approving Financial Creditors (AFC) on assignment of Debt
of AFCs in exchange of Intercorporate Deposit from SEFL. The Company has also issued 100000 equity shares to ESOP Trust during this period
without payment being received in cash. Apart from afroresaid, the Company had not issued any shares without payment being received in cash/
by way of bonus shares during preceeding 5 years.

Further, SEFL, a subsidiary company, has allotted 116,91,68,206 nos of Preference Shares of I 100 each amounting to ¥ 11,69,168 Lacs in lieu
of discharging liabilities towards financial debts of the Company.

20.5 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares each, are set out below:
As at 31st March, 2024

As at 31st March, 2023

Name of the Shareholders No. of Shares % of No. of Shares % of
Shareholding Shareholding
Adisri Commercial Private Limited 30,36,75,845 60.36

4,60,000 46.00 - -

National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
India Debt Resolution Company Limited 2,40,000 24.00 - -
Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust 1,00,000 10.00 - -

20.6 Shareholding of promoters as at 31st March, 2024:
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
SI. Promoter name

No. of shares % of total shares % Change during the year

(i) Adisri Commercial Private Limited (Holding Company) - - - 60.36%
(i) Sunil Kanoria - - - 0.36%
(iii) Hemant Kanoria - - - 0.08%

Total - -

Shareholding of promoters as at 31st March, 2023:

SI. Promoter name

No. of shares

% of total shares

% Change during the year

(i) Adisri Commercial Private Limited (Holding Company) 30,36,75,845 60.36% -
(i) Sunil Kanoria 18,02,714 0.36% -
(iii) Hemant Kanoria 3,80,000 0.08% -
Total 30,58,58,559 60.80%

Note: Promoter here means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

20.7 Refer Note No. 41-for Company's capital management objectives, policies and processes.
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21. Other Equity

Particulars

Treasury Shares

(in Lacs)

As at As at
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Shares issued to Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust (10) -
Closing balance (10) -
Special Reserve (pursuant to Section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 )

Opening balance 55,219 55,219

Add: Transfer from retained earnings b -

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the terms of the resolution plan (27,707) -
Closing halance 37,137 55,219
Income Tax Special Reserve (created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

Opening balance 25,834 25,834

Add: Transfer from retained earnings - -

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the terms of the resolution plan (25,834) -
Closing balance - 25,834
Capital Reserve

Opening balance 1,04,744 1,04,744

Add/Less: Transferred from/to Surplus - -

Add: Addition during the year - -

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the terms of the resolution plan (1,04,744) -
Closing balance - 1,04,744
Securities Premium

Opening balance 62,441 62,441

Add/Less: Transferred from/to Surplus - -

Add: Securities Premium on New Capital Issue 25,651 -

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the terms of the resolution plan (88,092) -
Closing balance = 62,441
Bond/Debenture Redemption Reserve

Opening balance 10,222 10,222

Less: Transfer to retained earnings, on repayment of Bond/Debenture - -

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the

terms of the resolution plan (10,222) -
Closing balance = 10,222
General Reserve

Opening balance 1,36,801 1,36,801

Add/Less: Transferred from/to Surplus o -

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the terms of the resolution plan (1,36,801) -
Closing balance - 1,36,801
Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Opening balance (11,795 (27,400)

Add: Additions during the year (8,849 ,605

Less: Reclassification to Retained Earnings (net of tax) - -
Closing balance (20,644) (11,795)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Opening balance - 11

Add: Additions during the year - (11)
Closing balance E -
Impairment Reserve

Opening balance 6,15,995 5,70,463

Add: Additions during the year 5,380 45,532

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the terms of the resolution plan (6,21,375) -
Closing balance - 6,15,995
Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income

Opening balance 233 952

Add: Addition during the year (229 (719)

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the terms of the resolution plan (4 -
Closing balance - 233
Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedges

Opening balance 1 1

Add: Additions during the year - -

Less: Transferred to Restructuring reserve and subsequently to Retained Earnings as per the terms of the resolution plan (1)

Closing balance = 1
Restructuring Reserve (Refer note 52)
Add: Transfer from following reserves:

Special Reserve (pursuant to Section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 ) 27,707 -

Capital Reserve 1,04,744 -

Securities Premium Reserve 88,092 -

General Reserve 1,36,801 -

Bond/Debenture Redemption Reserve 10,222 -

Impairment Reserve 6,21,375 -

Transfer from Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 4

Transfer from Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedges as per the terms of the resolution plan 1 -

Income Tax Special Reserve (created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961) 25,834 -

Capital reduction, extinguishment of liabilities and other impacts as per the terms of the resolution plan 14,39,817 -
Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings (24,54,597) -
Closing balance -

Retained Earnings
Opening balance (27,52,019 15,95,424

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (7,78,734 11,10,900

Add: Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (78 (163

Add: Transfer from restructure reserve account as per the terms of the resolution plan 24,54,597 -

(10.76.234) (27,06.487)
Add/Less: Appropriations

Transferred to Special Reserve 9,625 -

Transferred to Impairment Reserve 5,380 (45,532)

Transferred to Bond/Debenture Redemption Reserve (Net) - -

Transferred to Foreign Currency Translation Reserve - -

Reclassification from Other Comprehensive Income o -
Total appropriations (15,005) (45,532)
Closing balance (10,91,239) (27,52,019)
Total (10,74,756) (17,52,324)
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(i) Treasury Shares:

Treasury shares represents Company's own equity shares held by Kairos ESOP Trust, which is created for the purpose of issuing equity shares to employees under
Company's stock option plan.

(ii) Special Reserve:

Every year the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Srei Equipment Finance Limited being the Non-Banking Financial Companies, transfers a sum of not
less than twenty percent of net profit after tax of that year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss to its Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of
The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The conditions and restrictions for distribution attached to Special Reserve is as follows:

No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the Group except for the purpose as may be specified by the RBI from time to time and every
such appropriation shall be reported to the RBI within twenty-one days from the date of such withdrawal. RBI may, in any particular case and for sufficient cause
being shown, extend the period of twenty one days by such further period as it thinks fit or condone any delay in making such report.

The existing balance of above stated reserve has been transferred to restructuring reserve account and subsequently transferred / adjusted to retained earnings in
terms of the approved resolution plan.

iii) Income Tax Special Reserve:
This reserve has been created pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and any withdrawal from same will be taxable as per provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

The balance of existing reserve has been transferred to restructuring reserve account and subsequently transferred/adjusted to retained earnings in terms of the
approved resolution plan

(iv) Capital Reserve:
This reserve represents capital investment subsidy received, amount forfeited towards warrant subscription and amount on cancellation of forfeited equity shares.

The existing balance of above stated reserve has been transferred to restructuring reserve account and subsequently transferred/adjusted to retained earnings in
terms of the approved resolution plan.

(v) Securities Premium:
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The existing balance of above stated reserve has been transferred to restructuring reserve account and subsequently transferred/adjusted to retained earnings in
terms of the approved resolution plan.

(vi) Bond/Debenture Redemption Reserve:

Pursuant to Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013 and circular 04/2013, read with notification issued date June 19th, 2016 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Company is required to transfer 25% of the value of the outstanding debentures issued through public issue as per the present SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulation, 2008 to DRR and no DRR is required in case of privately placed debenture.

As per the notification G.S.R. 574(E) dated August 16th, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules,
DRR is not required for debentures issued by NBFCs regulated by Reserve Bank of India for both public as well as private placement debentures.

The existing balance of above stated reserve has been transferred to restructuring reserve account and subsequently transferred/adjusted to retained earnings in
terms of the approved resolution plan.

(vii) General Reserve:
This reserve include amount transferred from net profit as per provisions of erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 and Reserves created on Amalgamation.

The existing balance of above stated reserve has been transferred to restructuring reserve account and subsequently transferred/adjusted to retained earnings in
terms of the approved resolution plan.

(viii) Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income:

This Reserve represents the cumulative gains (net of losses) arising on the changes in Fair Value of Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income, net of amounts reclassified, if any, to Retained Earnings when those instruments are disposed off.

(ix) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve:
Exchange differences arising on translation of a foreign associate are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in a separate reserve within
equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to Profit or Loss when the investment is disposed-off.

(x) Impairment Reserve:

Impairment reserve created pursuant to paragraph 2 (b) of Annex to the guidelines DOR (NBFC). CC.PD.NQ.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13,2020 issued
by RBI on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards for Non-Banking Finance Companies and Asset Reconstruction Companies comprises of the excess
provision as per Income Recognition, Asset classification and Provisioning norms (irac norms) as compared to the provision as per the ECL model adopted by
Srei Equipment Finance Limited.

The existing balance of above stated reserve has been transferred to restructuring reserve account and subsequently transferred / adjusted to retained earnings in
terms of the approved resolution plan.

(xi) Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income:

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

(xii) Effective portion of Cash Flow Hedges:

For designated and qualifying cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly in OCI
within equity (cash flow hedge reserve). When the hedged cash flow affects the statement of profit and loss, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recorded in the corresponding income or expense line of the statement of profit and loss.

(xiii) Restructuring Reserve:

This reserve represents the effect of the approved resolution plan, which was subsequently transferred to retained earnings in terms of the approved resolution
plan.

(xiv) Retained Earnings:
This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Group. This can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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22. Interest Income

For the year ended 31st March, 2024

Interest Income
on Financial

On Financial On Financial

Assets measured Assets measured

(% in Lacs)

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

On Financial

On Financial
Assets measured Assets measued

Interest Income
on Financial

Particulars at fair value  at Amortised Cost Assets classified at fair value  at Amortised cost Assets measured  Total
through 0CI at fair value through 0CI at fair value
through profit through profit
or loss or loss
Interest on Loans - 31,485 3,008 34,493 389 1,14,317 2,999 1,17,705
Interest income from
investments - 528 522 1,050 - 527 424 951
Interest on deposits
with Banks - 10,226 - 10,226 - 9,702 - 9,702
Other interest Income = = = = - 60 - 60
Total - 42,239 3,530 45,769 389 1,24,606 3,423 1,28,418
23. Net gain/( loss) on fair value changes
(% in Lacs)
For the year ended

Particulars

(A) Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(i) On trading portfolio

- Investments

- Derivatives

- Others

(i) Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Derivatives

For the year ended
31st March, 2024

31st March, 2023

(11,333)

- Investments (23,082)

- Loans (3,130) (116)
- Claims Receivable (62,196) 1,825
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes (A) (88,408) (9,624)
Fair Value changes:

- Realised (15,681) -
- Unrealised (72,727) (9,624)
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes (B) to tally with (A) (88,408) (9,624)
24. Other Income (% in Lacs)
ey
Liability No Longer Required written back 396 362
Interest on Income Tax Refund 3 1,493
Net gain/(loss) on Foreign Currency Transactions = -
Net gain on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment 988 -
Others * 10,107 14
Total 11,494 1,869

* Includes unwinding Income of Deferred interest of NCD of ¥ 10,048 Lacs out of which % 1,092 Lacs on account of accelerated payment of NCD-1 (March 31st,

2023: % Nil).

25. Finance Costs (% in Lacs)

For the year ended 31st March, 2023

For the year ended 31st March, 2024
On Financial liabilities On Financial liabilities

On Financial liabilities  On Financial liabilities

Particulars " ;

measured at fair value measured at measured at fair value measured at

through profit or loss Amortised Cost through profit or loss Amortised Cost
Interest on borrowings - 4,925 - 6,077
Interest on debt securities - 8,958 - 392
Interest on subordinated liabilities - 208 - 874
Other interest expense - 126 - 281
Total - 14,217 - 7,624
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26. Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net)

(% in Lacs)
For the year ended 31st March, 2024 For the year ended 31st March, 2023
Particulars WL ELHEIRIED RGO LRI ENHEIRIELIINEE]  On Financial liabilities  On Financial liabilities
measured at fair value measured at measured at fair value measured at
through 0CI Amortised Cost through 0CI Amortised Cost
Loans (229) 6,71,968 (424) 1,48,980
Other financial assets = 2,823 - (6,340)
Total (229) 6,74,791 (424) 1,42,640
27. Employee Benefits Expenses
(% in Lacs)
. CLIRUCRTEICENL I For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Salaries and wages 5,886 8,077
Contribution to provident and other funds 472 557
Staff welfare expenses 111 111
Total 6,469 8,745
28. Administrative and Other Expenses
(% in Lacs)

. OIRGCRTEETRCNGEG N For the year ended
Particulars EXEL T ORI 31st March, 2023

Rent, Taxes and Energy Costs 372 562
Repairs and Maintenance 2,305 2,476
Communication Costs 169 186
Printing and Stationery 50 63
Advertisement and Publicity 35 25
Director's Fees, Allowances and Expenses 26 17
Auditor's Fees and Expenses 299 353
Legal and Professional Charges 3,896 3,880
Insurance 382 419
Travelling & Conveyance 942 1,174
Net loss on derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment - 7,555
Other Expenditure 336 429
CIRP Cost (Refer Note No. 28.2) 6,342 2,019
Total 15,154 19,158

28.1 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
(Z in Lacs)

. GUIRUCRTEICENL I For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2024 BT CRALE

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Group during the year - -
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred (paid in cash) - -
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year = -
(d) Total of previous years shortfall = 576
(e) Reason for shortfall Refer Note No. 60 Refer Note No. 60
(f) Nature of CSR activities Not Applicable Not Applicable
(g) Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the Company in

relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard Not Applicable Not Applicable
(h) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation,

the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately. Not Applicable Not Applicable

28.2 CIRP Expense
T in Lacs

SRR LEL M For the year ended
31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Particulars

Fees to Resolution professional 1,772 1,302
Fees to Insolvency and Bankrurpcy board of India as per IBC Code 4,073 -
Manpower Cost 76 209
Reimbursement of expenses 6 91
Other Expenses 415 417
Total 6,342 2,019
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29. Earnings Per Share (EPS) - The numerators and denominators used to calculate Basic and Diluted EPS

(% in Lacs)

. GLRUCRTEICENL I For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2023
Profit after Tax attributable to the Equity Shareholders (X in Lacs) (A) (7,78,735) (11,10,899)
(@) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 50,30,86,333 50,30,86,333
(b) Number of Equity Shares issued during the year 49,10,06,197 -
(c) Number of Equity Shares reduced during the year 99,30,92,530 -
(d) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 10,00,000 50,30,86,333
(e) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (B) 36,04,16,992 50,30,86,333
(f) Nominal Value of each Equity Share (%) 10 10
Earnings per share (% per share of ¥ 10 each)
Basic (A/B) (216.07) (220.82)
Diluted # A/B) (216.07) (220.82)

# In view of losses during the current year ended 31st March, 2024, the CCPS which are anti-dilutive have been ignored in the calculation of diluted
earnings per share. Accordingly, there is no variation between basic and diluted earnings per share.

30. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (To the Extent Not Provided For)

Particulars

A. Contingent Liabilities @
(@) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts:*
Disputed Demands:

Income Tax 49 6,980
Service Tax 76 1,868
Central Sales Tax - -
Entry Tax = -
Sales Tax - -
Value Added Tax (VAT) - 1,212
ESIC - -
(b) Guarantees:
Corporate Guarantees - 3,270
Bank Guarantees 47 471
(c) Uncalled money for paid up capital towards investments 620 620
(d) Others** - 35
Total 792 14,456
B. Commitments
Estimated amount of capital contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (Net of advances) 9 -

Capital Commitments (to the extent not provided for) - -

@ In terms of the approved resolution plan, all contingent liabilities and Other commitments on account of implementation of the resolution plan has been permanently
extinguished, discharged and settled (Refer Note no. 1(a) and 52).

*The management believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position and result
of operations.

Based on the directions of RBI, during the year ended March 31st, 2022 provision has been made amounting to ¥ 9,807 Lacs and % 4,991 Lacs in respect of direct
tax cases and indirect tax cases respectively where SEFL was under various stages of appeal with the relevant tax authorities (Refer Note No. 1(a)), details of which
is as given below:

Entry Tax- ¥ 30 Lacs, Value Added Tax - ¥ 86 Lacs, Central Sales Tax - ¥ 1 Lacs, Service tax - ¥ 400 Lacs, Income Tax - ¥ 225 Lacs, Central Sales Tax - ¥ 211 Lacs,
Service tax- ¥ 4,263 Lacs, Income Tax - ¥ 9,582 Lacs.

Further, during the year ended March 31st, 2023 provision amounting to ¥ 7 Lacs in respect of indirect tax cases was made with the relevant tax authorities details
of which is as given below:

Goods and Service Tax - %5 Lacs , Value Added Tax - X 2 Lacs.

Further during the year ended March 31st, 2024, appellate order was recevied pertaining to entry tax demand, whereby relief has been granted to the extent of
% 17 Lacs from the original demand of ¥ 19 Lacs. Accordingly, the provision has been reduced to such extent. Further In terms of the approved resolution plan,
no amount was payable to the statutory authorities and hence all such provisions as stated above required based on the direction of the RBI were extinguished by
following the capital reduction.

** SEBI vide its Adjudication Order No. Order/DS/DK/ 2022-23 /20903- 20964 dated October 31, 2022 (‘Order’), in the matter of Religare Enterprises Limited had
imposed a penalty of ¥ 35 Lacs on SIFL payable within 45 days from the date of receipt of the Order. However, vide its Corrigendum to Order dated 30th November,
2022, SEBI has clarified that the said period of 45 days shall not be applicable in respect of the Company due to the CIRP proceedings pending against it. The said
penalty is payable subject to the provisions of IBC and outcome of the appeal filed by SEBI in the Dewan Housing Finance Limited case matter in the Hon’ble Supreme
Court (Appeal No. 206 of 2020). As per Approved Resolution Plan, this liablity has been extinguished from the effective date.

In certain companies of the Group, they had challenged the Constitutional validity of Fringe Benefit Tax (FBT) before the Hon'ble High Court at Calcutta and the
Hon'ble court has dismissed the petition vide order dated 01.09.2017. However amount of FBT liability has not been determined by the department. Also management
of the Company has filed appeal before the Divisional bench of Hon'ble High Court, Calcutta. In view of this, the Company has not provided for any liability towards
FBT till 31 March, 2009. However, consequent upon abolition of FBT from accounting year 2009-10, no liability arises for the year.
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31. Financial Guarantees

Financial Statements

(% in Lacs)
Particulars As at
AR08\ ETH {1728 31st March, 2023
Bank Guarantee @ - 29,185
Corporate Guarantee @@ - 5,600
Total - 34,785

@ Represents bank guarantees issued on behalf of the customer and other parties.
@@ Represents corporate guarantee issued on behalf of the customers.

* Refer Note 1(a) and 52

32. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder during the year ended 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023.

33. Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company

(Xin Lacs)
Desctiption of | Gross carrying value (3 in Lacs) @ Title deeds held in Whether title deed Property held Reason for not
Relevant line item iem of property the name of holder is promoter*  since which date being held in
in the Balance Sheet As at 31st As at 31st director or relative# the name of
LI 728 March, 2023 of promoter/director the Company
Other Non-Financial Assets- | Building (Saket, 8,747.34 8,747.34 | South Lake Properties Pvt No September-2010 | **
Assets acquired in satisfaction New Delhi) Ltd/Pushp Vihar Properties
of debt Pvt Ltd/Koshika Properties
Pvt Ltd/Wales Properties
Pvt Ltd
Land 11,800 11,800 | Murti Housing and Finance No September-2017 | The immovable
Private Limited property was
transferred to the
Company
pursuant to the
BTA (Refer Note
No. 62) entered
by the Company
with its Holding
Company, SIFL.
Land 1,065 1,065 | Deccan Chronicle No June-2018
Secunderabad Private Limited
and Deccan Chronicle
Rajahmundry Private Limited
Land 1,255 1,255 | Krystine Vintrade Pvt Ltd No March-2016
Balanced Dealers Pvt Ltd
Shivdhan Sales Pvt Ltd
Wellknown Vinimay Pvt Ltd
Malank Dealtrade Pvt Ltd
Balanced Commotrade
Pvt Ltd
Kavya Dealmark Pvt Ltd
Alaukik Commercial Pvt Ltd Due to procedural
Kripa Dealmark Pvt Ltd issues, title deeds
are not registered
Land and Building 2,400 2,400 | Kakarlapudi Venkata Madhava No September-2015 | in the name of the
Varma Company.
Building 57 57 | Sierra Constructions Pvt Ltd No September-2016
Land 255 255 | Kabbalamma, Smt. Sukanya No September-2015
& Sri Prasanna
Building 3,200 3,200 | Wianxx Impex Private Limited No September-2017
December-2017
March-2018
June-2018
Land 342 342 | Apex Encon Projects Pt Ltd No March-2014
September-2014
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33. Title deeds of Inmovable Properties not held in name of the Company (Contd.)

(Xin Lacs)

Desctiption of
Relevant line item iem of property

in the Balance Sheet As at 31st

March, 2024

Gross carrying value (% in Lacs) @

As at 31st
March, 2023

Title deeds held in
the name of

Whether title deed
holder is promoter*
director or relative#
of promoter/director

Property held
since which date

Reason for not
being held in
the name of
the Company

Land

1,031

1,031

Yatin Vintrade Pvt Ltd
Sanyam Tradelink Pvt Ltd
SPK Food Product Pvt Ltd
Original Distributors Pvt Ltd
Jalram Tradeling Pvt Ltd
Amardhan Mercantile Pvt Ltd
Shivdhara Vintrade Pvt Ltd
Overtop Vincom Pvt Ltd
QOviation Marketing Pvt Ltd
Safal Commodity Pvt Ltd

No

December-2014
June-2015

Land 124

124

S Kandhswamy

No

March-2013

Land 1,600

1,600

Abhijit Technochem Limited

No

December-2014

Land 1,223

1,223

Cherry Dealers Pvt Ltd
Preview Dealers Pvt Ltd
Famous Suppliers Pvt Ltd
Juhi Telecom Pvt Ltd
Sarvopriya Tradecom Pvt Ltd
Swarnabhumi Vanijya Pvt Ltd
Shaktiman Commercials Pvt
Ltd

No

December-2014
June-2015
September-2015

Land 1,050

1,050

Navaj Constructions Pvt Ltd
Kripa Educational Institutions
Pvt Ltd

Aparajitha Institutions
Swatantra Infrastructure Pvt
Ltd

Jeeet Projects

No

December-2014

Land 335

335

Kodur Developers

Suhas Infradevelopers
Trigya Infradevelopers
Darpan House Pvt Ltd
Lahar Infrastructure Pvt Ltd
Marg Properties Pvt Ltd
Trijal Infrastructures Pvt Ltd

No

December-2014

Land 115

115

Pathang Constructions Pvt
Ltd
Kodure Deveopers Pvt Ltd

No

December-2014

Land 1,209

1,209

Udant Vintrade Pvt Ltd
Pinkrose Vinimay Pvt Ltd
Linkplan Shoppers Pvt Ltd
Swarnaganga Vinimay Pvt Ltd
Virat Vintrade Pvt Ltd
Memorable Vincom Pvt Ltd
Forever Tradecomm Pvt Ltd

No

December-2014
June-2015

Building 835

835

B Ravi Kalyan Reddy

No

June-2013

Land 440

440

Sudesh Shriram Mallik
Siddharth Sriram Malik

No

December-2014

Land and Building 98

98

Binod Kumar Singh
Binod Singh Constructions
Pvt Ltd

No

May-2017

Due to procedural
issues, title deeds
are not registered
in the name of the
Company.

* Promoter here means promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.
# Relative here means relative as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

$ Month and year since the property is acquired/credit given by the Company.

** In respect of property at Saket Place, New Delhi (‘Property'), which was purchased by the Company from third party by execution of deed of declaration and for which
purchase consideration was paid. The builder was supposed to get the required approval of Delhi Development Authority for conversion of Property from leasehold to freehold
before conveyance, which is pending and the matter has been referred to the appropriate legal forum, where it is sub-judice.
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34. Relationship with Struck - off Companies

Name of struck - off Company Nature of transactions Balance Balance Relationship with
with struck - off Company outstanding as on  outstanding as on  the struck - off

off 31st March, off 31st March,  Company, if any,

2024 X inLacs) 2023 (3in Lacs) to be disclosed #

Vishal Packaging Private Limited Receivables (Loans outstanding) 24 24 Not Applicable
Uday Associates Private Limited Receivables (Loans outstanding) 7 6 Not Applicable
Bhatti Automobiles Private Limited Receivables (Loans outstanding) 38 36 Not Applicable
Ishanika Plywoods Private Limited Receivables (Loans outstanding) 34 34 Not Applicable
Shakti Infraestate And Trade Mart Private Limited Receivables (Loans outstanding) @ - 0 Not Applicable
Rajbala RBR Realcon Private Limited Receivables (Loans outstanding) 4 4 Not Applicable
Four Seasons Hotel Private Limited Payable ( Fooding & Hotel Expense) - * Not Applicable
Grandways Courier Services Private Limited Payable (Postage & Courier ) - o Not Applicable
Highway Roadlines Private Limited *** Receivables (Loans outstanding) 31 0 Not Applicable

Gross Qutstanding 138 104

Less : Provision (76) (51)

Net Outstanding 62 53
*3 2,631
** 3 648

@3 48,983 (as at March 31st, 2023 X 49,003 less provision amounting to X 29,448 (March 31, 2023 X 25,861).
# As per the definition of 'related party' under Section 2(76) of the Act.

Reduction in balance outstanding amount is due to collection, written off etc.

*** Balance outstanding as on March 31st, 2023 X 30 Lacs less provision amounting to ¥ 15 Lacs.

$ The current year and previous year figures are shown net of liability towrads assignments.

35. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
Any charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period, details and reasons thereof is disclosed as below :

Satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC

(in Lacs)
Facility Name Charge ID Date of charge Name of charge holder Charge amount
Creation/ As at March As at March
Modification 31st, 2024 31st, 2023
Collateralised Borrowings | 100407509 30/12/2020 The Karur Vysya Bank Limited - -
Collateralised Borrowings | 100392693 11/12/2020 Siemens Financial Services Private Limited 1,587 -
Collateralised Borrowings | 100390650 04/11/2020 The Karur Vysya Bank Limited - -
Collateralised Borrowings | 100379993 29/09/2020 The Karur Vysya Bank Limited - -
Collateralised Borrowings | 100369351 25/08/2020 The Karur Vysya Bank Limited 5,606 -
Collateralised Borrowings | 100365165 31/07/2020 The Karur Vysya Bank Limited - -
Collateralised Borrowings | 100291065 30/08/2019 The Karur Vlysya Bank Limited 4,737 -
Collateralised Borrowings | 100237421 17/01/2019 The Karur Vysya Bank Limited - -
Debt Securities 10515565 20/06/2014 IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited - -
Collateralised Borrowings | 100275885 June 12th, 2019 Axis Trustees Services Limited - -
Debt Securities 100150739 | December 28th, 2017 Catalyst Trusteeship Limited - 500
Term Loans 100084037 March 16th, 2017 Small Industries Development Bank of India - 10,000
Term Loans 100055724 | September 26th, 2016 | The Karur Vysya Bank Limited - 7,500
Term Loans 10261668 November 24th, 2010 Axis Trustees Services Limited - 36,800
Term Loans 100237513 January 8th, 2019 Axis Bank Limited - -
Term Loans 100359690 31/07/2020 Oesterreichische Entwicklungsbank AG 12,470 -
Term Loans 100281331 02/08/2019 Belgian Investment Company for Developing
Countries NV SA-BIO 6,967 -
Term Loans 100248417 06/03/2019 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural
Development 30,000 -
Term Loans 100223455 27/11/2018 Syndicate Bank - -
Term Loans 100204762 28/08/2018 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 17,500 -
Term Loans 100190577 28/06/2018 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 8,750 -
Term Loans 100180713 11/05/2018 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 50,000 -
Term Loans 100159815 02/03/2018 FINNISH FUND FOR INDUSTRIAL COOPERATION LTD 11,926 -
Term Loans 100166748 28/02/2018 Societe de Promotion et de Participation pour la
Cooperation Economique S.A. (PROPARCO) 21,489 -
Term Loans 100147683 17/01/2018 AXIS Trustee Services Limited 1,28,115 -
Term Loans 100144481 18/12/2017 DEG-Deutsche Investitions-UND
Entwicklungsgesellschaft MBH 9,771 -
Term Loans 100123926 22/09/2017 ORIENTAL BANK OF COMMERCE - -
Term Loans 100111137 23/06/2017 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 65,000 -
Term Loans 100088959 07/04/2017 AXIS Trustee Services Limited 8,049 -
Term Loans 100087080 21/03/2017 National Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development 50,000 -
Term Loans 100076643 25/01/2017 DEG-Deutsche Investitions-UND
Entwicklungsgesellschaft MBH 17,039 -
Term Loans 100055724 26/09/2016 The Karur Vysya Bank Limited - -
Term Loans 10622418 25/02/2016 State Bank of India - -
Term Loans 10615205 28/12/2015 Syndicate Bank - -
Total 4,49,006 54,800
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Charges not yet registered with ROC

(X in Lacs)
Facility Name Name of charge holder Reason for Non-registration Charge Amount
As at March | As at March
31st, 2024 31st, 2023
Debt Securities Catalyst Trusteeship Limited Form CHG-9 filed with ROC but not approved ** - 10,872
Debt Securities Axis Trustee Services Limited (As at March 31st, 2022: Form CHG-9 filed with ROC - 86,739
but yet to be approved **)
Debt Securities Axis Trustee Services Limited Novation Agreement signed but Form CHG-9 not filed ** - 81
(As at March 31st, 2022: Form CHG-9 filed with ROC
but yet to be approved **)
Debt Securities PNB Investment Services Limited. Form CHG-9 filed with ROC but yet to be approved 4,50,638 -
Term Loans HDFC Bank Limited Form CHG-1 not filed with ROC - 21
Term Loans ICICI Bank Limited - 25
Term Loans Toyota Financial Services India Limited - 38
Term Loans Bank of India - 38,101
Term Loans Canara Bank - 8,956
Term Loans IFCI Limited - 19,020
Term Loans Indian Bank - 6,862
Term Loans Lakshmi Vilas Bank - 1,113
Term Loans Punjab and Sind Bank Novation Agreement not signed ** - 3,953
Term Loans Punjab National Bank - 18,802
Term Loans South Indian Bank Limited - 295
Term Loans State Bank of India - 2,639
Term Loans Union Bank of India - 23,965
Working Capital Consortium with Lead Bank - 8,78,861
Facilities *** Axis Bank Limited
Total 4,50,638 11,00,343

The Location of ROC is Kolkata.
* This represents amount outstanding and does not include effective interest rate adjustment and interest accrued and not due.
** Refer Note No. 52.

*rx |

36.

37.

38.

39.

ncludes WCDL, FITL and Cash credit.

Undisclosed Income

There are no any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended
March 31st, 2024 and March 31st, 2023 in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

There are no previously unrecorded income and related assets have been properly recorded in the books of account during the year ended
March 31st, 2024 and March 31st, 2023.

The Company has received show cause notices from few banks for declaring the Company as wilful defaulter and suitable replies for the same
has been submitted by the Company to the best of our knowledge and information available. In accordance with the Resolution Plan and
Section 32A of the Code, the liability of the Corporate Debtors for any offences committed prior to the commencement of the CIRP shall
cease. Consequently, neither the Corporate Debtors nor the Resolution Applicant shall be prosecuted for any such offences from the NCLT
Approval Date onward. Therefore, the Company shall not be considered a wilful defaulter for the pre-CIRP period, and the erstwhile promoters
of the Company are responsible for addressing the show cause notices related to wilful default for the pre-CIRP period (Also Refer Note
No.52).

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has not raised any borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets.

Pursuant to initiation of CIRP (Refer Note No. 1(a)), the Company had not filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets with banks
or financial institutions for the quarter ended June 30th, 2023.The Hon'ble NCLT has approved the resolution plan on August 11th, 2023,
accordingly in terms of the approved resolution plan (Refer Note No. 1(a) and 52) payment made to financial creditors and remaining liabilites
has been extinguished. Hence quarterly returns or statements of current assets with banks or financial institutions for the quarters ended
September 30th, 2023, December 31st, 2023 and March 31st, 2024 are not applicable.

During the previous year, pursuant to initiation of CIRP (Refer Note No. 1(a) to the financial statement for the year ended March 31st, 2023)
the Company has not filed quarterly returns or statements of current assets with banks or financial institutions for the quarters ended June
30th, 2022, September 30th, 2022, December 31st, 2022 and March 31st, 2023.

Current assets for this purpose includes loans and other receivables which are expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting
date.
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40.

41.

42.

43.

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

(A) During the year ended 31st March, 2024 and year ended 31st March, 2023, the Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds
(either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(I) date and amount of fund advanced or loaned or invested in Intermediaries with complete details of each Intermediary.

(1) date and amount of fund further advanced or loaned or invested by such Intermediaries to other intermediaries or Ultimate
Beneficiaries alongwith complete details of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(1) date and amount of guarantee, security or the like provided to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(IV) declaration that relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and Companies Act has been
complied with for such transactions and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering act, 2002 (15 of
2003).

(B) During the year ended 31st March, 2024 and yearended 31st March, 2023, the Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group
shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(I) date and amount of fund received from Funding parties with complete details of each Funding party.

() date and amount of fund further advanced or loaned or invested other intermediaries or Ultimate Beneficiaries alongwith complete
details of the other intermediaries’ or ultimate beneficiaries.

(1) date and amount of guarantee, security or the like provided to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(IV) declaration that relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and Companies Act has been
complied with for such transactions and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering act, 2002 (15 of
2003).

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31st, 2024 & March 31st,
2023.

Capital Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Group complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the
previous years. As stated in Note No. 1(a) and 52 CIRP was initiated in respect of the Company w.e.f. October 8, 2021 and the resolution
plan of NARCL was approved by Hon'ble NCLT vide order dated August 11, 2023. Based on the implementation steps as per approved
resolution plan, the successful resolution applicant has adhered to the indicative timelines and is confident of improving the loan recovery,
negotiated settlements, restructurings including pursual of the arbitration awards, claims, legal cases etc. which would result in the Company
being able to meet its committed obligations in due course of time. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Group and provides additional information on consolidated
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income
and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of Financial Asset, Financial Liability and Equity Instrument are disclosed in Note No.
1(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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43. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (Contd.)
A) Categories of Financial Instruments
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments: (Xin Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
EIGTLDRELTCR S TATENNEN  Carrying Value  Fair Value

Particulars

Financial Assets
a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 63,884 63,884 2,56,419 2,56,419
ii) Bank Balance other than (i) above 3,107 3,107 18,604 18,604
ii) Trade Receivables 2,098 2,098 2,213 2,213
iv) Other Receivables - - - -
v) Loans 2,79,596 2,84,021 9,27,485 9,54,848
vi) Investments 9,192 9,226 8,981 8,993
vii) Other Financial Assets 841 841 1,871 1,871
Sub-total 3,58,718 3,63,177 12,15,573 12,42,948
b) Measured at Fair value through Profit or Loss

i) Loans 18,968 18,968 19,091 19,091
ii) Investments 26,582 26,582 56,134 56,134
i) Other financial assets = = 62,196 62,196
Sub-total 45,550 45,550 1,37,421 1,37,421
¢) Measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

i) Investments 34,209 34,209 43,585 43,585
ii) Loans - - 2,687 2,687
Sub-total 34,209 34,209 46,272 46,272
Total Financial Assets 4,38,477 4,42,936 13,99,266  14,26,641

Financial Liabilities
a) Measured at Amortised Cost

i) Trade Payables 277 277 7,164 7,164
ii) Debt Securities 2,97,597 2,97,607 2,59,944 2,59,944
iii) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 525 538 26,69,340  26,69,423
iv) Subordinated Liabilities 6,236 6,236 2,95,458 2,95,458
v) Lease Liabilities 353 353 638 638
vi) Other Financial Liabilities 11,354 11,354 15,343 15,343
Sub-total 3,16,342 3,16,365 32,47,887  32,47,970

b) Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

i) Derivative Financial Instruments = - - -
Sub-total = = - -
Total Financial Liabilities 3,16,342 3,16,365 32,47,887  32,47,970

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Group’s financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies
and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables.

Loans measured at amortised cost

The fair values of loan assets are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on observable future cash flows based on terms, discounted
at the average lending rate.

Investments measured at amortised cost

The fair values of Investments at amortised cost (quoted bonds) are estimated using the most recent quoted price available from a recognised
stock exchange.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Other financial assets have assets with short-term maturity (less than twelve months) as on consolidated balance sheet date and therefore, the
carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Such instruments majorly include: Cash and Cash Equivalents, Other Bank Balances, Trade and Other Receivables and Security Deposits.
Debt Securities, Subordinated Liabilities and Other Borrowings measured at amortised cost

The fair values of collateralised borrowings are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual future cash flows based on
terms, discounted at average borrowing rate. The fair value of debt securities are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual
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43. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (Contd.)

future cash flows based on terms considering net present value (NPV) for NCD-1, NCD-2,NCD-3, NCD-4 & NCD-5 @ 8%, 10%, 10%,12% & 12%
per annum respectively in terms of the approved resolution plan.

The fair values of subordinated liabilities are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on projected recovery, considering the NPV
@ 12% per annum for the next five years.

For all other Debt Securities, Subordinated Liabilities and Other Borrowings, pursuant to CIRP (Refer Note No. 1(a) and 52) the carrying value
as at March 31st, 2024 has been considered as fair value.
Other financial liabilities and lease liabilities measured at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities have liability with short-term maturity (less than twelve months) as on consolidated balance sheet date and therefore,
the carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

Such instruments majorly include: Trade and Other payables and Trade Deposits.
B) Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed
equity instruments that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the
closing price as at the reporting period.

Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example
over-the counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as
possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, Loans and Other Financial Assets included in level 3.

(X in Lacs)
. As at 31st March, 2024
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Loans - - 18,968 18,968
Investments 33,752 306 27,259 61,317
Other Financial Assets

33,752 306 46,227 80,285

(Xin Lacs)

As at 31st March, 2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Particulars

Financial Assets

Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Loans - - 21,778 21,778
Investments 22,942 1,439 75,338 99,719
Other Financial Assets - - 62,196 62,196
22,942 1,439 1,599,312 1,83,693

Note: Fair value of the Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

(X in Lacs)
Fair Value As at Fair Value Valuation Significant
Particulars 31st March,  31st March, Heirarchy  Technique and Unobservable
2024 2023 Key Input Input
Financial Assets
Loans 18,968 21,778 Level 3 Note (i) Note (v), (vi) & (viii)
Other Financial Assets - 62,196 Level 3 Note (i) Note (ix)
Investments 33,752 22,942 Level 1 Note (ii) Not Applicable
Investments 306 1,439 Level 2 Note (iii) & (iv) Not Applicable
Investments 27,259 75,338 Level 3 Note (i) & (v) Note (vi) & (vii)

Annual Report 2023-24 |153




$REI

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024
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(i) Income Approach

The discounted cash flow method was used to capture the present value of the the expected future benefits (including contractual cash flows)
to be derived from the Loans, Investments and Other Financial Assets.

(ii) Quoted Prices

Quoted bid prices of an active market was used.

(iii) Comparable Company Method

Relevant information from companies operating in similar economic environment and industry was used.

(iv) Price to Revenue/Earnings Multiple Method

Price was derived as a multiple of revenue/earnings based on relevant information from companies operating in similar economic environment
and industry

(v) Other Inputs
(a) Market Multiple Method: Relevant information from companies operating in similar economic environment and industry was used.
(b) Discounted Cash Flow Method: Present value of the expected future benefits to be derived from the underlying Assets.
(c) Net Asset Valuation Method: Value of the underlying net assets of the business.

(vi) Discount rate, determined using average lending rate of the Company or discount rate considered by the valuer.

(vii) Estimated future cash flows.

(viii) The fair value of loans is derived based on the valuation of the underlying assets.

(ix) Probability of recovery and discount rate considered by the Valuer.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

(Xin Lacs)

Reconciliation Loans Investments Other Financial Assets @
Il 2022-23 BRIVERYNM  2022-23 RIVERIN  2022-23

Opening Balance 21,778 55,649 75,338  1,21,871 62,196 72,542
Purchases/Addition 3,007 2,190 - 627 - -

Sales/Repayments/Transfers to amortised cost * (2,687)  (13,501) (6,226) (13,869) = -
Transfers into Level 3 -
Transfers from Level 3 = -

Net interest income, net trading income and other income (3,130) - (15,681) - = -
Unrealised income/(loss)# - (22,265)  (26,172)  (33,291)  (62,196)  (10,346)
Other Comprehensive Income = (295) = - = -
Closing Balance 18,968 21,778 27,259 75,338 - 62,196

*includes write off

# includes Exceptional ltems

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservahle market data

The table below describes the effect of changing the significant unobservable inputs to reasonable possible alternatives. Sensitivity data are
calculated using a number of techniques, including analysing price dispersion of different price sources, adjusting model inputs to reasonable
changes within the fair value methodology.

The ranges are not comparable or symmetrical as the model inputs are usually not in the middle of the favourable/unfavourable range.

(Xin Lacs)
- As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Reconciliation —
Favourable Changes Unfavourable Changes Favourable Changes Unfavourable Changes

Loans at FVTPL 362 (349) 666 (631)
Investments @ 416 (365) 1,219 (1,193)
Other Financial Assets = = 1,723 (1,172)
Total 778 (714) 3,608 (2,996)

@ Impact of increase/decrease in the fair value measurement at 2% excludes those cases of Security Receipts, wherein provision as per RBI
circular DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2022-23 dated June 28, 2022 is higher than fair value measurement as derived by registered valuer.
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C) Financial risk management objectives

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

The Company has reconstituted the Risk Management Committee including constitution of its sub committees viz Operational Risk
Management Committee of Executives, Credit Risk Management Committee of Exectives and the Product & Process Approval
Committee. The Asset Liability Management Committee has also been reconstituted. The Financial risk management framework
would further undergo revision constitution of Board.

a) Market risk

The Group's Financial Instruments are exposed to market changes. The Group is exposed to the following significant market risk:
i. Foreign Currency Risk

ii. Interest Rate Risk

iii. Other Price Risk

i. Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currency which results in exchange rate fluctuations. Such exchange

rate risk primarily arises from transactions made in foreign exchange and reinstatement risks arising from recognised assets and
liabilities, which are not in the Group's functional currency (Indian Rupees).

The Group is having any Foreign Curreny Exposure of USD 245,529 as on 31st March, 2024 (Nil- 31 March 2023). Hence, the
Company's profit and loss and equity is exposed to such foreign currency risk.

The borrowings of the Company has been realigned in terms of the approved resolution plan (Refer Note No 1(a) and 52). In terms
of the approved resolution plan, there is no foreign currency risk and consequently foreign currency sensitivity is not applicable
as at March 31st, 2024.

Foreign Currency Exposure

(% in Lacs)
As at 31st March, 2024 usD Euro Total
Financial Asstes 2,45,529 - 2,45,529
As at 31st March, 2023 usD Euro Total
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 1,46,388 80,529 2,26,917
(% in Lacs)
Hedged Foreign Currency bhalances: Currency As at
S NETHvAIPZY  31st March, 2023
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) usb = -
EUR - -
(% in Lacs)
Unhedged Foreigh Curency balances Currency As at
SRR ET(A WAIPZE  31st March, 2023
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) usb = 1,46,388
EURO = 80,529
Foreign currency sensitivity
Impact on increase in 2%
(% in Lacs)
Currency As at 31st March, 2023
usb -
EUR -

Impact on decrease in 2%

Currency As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

usb
EUR
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ii. Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as the Group borrows foreign currency funds at fixed plus floating interest rate benchmarks. The Group
manages this risk by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings, and by use of derivative hedging products like
interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps. It is pertinent to note that the Group is absolutely dependent on banks for such hedging
limits.

SIFL and SEFL have undergone CIRP under the provisions of the Code and subsequently, resolution plan of NARCL has been approved by Hon'ble
NCLT vide order dated August 11th, 2023. The borrowings of the Group has been realigned in terms of the approved resolution plan (Refer Note
No 1(a) and 52). In terms of the approved resolution plan, there is no interest rate risk and consequently interest rate sensitivity is not applicable
as at March 31st, 2024.

The group is further exposed to interest rate risk as the group lends funds at floating interest rates.

Interest Rate Exposure [Financial Instruments at variable interest rates]

(zin lacs)

As at 31st March, 2024 INR EUR UsD Total
Financial Assets

Loans 3,47,608 - - 3,47,608
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - - - -

Subordinated Liabilities - - - -
As at 31st March, 2023 INR EUR usD Total
Financial Assets

Loans 5,70,810 - - 5,70,810

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - - - -
Subordinated Liabilities - - - -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Group's
consolidated statement of profit and loss and equity.

Interest Rate Sensitivities for outstanding exposure (impact on increase in 2%) zin lacs)
Currency As at 31st March, 2023
INR 6,952 11,416

usb -

EUR -

Interest Rate Sensitivities for outstanding exposure (impact on decrease in 2%) (xin lacs)

Currency As at 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023

INR (6,952) (11,416)
usD = -
EUR = -
Figures in brackets indicate decrease in profit.

In some cases, the Group has entered into cross currency swap and interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk. The Group's profit and
loss and equity is not exposed to interest rate sensitivity to that extent.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. For floating rate assets and liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liabilities/assets outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year and the rates are reset as per the applicable reset dates.

iii. Price risk
Equity price risk is related to change in market reference price of investments in equity securities held by the Group. The fair value of quoted
investments held by the Group exposes the Group to equity price risks. In general, these investments are not held for trading purposes. The fair

value of quoted investments in equity, classified as fair value through Profit and Loss/fair value through Other Comprehensive Income as at
31st March, 2024 is X 28,607 Lacs (31st March, 2023: X 16,603 Lacs)

A 10% change in equity prices of such securities held as at 31st March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023 would result in an impact of ¥ 2,861 Lacs
in 31st March, 2024 (31st March, 2023 ¥ 1,660 Lacs).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024

43. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures (Contd.)
c) Credit risk

Credit Risk is the risk of default of the counterparty to repay its obligations in a timely manner resulting in financial loss. The principal business
of the Company was to provide financing in the form of loans to its clients primarily to acquire assets and infrastructure lending. As per the
Resolution plan SEFL would be focussing on recovery in the existing portfolio and fresh business will be pursued in SIFL. No fresh business is
intended to be pursued in SEFL. Recovery initiatives including periodic reviews to formulate recovery strategies are being done in accordance
with the Stressed Asset Management Policy. The new management is also in the process of reviewing the existing Stressed Asset Management
Policy.

The Company uses the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Methodology to assess the impairment on both loan assets and trade receivables as per
accounting standards. In addition, the Company also assesses impairment on such assets as per RBI guidelines and accounted for in the books
as per regulatory guidelines.

d) Operational Risk

The Group is exposed to operational risk in view of the nature of its business. Operational risk arises out of failed process, people, system or
external events. Accordingly framework for risk control self-assessment has been prepared to evaluate process lapses. In the light of the evolving
business scenario, the IT systems of the Group are being reviewed periodically to identify improvement areas and put in place enhanced controls
to minimise operational risk.

The Operational Risk Framework has been strengthened post CIRP [Refer Note No. 1(a)] to include risk control matrices and risk control self-
assessment framework. The Policy framework within the organization has been strengthened within the organization with review of policies of
the Group viz Credit Policy, Risk Policy and Stressed Asset Management Policy.

44. Transfers of financial assets
Transfers of financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety:

The Group has not carried out securitisation transactions during year ended 31st March, 2024 and financial year ended 31st March, 2023. There
is no carrying amounts and fair values of all financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their entirety and associated liabilities as at
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

45. Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

The Group has obtained certain non-financial assets during the year by taking possession of collaterals or underlying assets on default by the
party. The Group’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be released back to the customer or should be sold. Assets which are
identified for sale are classified as Repossessed Assets and Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt at their fair value or carrying value, whichever
is lower. The Group’s policy is to realise collateral on a timely basis.

The table below outlines the nature and values of assets acquired in satisfaction of debt obtained during the year and where still lying with the
Company as at the year end:

(% in Lacs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023
Land - -
Others 908 2,710
Total assets obtained by taking possession of collateral 908 2,710

46. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19-Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Group has recognised, in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2024 an amount of ¥ 383 Lacs (for the
year ended 31st March, 2023 X 452 Lacs) as expenses under defined contribution plans.

Defined benefit plans
(A) Gratuity Fund:

The Group makes contributions to Defined Benefit Plans for qualifying employees. The scheme is funded by way of separate irrevocable trust.
The fund is managed internally by the Group. These Plans are administered through approved Trusts, which operate in accordance with the Trust
Deeds, Rules and applicable Statutes. The concerned Trusts are managed by Trustees who provide strategic guidance with regard to the management
of their investments and liabilities and also periodically review their performance. The Trustees of the gratuity scheme for the employees of the
Group have interested the administration of the scheme to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).
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The liabilities arising in the Defined Benefit Schemes are determined in accordance with the advice of independent, professionally qualified actuaries,
using the projected unit credit method. The Group makes regular contributions to these Employee Benefit Plans. Additional contributions are made
to these plans as and when required based on actuarial valuation. Some Group companies also participate in these Plans. These participating
Group companies make contributions to the Plans for their respective employees on a uniform basis and each entity ascertains their obligation
through actuarial valuation. The net Defined benefit cost is recognised by these companies in their respective Financial Statements.

Under the Gratuity plan, every employee is entitled to gratuity, being higher of the amount, calculated under the Group's plan (based on last
monthly salary and number of years of service) or calculations as laid down under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Gratuity is payable on death/
retirement/termination and the benefit vests after 5 year of continuous service.

(B) Long-term Compensated Absence:

The employees' long-term compensated absence scheme, which is a Defined Benefit Plan is unfunded.

Risk Management

The Defined Benefit Plans expose the Group to risk of actuarial deficit arising out of interest rate risk, salary inflation risk and demographic risk.

(@) Interest rate risk: The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined
benefit obligation will tend to increase.

(b) Salary Inflation risk: Higher than expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

(c) Demographic Risk: This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of
salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement
benefit of short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to long service employee.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at 31st March, 2024.

46.1 Particulars in respect of employee benefits of the Group are as follows:

(% in Lacs)
- | Gramiy | Leave

Description As at As at As at As at

31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023 [ R £ U/ F:1(H 172 Sy 4 ET(H WA I P2
Authorised
Change in the defined benefit obligation
Present Value of Obligation at the Beginning of the period/year 1,251 1,217 85 88
Current Service Cost 100 107 103 100
Interest Cost 78 74 5 -
Employer Contribution (6) (30) - -

Settlement (Credit)/cost - 5 - -
Acquisitions Cost/credit o - - -

Actuarial (gain)/loss 57 (1) (4) 39
Actuarial (gain)/loss-financial assumptions 5 166 (1) 13
Actuarial (gain)/loss-demographic assumptions 16 s - -
Benefits paid (304) (282) (126) (155)
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period/year 1,197 1,251 62 85
Change in plan assets

Fair value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the period/year 1,390 841 NA NA
Expected return on Plan Assets 3 8 NA NA
Interest income on Plan Assets 85 71 NA NA
Contributions by the Employer 6 748 NA NA
Return on Plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate = 2 NA NA
Benefits paid (304) (275) NA NA
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year/period 1,180 1,390 NA NA

Basis used to determine the Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets
The expected return on plan assets is determined based on government bond rate.
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46.1 Particulars in respect of employee benefits of the Group are as follows: (Contd.)
(% in Lacs)

Gratuity Leave

Description As at As at As at As at
YRR WAPZ S 31st March, 2023 sy ELH A 728 31st March, 2023

Amount recognised in Consolidated Balance Sheet consists of:

Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the period/year 1,180 1,390 s -
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period/year 1,197 1,251 62 85
Net (Asset)/Liabilities recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
in respect of defined benefits 17 (139) 62 85
(% in Lacs)
Gratuity Leave

Description As at As at As at As at
EYEETC WArZ 8 31st March, 2023 EY A ETH A28 31st March, 2023

Expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss consists of:

Employee benefits expenses:

Current Service cost 100 107 103 100
Net Interest cost (11) (3) - -
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss = - (7) 48
Total [A] 89 104 96 148
Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from experience adjustments 57 (1) (4) 42
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from financial assumptions 22 166 (1) 13
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest cost) - (2) - -
Total [B] 79 163 2 4
Expense recognised during the year [A+B] 168 267 98 152

46.2 Particulars of Investment Details of Plan Assets are as follows:

(% in Lacs)
Descrinti Gratuity % Invested Leave % Invested
escription As at As at As at As at

EYEET A P28 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Investment Details of Plan Assets
Schemes of insurance-conventional products 100% 100% Not Applicable  Not Applicable

46.3 Principal Assumptions used are as follows:

Discount rate per annum 7.00% 7.20% 7.00% 7.20%

Salary escalation rate per annum 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

46.4 The estimate of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand in the employee market.

46.5 Sensitivity Analysis

The Sensitivity Analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the
listed assumptions in isolation. While each of these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change
in isolation and the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting the sensitivities, the present value of the Defined
Benefit Obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied
in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of
the Sensitivity Analysis from previous year.
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46.5 Sensitivity Analysis (Contd.)

(% in Lacs)
Gratuity % Invested Leave % Invested
Description Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave
% (% in Lacs) % (X in Lacs) % (% in Lacs) % (% in Lacs)
Discount Rate + 100 basis points -2.42% (29) -1.61% (1) -27.66% (346) -38.82% (33)
Discount Rate — 100 basis points 2.59% 31 3.23% 2 31.41% 393 44.71% 38
Salary Increase Rate + 1% 2.26% 27 3.23% 2 20.22% 253 43.53% 37
Salary Increase Rate — 1% -2.09% (25) -1.61% (1) -18.15% (227) -38.82% (33)

46.6 Maturity Analysis of The Benefit Payments

(% in Lacs)
As at

As at
Expected payment for future years 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023

Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave

Year 1 398 18 97 16
Year 2 263 13 51 2
Year 3 212 10 79 3
Year 4 144 7 115 5
Year 5 112 6 98 4
Next 5 Years 235 13 966 37

46.7 Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligations: Gratuity-12 years (31st March, 2023: 12 years). Leave-12 years (31st March, 2023:
13 years)

47. Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24 - "Related Party Disclosures"
Related Parties:

Holding Company: Country of Origin

Adisri Commercial Private Limited (ceased w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

Subsidiary of Holding Company: Country of Origin

Srei Factors Private Limited (ceased w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

Adisri Strategic Advisors Private Limited (ceased w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

Adisri Leasing Private Limited (ceased w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

Shareholders as per Approved Resolution Plan having substantial shareholding: Country of Origin

National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited (w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

India Debt Resolution Company Limited (w.e.f. 19.12.2023) India

Trusts: Country of Origin

Srei Mutual Fund Trust India

Others: Country of Origin

Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited Employees Gratuity Fund India

Directors/Key Management Personnel (KMP):

Name Designation

Mr. Rajneesh Sharma (w.e.f. 04.10.2021 till 26.02.2024) * Administrator

Mr. Sivaraman Naravanaswami (w.e.f. 26.02.2024) Chairman & Independent Director

Mr. P Santhosh (w.e.f. 26.02.2024) Nominee Director

Mr. Avinash Kulkarni (w.e.f. 26.02.2024) Nominee Director

Mr. Sunil Srivastav (w.e.f. 26.02.2024) Independent Director

Ms. Anuradha Mitra (w.e.f. 05.04.2024) Independent Director

Mr. Hardayal Prasad (w.e.f. 05.04.2024) Managing Director & CEQ

Mr. Manoj Kumar Company Secretary & Chief Compliance Officer
Mr. Vishnu Gopal Agarwal Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Syed Faisal Aquil (w.e.f. 30.11.2023 till 15.04.2024) Manager

Mr. Souren Mokhopadhyay (ceased w.e.f. 18.07.2022) Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Sandeep Agarwal (w.e.f. 14-08-2023 till 26.02.2024) Member of Implementation & Monitoring Committee
Mr. Pavel Poddar (w.e.f. 14-08-2023 till 26.02.2024) Member of Implementation & Monitoring Committee
Mr. Manveet Vyas (w.e.f. 14-08-2023 till 26.02.2024) Member of Implementation & Monitoring Committee
Mr. Sudha Raina (w.e.f. 14-08-2023 till 26.02.2024) Member of Implementation & Monitoring Committee
Mrs. Mahua Mukherjee (ceased w.e.f. 18.07.2022) Relative of KMP

* In exercise of the powers conferred under Section 45-1E (1) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) had vide Press Release dated
4th October, 2021 superseded the Board of Directors of Srei Infrastructure Finance Limited (SIFL). The Reserve Bank of India has appointed Mr. Rajneesh Sharma
as the Administrator of SIFL under Section 45-IE (2) of the RBI Act w.e.f. 04.10.2021. Post implementation of resolution plan as approved by NCLT vide order dated
11.08.2023, the new Board has been re-constituted w.e.f. 26.02.2024 and Mr. Rajneesh Sharma has been appointed as Principal Advisor to Board.
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47. Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 24 - "Related Party Disclosures" : (Contd.)

(% in Lacs)
Name of related party & Nature of relationship Nature of For the year Balance For the year Balance
Transactions ended As at ended As at
31st March,  31st March, 31st March,  31st March,
2024 2024 2023 2023

(A) Remuneration to Directors/Key Management
Personnel (KMP):

Mr. Souren Mukhopadhay ( w.e.f. 30.06.2021) Remuneration - - 38 -
Mr. Manoj Kumar (w.e.f. 01.04.2021) Remuneration 67 - 45 -
Mr. Vishnu Gopal Agarwal (w.e.f. 21.03.2022) Remuneration 46 - 39 -
Mr. Syed Faisal Aquil (w.e.f. 30.11.2023) Remuneration 3 - - -
Mr. Sivaraman Naravanaswami Sitting Fees 4 - - -
Mr. Sunil Srivastav Sitting Fees 2 - - -
Mr. Rajneesh Sharma Consultancy 90 - 108 -
Mrs. Mahua Mukherijee, relative of KMP (w.e.f. 30.06.2022)  Car Hire Charges - - 2 -
Mrs. Sangeeta Agarwal, relative of KMP (w.e.f. 21.03.2022)  Car Hire Charges 6 - 6 -

Note 1. Settlement of outstanding balances as at year end generally occurs in cash.
Note 2. Income or expenses are presented excluding GST.
Note 3. All the related party transactions have been made in the ordinary course of business and the same are generally at arm's length price.

(C) Compensation to KMPs:

(X in Lacs)
Particulars | anu B
Short-term benefit 206 221
Other long-term employee benefit 2 3
Post-employment benefit 4 7
48. Leases
a. Inthe capacity of Lessee

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar end date.

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date
of initial application.

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only
to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.

(i) The Group has certain cancellable operating lease arrangements for office premises, which range between 11 months to 15 years and
are usually renewable by mutual consent, on mutually agreeable terms. Some of these lease agreements have rent escalation upto 5%
p.a. or 10% p.a. on renewals.

(i) The Company had no non-cancellable operating lease arrangements for office premises during current and previous year.
(iii) Disclosure in accordance to Ind AS 116 is as below:

(X in Lacs)

. Particulars m 2022-23

a  Short term lease payment 362 575
b Expense relating to leases of low-value assets - -
¢ Variance lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liability - -
d Income from subleasing right of use assets = -
e Total Cash outflow for leases 771 1,062
f  Interest expense on Lease liability 103 88
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48. Leases (Contd.)
g The future lease payments considered for lease liability on an undiscounted basis are as follows:

(% in Lacs)

Particulars As at
31st March, 2024

Less than one year 345
One to five years 274
More than five years -
Total 619
h  Details of right of use assets and its movement is as below:

(% in Lacs)

Paraticulars As at Additions Adjustment As at
1st April, 2023 31st March, 2024

Office Premises:

Right of use Assets 2,506 334 255 2,585
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation 1,999 282 - 2,281
Net Carrying amount 507 304
(% in Lacs)

Paraticulars As at Additions Adjustment As at

1st April, 2022 31st March, 2023
Office Premises:
Right of use Assets 2,280 228 2 2,506
Accumulated Depreciation/Amortisation 1,567 432 - 1,999
Net Carrying amount 713 507

b. Inthe capacity of Lessor

(i) The Group has given assets on Operating lease for periods ranging between 1 to 15 years. Some of the arrangements have clauses for
contingent rent. Total contingent rent recognized as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31st, 2024 is
amounting to ¥ 8 Lacs (As at March 31st, 2023 : ¥ 55 Lacs)

(i) The Group also has cancellable operating lease arrangements for office premises, which range between 1 to 3 years and are usually renewable
by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

(iii) Details of rental income towards operating lease for assets and office premises including sublease are as follows:
(X in Lacs)

Particulars | e [JERE

Rental Income on the basis of earnings of the Lessee s -
Others 12,960 20,355
Total Rental Income 12,960 20,355

(iv) Details of fixed future lease receivable towards operating lease for assets and office premises are as follows:

(X in Lacs)
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Not later than one year 2,832 11,357
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,620 3,360
Later than five years - 560
Total 4,452 15,277
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49. Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

(X in Lacs)
As 31st March, 2024 As at 31st March, 2023
Assets Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months

Cash and Cash Equivalents 63,884 = 63,884 2,56,419 - 256,419
Bank Balance other than above 2,375 732 3,107 12,703 5,901 18,604
Trade Receivables 2,098 = 2,098 2,213 - 2,213
Loans # * 8,812 2,89,752  2,98,564 1,28,758  10,18,709 11,47,467
Liability towards Assignment ** - - - (1,98,124) (80) (1,98,204)
Investments 15,452 54,531 69,983 5,869 1,02,831 1,08,700
Other Financial Assets 415 426 841 48,553 15,514 64,067
Current Tax Assets (Net) 368 22,674 23,042 369 6,483 6,852
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) = 642 642 - 552 552
Property, Plant and Equipment - 80,305 80,305 - 1,33,184  1,33,184
Rights of Use-Assets 54 250 304 70 437 507
Other Intangible Assets = S 315 - 542 542
Intangible Assets under development = 6 6 - - -
Other Non-Financial Assets 2,014 898 2,912 22,702 924 23,626
Total 95,472 4,50,531 5,46,003 2,79,532 12,84,997 15,64,530

# Performing Loans are stipulated in time buckets as per the original/revised repayment schedule and non-performing loans are in the 3 to 5 year
time-bucket and over 5 year time-bucket as per RBI guideline.

* Receivables on account of assigned loans/lease/other receivables have been adjusted from loans only. Entire operating lease receivables of NPA
assigned cases has been reversed, however for ALM purpose the same has been considered "over 3 & upto 5 years" and "above 5 years" bucket
as per RBI guidelines.

** As at March 31st, 2024, maturity analysis of loans has been shown after considering of assigned pool outstanding. As at March 31st, 2023,
amount in first bucket includes certain liabilities prior to initiation of CIRP, which are subject to reconciliation.

(% in Lacs)
As at 31st March, 2023
Liabilities Within 12 After 12 Total Within 12 After 12 Total
Months Months Months Months

Derivative Financial Instruments - - - - - -
Trade Payables 277 - 277 2,803 - 7,164
Debt Securities™ - 297,597 297,597 - - 2,59,944
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)** 414 111 525 2,726 525 26,69,340
Subordinated Liabilities™** = 6,236 6,236 - 33,000 2,95,458
Lease Liabilities 82 271 353 91 547 638
Other Financial Liabilities 11,009 345 11,354 13,977 751 15,343
Provisions 27 134 161 70 15,278 15,348
Other Non-Financial Liabilities 1,315 1,33,670 1,34,985 1,976 1,948 3,988
Total 13,124 4,38,364 4,51,488 21,643 52,049 32,67,223

* In terms of the approved resolution plan, in case of early recoveries from the underlying assets, SEFL shall have option to make accelerated
payment on NCDs at a pre defined discounting rate for computing net present value on the date of accelerated payment. NCDs, if outstanding at
the end of respective redemption date from the date of allotment shall be transferred to the security receipt holders in the ratio of their holding
of the security receipts issued by the NARCL Trust - 0007.

** Repayments of borrowings have been considered as per the contractual obligations.

*** In terms of approved resolution plan, any recovery from underlying assets of SEFL after payments of all NCDs shall be used to repay the
0CDs .

In case of early recoveries from the underlying assets, SEFL shall have option to make accelerated payment on the OCDs at an net present value
(NPV) computed on the date of accelerated payment.

Conversion at the option of holder from the beginning of the 6th year till maturity. Conversion at the option of SEFL at the end of 8 years. Any
outstanding amount at the end of year 8 shall be converted into equity at fair value.

50. Segment Reporting

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of "financial services" which is considered to be the only reportable segment in terms of Ind AS
108. Revenue from other segmnents is less than 10% of the combined total revenue. Hence, there is no requirement of segment reporting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the year ended 31st March, 2024

52. Implementation of Consolidated Resolution Plan

In terms of the approved resolution plan, an Implementation and Monitoring Committee (“IMC”) has been constituted which is empowered
to supervise the implementation of the approved resolution plan and oversee the management of the affairs of the Company as per the terms
of the approved resolution plan till the closing date. The IMC in its meeting dated August 16, 2023 passed a resolution appointing the
Administrator as Chairman of IMC and vide IMC resolution dated August 17, 2023 authorised him to continue to operate all the bank accounts
and undertake various activities as are required to ensure the Company’s status as a going concern during the implementation of the approved
resolution plan. IMC stands dissolved and the Board of the Company was re-constituted on February 26, 2024 to take charge of the affairs
of the Gompany.

Important provisions of approved resolution plan along with various steps undertaken for the implementation of approved resolution plan
are given below:

(i) The approved resolution plan shall be binding on the Company and other stakeholders involved in terms of Section 31 of the Code.

(i) The administrator shall stand discharged from his duties with effect from the order dated August 11, 2023, save and except the duties
envisaged in the resolution plan.

(iii) An Implementation and Monitoring Committee (“IMC”) has been constituted which is empowered to manage the affairs of the Company
till the closing date. Thereafter implementation is carried out by IMC for implementation of the resolution plan.

(iv) IMC has received the Implementation Notice dated September 22, 2023 from NARCL in terms of the approved resolution plan and referring
to the Reallocation Notice dated September 21, 2023 issued by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) (CoC Re-allocation Notice), notifying the
Effective Date as September 22, 2023, being the date on which NARCL, as the Resolution Applicant proposed to commence the Steps set
out in Section 4 (Steps of Implementation) of the approved resolution plan.

(v) The Company, on instructions of the IMC, has taken necessary steps including making payments, to various stakeholders in terms of
the approved Resolution Plan as mentioned hereinafter.

(vi) The Company had filed the application for delisting of the Equity Shares and the Debt instruments of the Company from the respective
stock exchanges i.e. National Stock Exchange (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) in terms of steps for the implementation as provided
in the approved resolution plan. Accordingly, the record date for delisting of equity shares and perpetual debt instruments issued by the
Company was fixed on Friday, October 6, 2023. Subsequently, these equity shares and Perpetual Debts were delisted by both the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE and NSE with effect from December 14, 2023.

(vii) The existing equity share capital of ¥ 50,309 Lacs has been cancelled/extinguished via capital reduction without payment of any
compensation to the shareholders. The corresponding amount has been transferred to Restructuring Reserve.

(viii) The Company has issued 4,60,000 equity shares with a face value of ¥ 10 each to the Resolution Applicant, NARCL, and 2,00,000 equity
shares with a face value of ¥ 10 each to India Debt Resolution Company Limited (IDRCL). Additionally, the Company has allotted 2,00,000
equity shares, each with a face value of ¥ 10, totalling ¥ 20 Lacs, to Approving Financial Creditors (AFC) in exchange for the assignment
of AFCs' Debt. Furthermore, 1,00,000 equity shares with a face value of ¥ 10 each were issued to Kairos ESOP Welfare Trust.

(ix) The existing issued share capital of SEFL, amounting to ¥ 7802 Lacs was cancelled and extinguished by way of Capital Reduction on
December 19, 2023. SEFL will make cash payment of ¥ 50,000 Lacs to SIFL as compensation of cancellation of share capital.

(x) SEFL has allotted Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) of ¥ 8,00,000 Lacs having face value of ¥ 1,000 each to domestic lenders and
PNB Investment Services Ltd as security trustee for the benefit of assenting ECB lenders and assenting NCD holders in terms of the approved
resolution plan vide IMC resolution on December 19, 2023 excluding one of the lender amounting to ¥ 151 Lacs due to non-receipt of necessary
documents. In terms of the approved resolution plan, these OCDs are ‘payable when able’ basis with a possible conversion into equity and
considering the non-visibility of future recovery for making payments towards such uncommitted instruments, the Company has considered
initial recognition of OCD as "financial liability" as per IND AS 32 and to be recorded at fair value of ¥ 6,028 Lacs in the books of accounts as
per IND AS 109.

(xi) SEFL has allotted Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of X 4,50,638 Lacs having face value of ¥ 1,000 each to NARCL Trust-0007 as
portion of assigned debt in terms of the approved resolution plan vide IMC resolution on December 26, 2023. These New NCDs are secured
by a first charge on the receivables of SEFL, both present and future, from its assets. The Company has filed form CHG-9 for the aforesaid
securities and the same is pending for approval. In terms of the approved resolution plan, accelerated payment made to NARCL
Trust-0007 against NCD 1 on March 27, 2024 basis NPV @ 8% for ¥ 18,291 Lacs and has been extinguished with the depositories.

(xii) SEFL has allotted Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of ¥ 11,69,168 Lacs having face value of ¥ 100 each to NARCL
Trust-0007 in lieu of the balance portion of the assigned debt in terms of the approved resolution plan vide IMC resolution on December 26,
2023.
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54.

55.

(xiii) The Company and SEFL extinguished pre-CIRP liabilities towards outstanding operational creditors, Perpetual Debts and Government
dues through capital reduction process and transferred the corresponding amount to Restructuring Reserve.

(xiv) In terms of paragraph 2 (b) of Annex to the guidelines DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 issued
by RBI on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards for Non-Banking Finance Companies and Asset Reconstruction Companies, SEFL
has created Impairment Reserve of ¥ 6,21,376 Lacs as on September 30, 2023. Post approval of resolution plan SEFL has sought approval
from RBI for reversal of Impairment Reserve. RBI vide their email dated December 28, 2023 gave permission for reversing the Impairment
Reserve to give effect to the resolution plan. Accordingly impairment reserve of ¥ 6,21,376 Lacs as on September 30 2023 has been transferred
to restructuring reserve, and subsequently to retained earnings in terms of the approved resolution plan.

(xv) The Company and SEFL have transferred both statutory and non-statutory reserves to Restructuring Reserve. The total remaining balance
in Restructuring Reserves amounting to ¥ 24,54,593 Lacs which was later transferred to retained earnings.

(xvi) Capital Reserve of ¥ 1,04,744 Lacs created earlier on consolidation and goodwill of ¥ 683 Lacs on consolidation has been transferred
to Restructuring Reserve.

(xvii) All identifiable assets and liabilities of the Company has been recorded at their respective fair value and difference, if any, between the
fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities has been transferred to restructuring reserves.

(xviii) According to the NCLT order, certain relief and concessions requested in the Resolution Plan fall outside the jurisdiction of the NCLT.
Therefore, the SRA must seek these relief and concessions from the appropriate authority. The SRA is currently in the process of filing
applications with various authorities to obtain these relief and concessions. The impact of these actions, if any, will be reflected in the books
of accounts upon receiving responses from the respective authorities.

Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) and Scheme of Arrangement

During the year 2019-20, the Company and its subsidiary Company, Srei Equipment Finance Limited (SEFL) entered into an agreement dated
August 16, 2019, as amended (‘Business Transfer Agreement’) to transfer the Lending Business, Interest Earning Business & Lease Business
of SIFL together with associated employees, assets & liabilities (including liabilities towards issued & outstanding non - convertible debentures)
(Transferred Undertaking), as a going concern by way of slump exchange to the Company pursuant to the Business Transfer Agreement,
subject to all necessary approvals. Accordingly, the Company and SIFL passed the relevant accounting entries in their respective books of
account to reflect the slump exchange w.e.f. October 1, 2019 while allotment of shares by SEFL was made on December 31, 2019.

In terms of the resolution plan as approved by Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated August 11, 2023, for the ease of continuation of the
businesses of the Company as going concern and for the purposes of accounting, the slump exchange undertaken between the Company
and SEFL shall be considered to be effective from the effective date as provided under the Business Transfer Agreement dated August 16,
2019 (as amended), entered into between SEFL and SIFL, except as provided expressly in the approved resolution plan. Given that the
accounting treatment of the BTA has already been reflected in the audited financial statements ending March 31, 2020, no further accounting
impact is deemed necessary in the books of accounts to give effect to the resolution plan. It is further clarified that this treatment would be
without prejudice to the rights of the CoC to pursue any legal actions in respect of such slump exchange, against the erstwhile Promoters
or the Promoter Group.

IMC, vide its resolution dated December 19, 2023 has declared that December 31, 2023 is closing date of balance sheet for the purpose of
audit and its handover to the NARCL. The handover of the closing date balance sheet along with other necessary requirement including
Reconstitution of the Board was to be done by the IMC at a later date and post completion of the handover activities by the IMC to SRA it
was to be dissolved. The IMC has been dissolved and the Board of the Company has been reconstituted on February 26th, 2024 to take charge
of the affairs of the Company in terms of the approved resolution plan. Accordingly, effect of approved resolution plan has been given in the
audited financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2024.

The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been taken on record by the Board of Director of
the Company on June 5th, 2024. The IMC was dissolved and the Board was reconstituted on Fenruary 26th, 2024 till that time the affairs of
the Company were managed by IMC through the Administrator (acting as a chairman of the IMC). Earlier ,since the Administrator had taken
charge of the affairs of the Company on October 4th, 2021, the Administrator is not liable or responsible for any actions and has no personal
knowledge of any such actions of the Company prior to his appointment and has relied on the position of the financial results of the Company
as they existed on October 4th, 2021. However, subsequent to the approval of the resolution plan, which resolved the matter concerning
the Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) as detailed in Note No. 53 above, the financial statements as of the March 31st, 2024 had been
prepared in accordance with the treatment specified in the Resolution Plan. All identifiable assets and liabilities of the Company as of the
closing date had been recorded at the values stated in Note No.53 above. Regarding information pertaining to period prior to October 4th,
2021 the Administrator has relied upon the explanations, clarifications, certifications, representations and statements made by the Company
Officials (‘the existing officials of the Company’), who were also part of the Company prior to the appointment of the Administrator.
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As part of the Resolution process, audits and reviews of the Company's processes and compliances were conducted, with professionals
appointed to carry out transaction audits under Sections 43, 45, 50, and 66 of the Code. The Administrator received transaction audit reports
indicating fraudulent transactions amounting to ¥ 18,37,221 Lacs under Section 66, including ¥ 1,22,731 Lacs deemed as undervalued
transactions in SEFL. Subsequently, applications were filed under Sections 60(5) and 66 of the Code before the Kolkata bench of the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for adjudication. SEFL had created ECL provisioning to the extent of 100% of gross exposure on
such accounts, despite having some underlying securities as a matter of abundance prudence.

Further, based on transaction audit reports, the Administrator filed another application before the NCLT on November 18, 2022, seeking
adjudication for an amount of ¥ 84,787 Lacs representing the net shortfall in payments to SEFL's lenders assigned the Pool Loans as of
September 30th, 2021.

Pursuant to the approved distribution mechanism in terms of resolution plan and in view of ongoing litigation of pool lenders of
¥ 81,885 Lacs , SEFL has set-aside fund amounting to ¥ 15,599 Lacs and the balance amount of ¥ 66,287 Lacs has been extinguished by
issuance of equity shares followed by subsequent capital reduction. As per the resolution of the 16th IMC dated December 7, 2023 apart
from cash set aside portion of ¥ 15,599 Lacs, certain portion of Security Receipts is issued by NARCL Trust — 0007, which are backed by
NCDs of ¥ 62,278 Lacs (apart from cash set aside portion of ¥ 15,599 Lacs) issued by SEFL and ¥ 3,994 Lacs out of fund contributed by
NARCL has been set aside by the erstwhile CoC in the name of UCO Bank with respect to pool lenders.

The transaction audit has been completed and all the financial impact of the same has been incorporated in the audited financial statements.
Loan loss provisioning

SEFL has been following provision policy based on RBI circular on Implementation of Ind AS for NBFCs dated March 13, 2020 to create
Impairment Reserve which comprises of the excess provision as per Income Recognition, Asset classification and Provisioning norms (IRAC
norms) as compared to the provision as per the ECL model adopted by the Company.

Pursuant to aforesaid circular, the Company has created and maintained an Impairment Reserve in financial statement as on September 30,
2023.

Hon’ble NGLT vide its Order dated August 11, 2023 has approved the plan of the successful resolution applicant. In terms of approved
resolution plan, all the existing reserves of SEFL (other than retained earnings) shall be transferred to restructuring reserve account and the
balance in restructuring reserve account shall be transferred/adjusted to retained earnings of SEFL shall be construed as free reserves for
the purpose of Companies Act, 2013 and prescribed RBI guidelines. The same has also been approved by RBI vide email dated December
28, 2023.

In terms of approved resolution plan ‘the resolution applicant intends to continue corporate debtors as “a going concern” with a special focus
on the retail loan/lease portfolio.

Further the turnaround of business, as explained in plan, shall be carried out at SIFL level. SEFL shall continue to be a 100% subsidiary of
SIFL. The entire existing loan book portfolio and/or fixed assets/investments etc. which are meant for recovery and disposal shall be retained/
transferred in SEFL. Upon completion of recovery from the portfolio, SEFL will either be merged into SIFL or a new vertical of lending business
will be started in SEFL, or the business of SEFL may be transferred to any third party following the approach highlighted in the plan.

In view of the above stated facts, we are continuing with the existing ECL policy and wherever the ECL provision is lower than the requirement
as per IRAG provision, the Company shall make additional provision to the extent of IRAC provision as a Management overlay in ECL. This
shall be done on a consistent basis.

SEFL on the basis of abundant prudence, had decided to make provision to the extent of interest income recognised during the respective
period on Net Stage - Ill accounts. Accordingly, the Company has made a total provision of ¥ 6,734 Lacs on such accounts for year ended
March 31, 2024. This has resulted in increase in Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net) by % 6,734 Lacs and thereby increase in loss by
% 6,734 Lacs year ended March 31, 2024.

Accordingly based on the ECL policy, SEFL has made ECL provision aggregating to ¥ 77,024 Lacs and  6,39,549 Lacs for the quarter and
year ended March 31, 2024 respectively.

Going Concern

CIRP was initiated in respect of the Company w.e.f. October 8, 2021 and the resolution plan of NARCL was approved by Hon'ble NCLT vide
order dated August 11, 2023. The Company and SEFL has adhered to the implementation of resolution plan as per the indicative timelines.
Accordingly, based on the implementation of the resolution plan, the successful resolution applicant is confident of improving the credit
profile of the Company and SEFL, including through time-bound monetisation of assets including arbitration awards, claims and legal cases
which would result in it being able to meet its obligations in due course of time. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis.
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58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

The approved financial statements of Trinity Alternative Investment Managers Limited (Trinity) and its two subsidiaries, viz. Hyderabad
Information Technology Venture Enterprises Limited and Cyberabad Trustee Company Private Limited for the quarter ended June 30, 2022
onwards have not been received from Trinity despite written request and follow ups. The consolidated financial statement for the year ended
March 31st, 2024, has been prepared considering balance sheet of Trinity and its two subsidiaries as of March 31st, 2022, being the last
audited balance sheet available from the management of respective companies. SIFL Nominee Director (existing Shareholder Director) called
the Board Meeting of Trinity, however, the management of Trinity did not provide the requisite document and infrastructure to hold the meeting
and under constraint, the Board Meeting could not be conducted. The possible impact on the consolidated financial results with respect to
the aforesaid subsidiaries is not ascertainable.

Probable Connected/Related Companies

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) in its inspection report and risk assessment report (the directions) for the year ended March 31, 2020 had
identified ‘certain borrowers’ as probable connected/related companies. As a part of the CIRP, the Administrator got conducted transaction
audits/reviews relating to the process and compliances of the Company and has also appointed professionals for conducting transaction audit
as per Section 43, 45, 50 and 66 of the Code.

With respect to such accounts, the Administrator has received account wise transaction audit reports, which has identified certain transactions
as fraudulent in nature under Section 66 of the Code, including undervalued transactions, the gross exposure of such borrower's amounts
to ¥10,37,693 Lacs and % 10,45,251 Lacs as on March 31, 2024 and as on March 31, 2023 respectively and the total exposure (net of
impairment) towards such borrowers is X Nil and ¥ Nil as on March 31, 2024 and as on March 31, 2023 respectively. In respect of such
accounts , the Administrator has filed applications under Section 60(5) and Section 66 of the Code before the Kolkata bench of the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) on various dates for adjudication. SEFL has also made 100 % impairment on such accounts. The
transaction audit has been completed and the necessary impact of the same have been incorporated in these audited financial statements.

As on March 31, 2021, SIFL and SEFL were having funds amounting to ¥ 5.76 Crores in relation to the Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’)
which were unspent. These unspent amounts as per the requirements of Section 135 of the Act were to be transferred to funds specified
under Schedule VII to the Act within a period of 6 months. However, the domestic lenders of SIFL and SEFL had stipulated TRA mechanism
effective November 24, 2020, pursuant to which all the payments being made by SIFL and SEFL were being approved/released based on the
TRA mechanism. SIFL and SEFL are not able to transfer the aforesaid unspent CSR amount as per the requirements of Section 135 of the
Act.

Subsequently, as per the approved resolution plan, no amount is payable to the statutory authorities against their dues and hence all such
dues are extinguished.

As per Section 125 of the Act, the Company and SEFL are required to transfer certain amount lying unpaid, for 7 years, to Investor Education
Protection Fund (“IEPF”). Prior to the date of commencement of CIRP i.e. October 8, 2021 (CIRP commencement date) an amount of
%18,574/- in SEFL and post commencement of CIRP, an amount of ¥ 7,70,634/- was transferable by SEFL and ¥ 4,84,877/- was transferable
by SIFL to IEPF in terms of Section 125 of the Act on different dates till August 11, 2023 i.e. NCLT Order date approving resolution plan.

During the CIRP period, the Company was unable to comply with the provision of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 due to technical
difficulties in filing the forms. Till date, the Company has transferred all the pending funds lying unpaid to IEPF except one case of SEFL
amounting to ¥ 63,536/- pertaining to post commencement of CIRP period.

The Company is unable to transfer 66,215 Equity shares pertaining to the Financial Year 2014-15, due for transfer to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund in accordance with the applicable provisions of Section 124 of the Act read with Investor Education and Protection Fund
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 due to the some technical reasons.

After NCLT order dated August 11, 2023, approving the Resolution Plan submitted by National Asset Reconstruction Company Limited, the
entire equity shares of all shareholders has been extinguished through capital reduction process. Hence, there is no need to transfer these
equity shares to IEPF.

Based on the information available in the public domain, some of the lenders have declared the bank account of the Company as fraud.
However, in case of one of the lender, on the basis of petition filed by the ex-promoter before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, the Hon’ble
Court has passed interim relief to the petitioner vide order dated April 22, 2022, restraining the said lender from taking any further steps or
action prejudicial to the petitioner on the basis of the order declaring the bank account as fraud. Thereafter vide order dated May 15, 2023,
the application was disposed of directing that the order declaring the account of the Company as fraud was set side. Further, liberty was
granted to the banks to proceed ahead in accordance with the direction given in the aforesaid order.

During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has received Show Cause Notices (SCNs) from some of the Banks/Financial Institutions.
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64.

65.

66.

67.

The Resolution plan states as under:

“Notwithstanding anything contained in the Resolution Plan and in accordance with Section 32A of the Code, the liability of the Corporate
Debtors for an offence committed prior to the commencement of the CIRP, if any, shall cease, and neither the Corporate Debtors nor the
Resolution Applicant shall be prosecuted for any such offence on and from the NCLT Approval Date. If a prosecution has been instituted
during the CIRP against the Corporate Debtors, the Corporate Debtors shall stand discharged from the NCLT Approval Date.”
Based on the above clause of Resolution plan the Erstwhile promoter of the Company are liable to answer the said Show Cause Notice.

Details of loan transferred/acquired during the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024 pursuant to RBI Master Direction RBI/DOR/2021-
22/86 DOR.STR.REC.51/21.04.048/2021-22 dated September 24, 2021 on Transfer of Loan Exposures are given below:

(@) The Company has not transferred or acquired any loans not in default during the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024.
(b) The Company has not transferred or acquired any stressed loan during the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024.
(c) Details on recovery ratings assigned for Security Receipts as on March 31, 2024.

Categories Anticipated recovery as Amount
per recovery rating (% in Lacs)
RR1* 100% - 150% -
RR1 100% - 150% 12,977
RR2 75% - 100% -
RR5** 0% - 25% -

* The last available recovery rating is as at February 08, 2023, valid till June 30, 2023.
** The last available recovery rating is as at August 28, 2020, valid till December 31, 2020.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its letter dated April 18,2023 has initiated inspection into the affairs of the Company and has
sought information and documents under Section 206(5) of the Act. The Company has provided necessary documents as required by MCA.

The Enforcement Directorate (ED) on January 31st, 2023 conducted simultaneous investigation on office premises of the Company and its
subsidiary, Srei Equipment Finance Ltd. The Company and its officials have provided all the necessary information/documents as required
by ED.

Figures pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged/regrouped, wherever necessary, to make them comparable with those of current
year.

For S K Agrawal and Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration No.306033E/E300272

Sd/- Sd/-

Hardayal Prasad Avinash Kulkarni
Sd/- Managing Director & CEO Director
Hemant Kumar Lakhotia DIN: 08024303 DIN: 02982164
Partner
Membership No. 068851 Sd/- Sd/-

Vishnu Gopal Agarwal Manoj Kumar
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary & CCO
Date: June 5, 2024
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